
 

CITY OF LAKE WORTH 
1900 2nd Ave N · Lake Worth, Florida 33461 · Phone: 561-586-1687 

 
 
 

Agenda 

Regular Meeting 

City of Lake Worth 

Planning & Zoning Board 

City Hall Commission Room 

7 North Dixie Hwy; Lake Worth, FL 

 

WEDNESDAY, MAY 04, 2016 6:00 PM 
 

1. Roll Call and Recording of Absences: 
 

2. Pledge of Allegiance 
 

3. Additions/Deletions/Reordering and Approval of the Agenda:  
 

4. Approval of Minutes: 
 
A. Meeting Minutes 
 

1. April 6, 2016 Minutes RM 
 

5. Cases: 
 
A. Swearing in of Staff and Applicants: 
 
B. Proof of Publication: 
 
C. Withdrawals/Postponements: 
 
D. Consent: 
 
E. Public Hearings: 
 

1. Board Disclosure 
 

2. Cases: 
 
F. Unfinished Business:  
 
G. New Business: 
 

1. PZB Project # 16-01500002 Consideration of a request for a Parking lot variance. 
 



May 4, 2016 Regular Meeting 

 

 

 

2. PZB Project # 16-01400002 - Consideration of a request for a Major Site Plan 
Amendment for renovation of an existing recreational building and site improvements 
and a Conditional Use for  a +/- 26, 148  square foot new construction for bowling 
alleys and miniature golf. PCN# 38-43-44-20-01-031-0010 and 38-43-44-20-01-031-
0020. 

 
3. PZB Project #16-01400001, PZB 16-00500001 & PZB 16-0100003 Consideration of a 

request for a Major Site Plan, Conditional Use application and to construct eight (8) 
townhomes and +/- 1,993 square feet of associated retail space. Variances are also 
requested from the minimum front setback, the location of property frontage and 
additional setback above the second story requirements. 

 
6. Planning Issues: 

 
7. Public Comments (3 minute limit): 

 
8. Departmental Reports: 

 
9. Board Member Comments: 

 
10. Adjournment: 

 
If a person decides to appeal any decision made by the board, agency or commission with 
respect to any matter considered at such meeting or hearing, he or she will need a record of the 
proceedings, and that, for such purpose, he or she may need to ensure that a verbatim record of 
the proceedings is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the 
appeal is to be based. (F.S. 286.0105) 
 
NOTE: ALL CITY BOARDS ARE AUTHORIZED TO CONVERT ANY PUBLICLY 
NOTICED MEETING INTO A WORKSHOP SESSION WHEN A QUORUM IS NOT 
REACHED. THE DECISION TO CONVERT THE MEETING INTO A WORKSHOP 
SESSION SHALL BE DETERMINED BY THE CHAIR OR THE CHAIR'S DESIGNEE, 
WHO IS PRESENT AT THE MEETING. NO OFFICIAL ACTION SHALL BE TAKEN 
AT THE WORKSHOP SESSION, AND THE MEMBERS PRESENT SHOULD LIMIT 
THEIR DISCUSSION TO THE ITEMS ON THE AGENDA FOR THE PUBLICLY 
NOTICED MEETING. (Sec. 2-12 Lake Worth Code of Ordinances) 
 
Note:   One or more members of any Board, Authority or Commission may attend and speak at 
any meeting of another City Board, Authority or Commission. 
 
All project-related back-up materials, including full plan sets, are available for review by the 
public in the Planning, Zoning and Historic Preservation Division located at 1900 2nd Avenue 
North. 
 
 
 



City of Lake Worth 
Department for Community Sustainability 

Planning, Zoning and Historic Preservation Division 
1900 Second Avenue North· Lake Worth, Florida 33460 · Phone: 561-586-1687 

 

   
DATE:    April 26, 2016 
 
TO:    Chair and Members of the Planning and Zoning Board 
 
FROM:    Curt Thompson, Senior Community Planner 

Maxime Ducoste, Assistant Director for Planning and Preservation  
 
SUBJECT: PZB Project Number 15‐01500004: Consideration of a Variance from the following: Section 23.4‐
10 ‐ Off‐Street Parking, to allow for the re‐location and lawful establishment of the ADA (Americans for 
Disability Act) accessible parking space for the property located at 901 North Dixie Highway. 
 
PZB Meeting Date: May 4, 2016  
 

SYNOPSIS: 
 

Applicant  MR. JOHN WALLACE 

General location  901 North Dixie Highway 

Zoning   Mixed Use Dixie Highway (MU‐DH)  

Existing land use  Mixed Use East (MU‐E) 

Future  land  use 
designation 

Mixed Use East (MU‐E) 

Applicable  Municipal 
Code Sections 

23.2‐26, 23.4‐10 

Board action required  Approve,  Deny  the  Request,  Continue  the  request  for  additional 
information  

Staff 
Recommendation 

Staff recommends approval of the variance request to allow for the 
re‐location  and  lawful  establishment  of  the  ADA  (Americans  for 
Disability Act) accessible parking space  for the property  located at 
901 North Dixie Highway. 
 

  Name and Title  Initials 

Project planner  Curt Thompson, Community Planner  CT 

Approved by  Maxime  Ducoste,  Assistant  Director  for  Planning  and 
Preservation 

MD 

 
 
BACKGROUND: 

The applicant is applying for a variance from the minimum parking requirement in order to comply with 

Title  III of the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) to provide a parking space  in accordance with the 

ADA. The applicant entered into a Federal Court consent decree agreeing to move the accessible parking 

space directly south of the existing accessible parking space and ensure the new accessible parking space 

fully complies with the ADA standards.  



PZB No. 16‐01500002 
901 North Dixie Highway 

Variance Application 
Page 2 

 

 

 

 

The  subject  site  consist  of  a multiple  tenant  retail  building  that was  built  in  1978.  At  that  time  of 

construction, the parking area met the City’s regulations. Once the City’s Land Development Regulations 

(LDRs) were amended, the existing property along with the parking area became legally non‐conforming. 

 
PROPOSAL/ANALYSIS: 
According to the Palm Beach County Property Appraiser’s Office, the commercial plaza  is 4,788 square    
feet in area, with a total leasable area of 4,720 square feet on a lot that is about 13,000 square feet in 
area.  According  to  the  LDRS,  Section  23.4‐10,  this  would  require  approximately  24  parking  spaces. 
Currently, the site has a total of 18 parking spaces (9 parking spaces on the north side and 9 spaces on the 
south side of the parking area).     
 
The applicant proposes to relocate the existing ADA parking space directly south of the existing accessible 
space  and  re‐configure  the  entire  parking  area.  This  reconfiguration  requires  a  minor  site  plan 
amendment. As such, since the property  is nonconforming,  in terms of number of parking spaces and 
adequate handicap parking stall, the applicant is in need of the subject variance from the existing parking 
regulations. Upon completion and if the variance is approved, the parking area will have a remaining total 
of 16 parking spaces (9 parking spaces on the north side of the parking area and 7 parking spaces on the 
south side of the parking area).  
 
Secondly, the applicant entered into a Federal Court consent decree to move the accessible parking space 
to  the  closest  parking  space  directly  south  of  the  existing  accessible  parking  space  and  ensure  full 
compliance with  the  ADA  standards.  Thus,  a  variance  from  the  parking  regulations,  specifically  the 
required number of parking spaces, is necessary to implement this Federal Court consent decree. 
   

VARIANCE ANALYSIS: 

According  to  Section  23.2‐26  the  power  to  grant  any  such  variance  shall  be  limited  by  and  be 

contingent upon documentation that all required findings are made by the appropriate board. The 

following addresses each of the required findings with respect to the applicant’s requested variances. 

 

1. Special circumstances or conditions exist which are peculiar to the land or building for which the 

variance is sought and do not apply generally to nearby lands and buildings, and that this is not 

the result of action of the applicant;  
 
Staff Response: The applicant complies with this standard.  
The special circumstance requiring this change is the result of a Federal Court consent decree the 
applicant entered into requiring him to meet ADA standards in relocating this space to the south 
side of the parking area, directly south of the existing accessible parking space.  In addition, the 
existing parking area  is  legally non‐conforming  in terms of the required number of spaces and 
ADA parking and access requirements. As stated above, the site has a total of 4,720 square feet 
of  leasable area on a  lot  that  is 13,000 square  feet  in area. According  to the LDRS, this would 
require about 24 parking spaces. At this time, the site has a total of only 18 spaces. The applicant 
is proposing to relocate the existing ADA parking space directly south of the existing accessible 



PZB No. 16‐01500002 
901 North Dixie Highway 

Variance Application 
Page 3 

 

 

 

space.  This  would  force  the  applicant  to  re‐configure  the  entire  parking  area.  Once  this 
reconfiguration is completed, the parking area will have a total of only 16 spaces parking spaces 
(a reduction of eight spaces) instead of the 24 spaces required by code. The current ADA parking 
space is approximately 14 feet in width. Current ADA standards require a space to be at least 17 
feet in width (12 feet for the space and 5 feet for the ramp).  Therefore, in order to accomplish 
this and be in compliance with ADA requirements, a variance from the parking regulations will be 
required thus allowing the implementation of the Federal Court consent decree.    
 

2. The strict application of the provision of these LDRs would deprive the applicant of any reasonable 

use of the land or building for which the variance is sought;  

 

Staff Response: The applicant complies with this standard. 

The strict application of the parking requirements cannot reasonably be accommodated within 

the boundaries of the existing site without approval of the requested variance. In order to comply, 

the applicant would have to increase the number of parking spaces from 18 to 24 and add the 

ADA space according to the current ADA regulations. This process would require the applicant to 

do the following: reduce the size of the building and any other LDR requirements. Therefore, the 

strict application of the LDRs would create an unreasonable burden on the applicant to comply 

with both the LDRs parking regulations and the federal ADA standards.           

 

3. That the variance proposed is the minimum variance which makes possible the reasonable use of 

the land or building;   

 

Staff Response: The applicant complies with this standard. 

 A  law  suit was  brought  against  the  applicant  requiring  that  the  existing ADA  parking  space, 

accessible aisle and  ramp be  revised  to conform  to 2010 ADAAG  standards, ADA Accessibility 

Guidelines. Accommodating this court order within the bounds of the existing property will result 

in a reduction of the nonconforming total parking spaces.  Once the ADA standards are met, there 

will be 7 spaces along the south side of the parking area and 9 spaces on the north side of the 

parking area with a 24 foot required internal aisle that will be maintained as required by the LDRs. 

Thus, approving this variance is the minimum variance which makes possible the reasonable use 

of  the  land or building and necessary  to allow  the establishment of  the ADA parking space as 

required by the Federal Court consent decree.       

 

4. That the granting of the variance will be in accordance with the spirit and purpose of this chapter, 

and will not be unduly  injurious  to contiguous property or  the surrounding neighborhood nor 

otherwise  detrimental  to  the  public  welfare.  In  deciding  appeals  from  decisions  of  the 

development review official or in granting variances, the decision‐making board is authorized and 

required  to  impose  any  reasonable  conditions  and  safeguards  it  deems  to  be  necessary  or 



PZB No. 16‐01500002 
901 North Dixie Highway 

Variance Application 
Page 4 

 

 

 

desirable, and violation of such conditions or safeguards when made a part of the terms under 

which a variance is granted, shall be deemed to be a violation of these LDRs.  

 

Staff Response: The applicant complies with this standard. 

Although the granting of this variance will  increase  the existing non‐conformity of the parking 

area by eliminating two parking spaces from the 18 nonconforming parking space and eight (8) 

spaces from the 24 spaces required by code, the applicant will be able to provide a parking space 

that with comply with the Federal ADA standards. Given the existing physical restraints of the 

current parking and the court mandated alterations to accommodate the ADA parking space, this 

request went   as  far as possible  to meet  the spirit and purpose of Section 23.4‐10  (Off‐Street 

Parking). Given the constraints of the property, it is impossible and impractical to meet both the 

LDRs parking requirement and the Federal ADA standards. Thus, approval of this variance, will not 

be  unduly  injurious  to  contiguous  property  or  the  surrounding  neighborhood  nor  otherwise 

detrimental to the public welfare.   

 
CONSEQUENT ACTION:  
The decision of the Planning and Zoning Board will be final; however, the Applicant may appeal the Board’s 
decision to the Circuit Court of Palm Beach County. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Based on  the  findings outlined  in  the analysis,  staff  recommends  that  the Planning and Zoning Board 
approve the variance as submitted by the Applicant. 
 
POTENTIAL MOTION: 
I MOVE TO APPROVE/DENY OF PZB CASE NUMBER 16‐01500002: Request  for a variance  from Section 
23.4‐10 (Off Street Parking Regulations) to allow for the re‐location and the lawful establishment of the 
ADA (Americans for Disability Act) accessible parking space and reduce the required number of parking 
spaces  to 16  instead of  the  required 24 parking  spaces    for  the property  located  at 901 North Dixie 
Highway. 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



PZB No. 16‐01500002 
901 North Dixie Highway 

Variance Application 
Page 5 

 

 

 

 
 
LOCATION MAP 

 

 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

A. Justification Statement 
B. Site Plan 

 
 



 

Justification  Statement 
 

I. The existing property is non-conforming. The non-conformities were in place 

when the property was purchased and do not result from the actions of the 

owner/applicant. The front, rear, interior side, and street side setbacks are 

currently non-conforming (see "project date" sheet).  In addition, on site parking 

is also non-conforming in terms of required number of spaces, width of spaces, 

and ADA parking and access requirements (see current survey plat). These pre-

existing non conformities, though not unique, are not generally applicable to 

neighboring properties sharing the MU-DH zoning. 

 
2. The strict application of the requirements for building front, rear, and side 

setbacks, as well as parking requirements cannot reasonably be accommodated 

within the boundaries of the existing property. To do so would require a seven 

and a half foot reduction of building footprint of the east and south ends of the 

existing buildings (420 sq. ft.) and an increase in parking from  18 spaces to 21 

spaces - plus an enlarged ADA space. This parking area cannot physically be 

accommodated within the existing 13,000 square foot property. 

 
3. A law suit brought against the owner/applicant requires that the existing handicap 

parking, accessible aisle and ramp be revised to conform to "20 I 0 ADAAG 

standards, ADA Accessibility Guidelines 28 C.F.R. Pt. 36, App.A (see attached 

legal document, "Exhibit A," and attending court order from "United District 

Court, Southern District of Florida). Accommodating this court order within the 

bounds of the existing property necessarily results in a reduction of total parking 

spaces, the ADA requirements will be met, 7 spaces will be increased slightly in 

width, and 9 spaces will be un-changed in width. The 19-foot required depth and 

24-foot required back-out space will be maintained. This is the minimum 

variance allowing the reasonable use of the land and building. 

 
4. Granting of this variance, though increasing the existing non-conformity of 

required number of parking spaces by one, eliminates this non-conformity of 

required ADA space and related accessibility. Given the existing conditions and 

physical restraints of the current parking, and the court mandated alterations to 

accommodate the handicapped  - this request goes as far as possible to meet the 

spirit and purpose of Sec. 23.4-10 -"Off-Street Parking;• and will not be unduly 

injurious to contiguous properties, the surrounding neighborhood, or the public 

welfare.  In addition, the proposed general up-grade of the buildings will 

enhance the existing North Dixie Highway streetscape. 

 





City Of Lake Worth 
Department for Community Sustainability 

Planning, Zoning and Historic Preservation Division 
1900 Second Avenue North· Lake Worth, Florida 33460 · Phone: 561-586-1687 

 

 
DATE:  April 26, 2016 
 
TO:  Members of the Planning & Zoning Board 
 
FROM:  Curt Thompson, Senior Community Planner 
  Maxime Ducoste, Assistant Director for Planning and Preservation 
 

SUBJECT: PZB Project Number 16-01400002 and 16-00500008: Consideration of 

a request for a Major Site Plan and Conditional Land Use to remodel the existing 
recreational building (+/- 26,148 square feet), construct a +/- 21,376 square foot 

expansion for recreational activities (bowling alleys) and a proposed miniature 
golf area and associated site improvements pursuant to Sections 23.2-29, 23.2-30, 

23.2-31, 23.2-32 of the LDRs.  
 

Land Use/Zoning: 
The site is located at 2001 and 2003 10th Avenue North, with a Mixed Use – West 
(MU-W) zoning designation and a Mixed Use West (MU-W) Future Land Use Map 

designation.  
 

Meeting Date: May 4, 2016 
 

 

SYNOPSIS: 
 

Applicant M. Bob Kuoppala representing Fun Depot 

General Location 2001 and 2003 10th Avenue North 

Zoning Mixed Use West (MU-W) 

Existing Land Use Fun Depot 

Future Land Use 

Designation 
Mixed Use – West 

Applicable 

Municipal Code 
Sections 

 

23.2-29, 23.2-30, 23.2-31, 23.2-32 

 Required Proposed/Existing 

Lot Area 13,000 square feet  297950.4 square feet 

Lot Width 100 feet 464.05 feet 



Building Height 

Comprehensive 

Plan: Maximum 
30’ (not to 

exceed two 
stories) plus 15 

feet (max 4 
stories) with 
Sustainable 
Bonus Incentive 
Program 

Zoning Code: 
Maximum 30’ 

(not to exceed 
two stories) plus 

15 feet (max 4 
stories) with 

Sustainable 
Bonus Incentive 

Program 

27’4” 

Setbacks Required Provided 

Front (Second 
Avenue) 

20 feet not to exceed 32 feet 74 feet existing 

Side (East) 20 feet 75.4 feet 

Side (West) 20 feet  24.7 feet existing 

Rear (North) 15 feet 36 feet 

Bonus Height and 
Stories 

Not Applicable Not Applicable 

Living Area Not Applicable Not Applicable 

Accessory Structure 

Limitations 
Not Applicable Not Applicable 

Impermeable 
Surface Total 

65% maximum 
48.32% 
 (+/-143,969.44 sq. ft.)  

Maximum Building 
Coverage 

50%  20.71% (+/- 61,706 sq. ft.) 

Floor Area Ratio 1.3   .217 

Parking 
 54 spaces for the proposed 
addition.  

66 spaces for the proposed 
addition 

Board Action 
Required 

Approve, Approve With Conditions, Deny the Request, Continue the 
request for additional information;   

Staff 
Recommendation 

Staff recommends approval of the requested Conditional Land Use 
and Major Site Plan, with conditions, to allow for to remodel the 
existing recreational building (+/- 26,148 square feet), construct a 

+/- 21,376 square foot expansion for recreational activities (bowling 
alleys) and a proposed miniature golf area and associated site 

improvements pursuant to Sections 23.2-29, 23.2-30, 23.2-31, 23.2-
32 of the LDRs.    The subject site is located at 2001 and 2003 10th 

Avenue North. The site has a Mixed Use-West (MU-W) zoning 
designation with a Future Land Use designation of Mixed Use-West 
(MU-W). 
 



 Name and Title Initials 

Project Planner Curt Thompson, Community Planner CT 

Approved by 
Maxime Ducoste, Assistant Director for Planning and 
Preservation 

MD 

  
Project/Property Description: 
 
The applicant, Robert Kuoppala, applicant on behalf of Three Palms Investments  is proposing  
remodel the existing recreational building (+/- 26,148 square feet), construct a +/- 21,376 square 

foot expansion for recreational activities (bowling alleys) and a proposed miniature golf area and 
associated site improvements located at 2001 and 2003 10th Avenue North.  The site is 6.84 acres 

in area and is currently the location for the Fun Depot and other commercial/retail uses. The site 
is bounded on the north by 10th Avenue North, on the east by Detroit Street, on the west by a 

retail shopping plaza and on the south by a mobile home park. The surrounding properties are 
zoned Mixed Use – West with the exception of property to the south, which zoned IPOC 

(Industrial Park of Commerce). 
 
The site plan was reviewed by the Site Plan Review Team (SPRT) at their regular meeting on 

March 14, 2016.  The SPRT recommended a number of conditions of approval, which have been 
included for the Board’s reference. 

 

The following analysis includes a discussion about the specific site improvements the applicant is 

proposing followed by an analysis that addresses each of the three (3) part request outlined in 
the project description. 

 

ANALYSIS:  
 

As mentioned above, the applicant is proposing to remodel the existing recreational building (+/- 
26,148 square feet), construct a +/- 21,376 square foot expansion for recreational activities 

(bowling alleys) and a proposed miniature golf area and associated site improvements. 

 

The site will be fully landscaped using native vegetation, with an extensive planting palette that 

includes -/+ 125 trees (this includes palm and shade and trees), and a large variety of 
shrubs/hedges and ground covers. The planting palette and plant material arrangement is fully 
depicted in the landscape plan which has been included.  

 
Public Support/Opposition 

 

Staff has not received any letters of support or opposition 

 

Consistency with the Comprehensive Plan: 

 



The applicant’s proposal to remodel the existing recreational building (+/- 26,148 square feet), 

construct a +/- 21,376 square foot expansion for recreational activities (bowling alleys) and a 
proposed miniature golf area and associated site improvements  at the subject site is consistent 

with the following Comprehensive Plan objectives and policies, which are outlined below: 
 

 Policy 1.3.4.4: Redevelopment opportunities will be maximized through use of mixed land 
use designations that permit a flexible mix of multifamily residential and compatible office 
uses. 

 

The project site has a Future Land Use Designation of Mixed Use-West.  The Mixed Use-

West zoning designation, which is the zoning of the project site, is intended to “encourage 
through incentives the use of innovative land planning and development techniques to 

create more desirable and attractive development in the City”.  The Mixed Use-West Land 
Use designation includes flexibilities that which make the type of infill development 
feasible.  This flexibility is inherent to the development standards and the density allowed 
in the Mixed Use-West land use category encourages the type of compact development 
the applicant is proposing. 

 

 Policy 1.3.9.1: The City shall further discourage urban sprawl by: 
 

1. Continuously promoting compact developments within the mixed use, high density 
residential and TOD areas while providing adequate public services for each 

development in the most cost effective manner possible; and, 
 

The applicant is proposing a compact development in the Mixed Use-West land use 

category.  Existing public services, including potable water, sewer, fire and police services, 
are adequate to serve the project. The compact nature shall be consistent with the Mixed 

Use-West future land use designation and this policy. 

 

 
 
It is evident through consistency with the identified objectives and policies that the project is 

consistent with the adopted Comprehensive Plan.  
 

 

Section 23.2-29(d): General findings relating to harmony with LDRs and protection of public 

interest 

 

The project is in compliance with the general findings relating to harmony with the LDRs and 

protection of public interest, as follows: 

 



1. The conditional use exactly as proposed at the location where proposed will be in harmony 

with the uses which, under these LDRs and the future land use element, are most likely to occur 
in the immediate area where located. 

 

Staff Response: The proposed use will be in harmony with the intent of the Mixed Use – West 
(MU-W) Zoning District to remodel the existing recreational building (+/- 26,148 square feet), 

construct a +/- 21,376 square foot expansion for recreational activities (bowling alleys) and a 
proposed miniature golf area and associated site improvements.            

 

2. The conditional use exactly as proposed at the location where proposed will be in harmony 
with existing uses in the immediate area where located. 

 

Staff Response: The existing uses in the surrounding area are as follows: 

 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning District 
Current Use/            

Name of 

Development 

North 
Mixed Use –  

West (MU-W) 

Mixed Use-West  

(MU-W) 
Wayne Akers Ford 

South Industrial (I) 
Industrial Park of 

Commerce (I-POC) 
Mobile Home Park 

East 
Mixed Use-West 

(MU-W) 

Mixed use West 

(MU-W) 

Commercial/Industrial 

Condominium 
Complex 

West 

 

Mixed Use West 

(MU-W) 

Mixed Use-West 

(MU-W) 

Commercial/Retail 

Plaza 

 

The majority of existing uses are commercial/retail in nature. In addition, the property south of 

the site is the location for an existing nonconforming use, a mobile home park.  As such, the 
proposed expansion shall be in harmony with the existing mix of commercial uses in the 

immediate area. 

 

3. The conditional use exactly as proposed will not result in substantially less public benefit or 

greater harm than would result from use of the Property for some use permitted by right or some 
other conditional use permitted on the Property. 

 

Staff Response: The proposed expansion will be compatible with the Future Land Use designation 
(Mixed Use-West) and may stimulate development of the surrounding area.  The proposed mixed 



use will not result in substantially less public benefit or greater harm than would result from a 

use permitted by right   

 

4. The conditional use exactly as proposed will not result in more intensive development in 

advance of when such development is approved by the future land use element of the 
comprehensive plan. 

 

Staff Response: The proposed re creational expansion will not result in a more intensive 

development than that approved by the Future Land Use Element of the Comprehensive Plan.  

Rather, the mixed use nature shall be compatible with the planning goals, objectives and policies 
of the Future Land Use Element as identified above under Consistency with the Comprehensive 

Plan.  

 

Section 23.2-29(e): Specific standards for all conditional uses 

 

1. The proposed conditional use will not generate traffic volumes or movements which will 

result in a significant adverse impact or reduce the level of service provided on any street to a 
level lower than would result from a development permitted by right. 

 

Staff Response: The proposed multifamily use (apartment complex) will not generate traffic 
volumes or movements, which will reduce the level of service provided on any street to a lower 

level than would result from a development permitted by right.  The applicant has provided a 
Traffic Impact Analysis prepared by H. Burton Smith, P.E., Consulting Engineers Inc. Mr. Smith’s 

analysis shows that the proposed development is located within the Lake Worth Park of 
Commerce Traffic Concurrency Exemption Area. The existing uses within the center are vested 
having been in use for the last five (5) years. The proposed additional traffic from the new 
bowling alley and the miniature golf area are exempt from the Traffic Performance Standards 
of Palm Beach County. 

 

2. The proposed conditional use will not result in a significantly greater amount of through 

traffic on local streets than would result from a development permitted by right and is 
appropriately located with respect to collector and arterial streets. 

 

Staff Response: The proposed conditional use will not result in a significantly greater amount 

of through traffic on local streets.  Traffic accessing the site is anticipated to come from the 
existing entrance/exit onto 10th Avenue North and one shared entrance/exit with the adjacent 
commercial parcel to the east. The shared entrance/exit onto 10th Avenue north has an existing 
traffic signal which will help traffic to enter and leave the site. 

 

3. The proposed conditional use will not produce significant air pollution emissions. 

 



Staff Response: The proposed expansion and accessory miniature golf area does not include any 

operational features that would produce significant air pollution emissions. 

 

4. The proposed conditional use will be so located in relation to the thoroughfare system that 

neither extension nor enlargement nor any other alteration of that system in a manner resulting 
in higher net public cost or earlier incursion of public cost than would result from development 

permitted by right. 

 

Staff Response: the proposed expansion and accessory miniature golf area will require neither 

extension nor enlargement nor any other alteration of that system in a manner resulting in higher 
net public cost or earlier incursion of public cost than would result from development permitted 

by right. 

 

5. The proposed conditional use will be so located in relation to water lines, sanitary sewers, 

storm sewers, surface drainage systems and other utility systems that neither extension nor 
enlargement nor any other alteration of such systems in a manner resulting in higher net public 

cost or earlier incursion of public cost than would result from development permitted by right. 

 

Staff Response: The proposed conditional use will be served by existing utilities such that neither 
extension nor enlargement is necessary as a result of the project. 

 

6. The proposed conditional use will not place a demand on municipal police or fire protection 
service beyond the capacity of those services.  

 

Staff Response: The proposed conditional use is not anticipated to place a demand on municipal 
police or fire protection services which does not exceed that likely to result from a development 
permitted by right. 

 

7. The proposed conditional use will not generate significant noise, or will appropriately mitigate 

anticipated noise to a level compatible with that which would result from a development 

permitted by right. Any proposed use must meet all the requirements and stipulations set forth 
in section 15.24, Noise control. 

 

Staff Response: The proposed expansion is not anticipated to generate significant noise.   

 

8. The proposed conditional use will not generate light or glare which encroaches onto any 

adjacent property in excess of that allowed in Section 23.4-3, Exterior lighting. 

 

https://library.municode.com/HTML/10091/level3/PTIICOOR_CH23LADERE_ART4DEST.html#PTIICOOR_CH23LADERE_ART4DEST_S23.4-10OREPA


Staff Response: The proposed lighting plan for the project is anticipated to be in compliance with 

Section 23.4-3, which requires that lighting not impact residential properties by more than one 
(1) foot-candle.  Please refer to Sheet E.1 and E.2 in the site plan, for additional details  

 
Section 23.2-31: Site Design Qualitative Standards 

 
1. Harmonious and efficient organization.  
 

Staff Response: All of the required elements of the site plan have been harmoniously and 
efficiently organized in relation to topography, and the size and type of parcel.  The project has 

been designed in accord with all of the development regulations outlined in The Fun Depot Site 
Plan.  The site will be developed as to not impede the normal and orderly development or 

improvement of surrounding property.  The proposed development of the project site will have 
no negative impacts on the surrounding properties and/or uses.  The criterion has been met.  

 
2. Preservation of natural conditions.  

 
Staff Response: The project site is currently fully developed. There are no natural features of 
significance to preserve in place.  The site contains a proposed landscape plan that will 
complement proposed expansion.   This criterion has been met. 

 

3. Screening and buffering.  
 

Staff Response: The applicant is proposing landscaping and buffering which will meet the 
requirements of the LDRs. The landscape plan is attached for the board’s review as depicted in 
sheet LP-1. 

  
4. Enhancement of residential privacy.  

 

Staff Response: This project does not involved residential privacy. 
 

5. Emergency access.  
 

Staff Response: Emergency access to the site is provided along the 10th Avenue North and along 

Detroit Street.  Practical means of access is available to all sides of all building.  The criterion has 

been met. 
  

6. Access to public ways.  
 

Staff Response: Access to public rights-of-way to the project is being provided via one existing 
driveway located on 10th Avenue North and Detroit Street to the east.  The criterion has been 

met. 
 



7. Pedestrian circulation.  

 

Staff Response:  There is an existing concrete sidewalk along 10th Avenue North. The criterion 

has been met. 
   

8. Design of ingress and egress drives.  
 

Staff Response: The site will utilize one existing entrance/exit along 10th Avenue North and one 

existing entrance/exit along Detroit Street and one entrance only access along Detroit Street.  
The criterion has been met. 

  
9. Coordination of on-site circulation with off-site circulation.  

 

Staff Response: The existing on-site circulation has been designed in a manner to coordinate with 
the proposed parking area for the proposed expansion. The criterion has been met. 

 
10. Design of on-site public right-of-way.  

 
Staff Response: There are no on-site public streets or rights-of-ways associated with the project 

site.  The criterion is not applicable   
 

11. Off-street parking, loading and vehicular circulation areas.  
 

Staff Response: According the City LDRs, the proposed addition will required 54 parking spaces. 

The applicant is proposing a net increase of 66 parking spaces to comply with this requirement. 
This criterion has been satisfied. 

 
12. Refuse and service areas. 

 

Staff Response: The applicant is proposing four separate dumpster enclosures that comply with 
the City requirements for refuse.   The dumpster enclosures are proposed to be screened with a 
variety of planting materials.  The full planting palette is depicted on the proposed landscape 
plan.  The criterion has been met. 

 
13. Protection of property values.  

 

Staff Response: The site is currently developed with existing commercial/retail uses.  The 
redeveloped of the Fun Depot site is expected to serve as a catalyst for the investment in the 
Lake Worth Park of Commerce and the Mixed Use West areas.  The redeveloped site should have 

a positive effect on property values in the immediate area.  The criterion has been met.  
 

14. Transitional development.  
 



Staff Response: Due to the mixed use nature of the surrounding area, this proposed expansion 

and redevelopment will be in harmony with the uses in the vicinity.   
 

15. Consideration of future development. 
 

Staff Response: The vicinity in which the project site is located is in various stages of 
development.  The applicant is undertaking the redevelopment of the site that will result in a 
viable mixed use recreational development.  The type of compact urban development proposed 
by the applicant is consistent with the Future Land Use Element of the Comprehensive Plan.  The 
redeveloped site is expected to serve as a catalyst for investment in the Lake Worth Park of 

Commerce and the Mixed Use – West areas.  The criterion has been met.  
   

d) Buildings, generally. 
 

1. Buildings or structures which are part of a present or future group or complex shall have a 
unity of character and design. The relationship of forms of the use, texture and color of 
material shall be such as to create one (1) harmonious whole. When the area involved forms  
an integral part of, is immediately adjacent to, or otherwise clearly affects the future of any 
established section of the city, the design, scale and location of the site shall enhance rather 
than detract from the character, value and attractiveness of the surroundings. Harmonious  
does not mean or require that the buildings be the same.  
 
Staff Response: The proposed commercial addition will be design to be compatible with the 
existing commercial/retail uses in the MU-W zoning district. Meets criterion. 

 
2. Buildings or structures located along strips of land or on a single site, and not a part of a 

unified multi-building complex shall achieve as much visual harmony with the surroundings 
as is possible under the circumstances. If a building is built in an undeveloped area, three (3) 
primary requirements shall be met, including honest design construction, proper design 
concepts, and appropriateness to the city.  
 

Staff Response: Meets criterion. 
 

3. All façades visible to public or adjacent property shall be designed to create a harmonious  
whole. Materials shall express their function clearly and not appear foreign to the rest of the 

building.  
 

Staff Response: The building facades shall be designed to meet this criterion. 
 

4. The concept of harmony shall not infer that buildings must look alike or be of the same style. 
Harmony can be achieved through the proper consideration of scale, mass, bulk, proportion, 

height, orientation, site planning, landscaping, materials, rhythm of solids to voids and 

architectural components including but not limited to porches, roof types, fenestration, 
orientation and stylistic expression.  



 

Staff Response: The proposed expansion shall be designed to meet this criterion. 
 

5. Look-alike buildings shall not be allowed unless, in the opinion of the board, there is sufficient 
separation to preserve the aesthetic character of the present or evolving neighborhood. This 

is not to be construed to prohibit the duplication of floor plans  and exterior treatment in a 
planned development where, in the opinion of the board, the aesthetics or the development 

depend upon, or are enhanced by the look-alike buildings and their relationship to each 
other.  
 
Staff Response: Meets criterion. 
 

6. Buildings, which are of symbolic design for reasons of advertising, unless otherwise 
compatible with the criteria herein, will not be approved by the board. Symbols attached to 
the buildings will not be allowed unless they are secondary in appearance to the building and 

landscape and are an aesthetic asset to the building, project and neighborhood.  
 
Staff Response: The proposed expansion is not designed for advertising purposes, the intent 
is to provide additional recreational uses (bowling alley and miniature golf area) for the 
enjoyment by Palm Beach County residents.   
Meets criterion. 
 

7. Exterior lighting may be used to illuminate a building and its grounds for safety purposes , but 
in an aesthetic manner. Lighting is not to be used as a form of advertising in a manner that is 

not compatible to the neighborhood or in a manner that draws considerably more attention 
to the building or grounds at night than in the day. Lighting following the form of the building 

or part of the building will not be allowed if, in the opinion of the board, the overall effect will 
be detrimental to the environment. All fixtures used in exterior lighting are to be selected for 

functional as well as aesthetic value.  
 

Staff Response: The project as proposed meets this criterion. 
 

8. Building surfaces, walls and roofs shall be compatible and in harmony with the neighborhood.  

 
Staff Response: All building surfaces, walls and roofs are proposed to be compatible and in 

harmony with the surrounding vicinity. Meets criterion. 
 

9. "Take-out" or "pick-up" windows of retail or wholesale establishments shall not be located 
on a building façade that faces a public right-of-way, unless they are designed in such a 

manner as to constitute an aesthetic asset to the building and neighborhood.  
 

Staff Response:  No such design(s) have been proposed for this development.  
 



10. All exterior forms, attached to buildings, shall be in conformity to and secondary to the 

building. They shall be an asset to the aesthetics of the site and to the neighborhood.  
 

Staff Response: Meets criterion. 
 

11. All telephones, vending machines, or any facility dispensing merchandise, or a service on 
private property, shall be confined to a space built into the building or buildings or enclosed 

in a separate structure compatible with the main building, and where appropriate and 
feasible, should not be readily visible from off-premises.  
 
Staff Response: No such design(s) have been proposed for this development. Meets criterion. 
 

12. Buildings of a style or style-type foreign to south Florida or its climate will not be allowed. It 
is also to be understood that buildings which do not conform to the existing or to the evolving 
atmosphere of the city, even though possessing historical significance to south Florida, may 

not be approved.  
 
Staff Response: Meets criterion. 
 

13. No advertising will be allowed on any exposed amenity or facility such as benches and trash 
containers.  
 
Staff Response: No advertising has been proposed by this applicant. Meets criterion. 
 

14. Light spillage restriction. The applicant shall make adequate provision to ensure that light 
spillage onto adjacent residential properties is minimized. 

  
Staff Response: The proposal has been designed to meet this criterion. 

 
 

Site Plan Review Team 
 

The project was reviewed by the Site Plan Review Team on March 14, 2016.   

 
Conclusion: 

 

The analysis has shown that the required findings can be made with respect to the Conditional 

Land Use and, Major Site Plan requests.  The use as proposed is in harmony with the underlying 
zoning district and surrounding areas, subject to compliance with staff proposed conditions of 
approval. 

 
CONSEQUENT ACTION:  

 



The Planning & Zoning Board’s decision on the Conditional Land Use  and Major Site Plan will be 

final. The staff recommends that the Planning and Zoning Board approve the Major Site Plan and 
Conditional Use to remodel the existing recreational building (+/- 26,148 square feet), construct 

a +/- 21,376 square foot expansion for recreational activities (bowling alleys) and a proposed 
miniature golf area and associated site improvements . The subject site is located at 2001 and 

2003 10th Avenue North. The site is approximately 6.84 acres in size. The site currently has a 
Mixed Use – West (MU-W) zoning district, with a Future Land Use designation of Mixed Use – 

West (MU-W).    
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends the following on the various requests: 
 
Staff recommends that the Planning & Zoning Board APPROVE the Conditional Land Use and Site 

Plan to remodel the existing recreational building (+/- 26,148 square feet), construct a +/- 21,376 
square foot expansion for recreational activities (bowling alleys) and a proposed miniature golf 
area and associated site improvements. The subject site is located at 2001 and 2003 10th Avenue 
North. The site is approximately 6.84 acres in size. The site currently has a Mixed Use – West 
(MU-W) zoning district, with a Future Land Use designation of Mixed Use – West (MU-W).    
 
POTENTIAL MOTION: 
 
Should the Planning & Zoning Board concur with staff’s recommendation the following motions  

are recommended: 
 

“PZB PROJECT NUMBER 16-01400002: I MOVE TO APPROVE/DENY PZB PROJECT NUMBER 16-
01400002:  A Conditional Land Use and Major Site Plan   to remodel the existing recreational 

building (+/- 26,148 square feet), construct a +/- 21,376 square foot expansion for recreational 
activities (bowling alleys) and a proposed miniature golf area and associated site improvements. 

The subject site is located at 2001 and 2003 10th Avenue North. The site is approximately 6.84 
acres in size. The site currently has a Mixed Use – West (MU-W) zoning district, with a Future 

Land Use designation of Mixed Use – West (MU-W).    

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 
 

 



 

LOCATION MAP 
 

 
 

Attachments:  

A. Conditions of Approval 
B. Proposed Plans 

a. Survey 
b. Site Plan  

c. Architectural Plans 
d. Photometric Plan 
e. Landscape Plan 
f. Preliminary Civil Plans 
g. Traffic Statement 

 
 



 DEPARTMENT FOR COMMUNITY SUSTAINABILITY 
PLANNING, ZONING AND HISTORIC PRESERVATION DIVISION 

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL AND DEVELOPMENT INFORMATION FOR 
PZB CASE No. 16-01400002 

 
Date of Preparation:   April 29, 2016 
P&ZB Meeting Date:   May 4, 2016 
Applicant: Fun Depot 
Location: 2001 & 2003 10th Avenue North  

 

 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 
PZB CASE No. 16-01400002 

 
Standard Conditions of Approval: 

 
1. The issuance of any permits shall comply with all provisions of the Lake Worth Municipal Code 

and all other applicable Codes including but not limited to the Florida Building Code.  
 
2. Unless construction has commenced pursuant to a building permit, or a time extension is 

granted in accordance with Code, this application shall expire one (1) year from Planning & 
Zoning Board Approval. 

 
3. No Certificate of Occupancy shall be granted until all conditions of approval have been satisfied. 

 
4. This approval is for a conditional land use pursuant to Sections 23.2-29 for a Major Site Plan 

Amendment and Conditional Use Permit to remodel the existing recreational building (+/- 
26,148 square feet), construct a +/- 21,376 square foot expansion for recreational activities 
(bowling alleys) and a proposed miniature golf area and associated site improvements pursuant 
to Sections 23.2-29, 23.2-30, 23.2-31, 23.2-32 of the LDRs. This site is located within the Mixed 
Use- West (MU-W) zoning district at 2001 & 2003 10th Avenue North. This use must operate in 
compliance with all state and local laws that govern this use.  

 
5. In the event of a legal challenge to this approval, the applicant shall be responsible for all costs 

to defend the action of the city in approving any and all permits related to this application. 
Should the applicant fail to enter into an agreement fund the costs of litigation, the city, at its 
discretion, may rescind this approval and revoke all permits issued.  

 
Additional Conditions of Approval: 
 
Planning and Zoning: 

 
1. No outdoor storage shall be permitted on the property. 
 
2. This approval does not include the proposed monument signs along 10th Avenue North. The monument 

signs as proposed are not in compliance with the City of Lake Worth’s Land Development Regulations 
(Section 23.5-1). The proposed monument signs must comply with the City’s Sign Regulations at the time 



PZB No. 16-00500004 
2001 & 2003 10th Avenue North 

Major Si te Plan Amendment and Conditional Land Use Application 
Planning and Zoning Board Meeting of May 4, 2016 

Page 2 

 

of permitting.   
 

Public Services: 

 
1. The issuance of any permits shall comply with all provisions of the Lake Worth Municipal Code and all 
other applicable standards including but not limited to the Florida Department of Transportation 
(FDOT), Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices (MUTCD), and City of Lake Worth Public Services 
Construction Standards and Policy and Procedure Manual. 
 
2. No Certificate of Occupancy shall be granted until all conditions of approval have been satisfied under 
jurisdiction of the Department of Public Services. 
 
3. Prior to the issuance of a building permit, the applicant shall contact the Lake Worth Drainage (LWDD) 
District’s Engineering Department and obtain any required permit(s), if necessary, and furnish to the 
City. 
Prior to the issuance of a building permit, the applicant shall contact the South Florida Water 
Management District’s (SFWMD) Engineering Department and obtain any required permit(s), if 
necessary. 
 
4. Prior to the issuance of a building permit, provide a signage and striping plan that illustrates the 
striping pattern necessary for vehicles entering and exiting the property.  
 
5. Prior to the issuance of a building permit, the Applicant shall contact and meet with a representative 
from the Public Services Refuse and Recycling Division to confirm dumpster enclosure location, 
accessibility and demand on property and that it is compatible with the requireme nts of the Department 
of Public Services. Refuse Division contact number is 561-533-7344. 
 
6. Prior to the issuance of a building permit, the applicant shall submit an Erosion Control plan and 
indicate the BMP’s and NPDES compliance practices. 
 
7. Prior to the issuance of a certificate of occupancy, the Applicant shall ensure the entire surrounding 
off-site infrastructure inclusive of the roadway, sidewalk, curbing, stormwater system piping and 
structures, valve boxes, manholes, landscaping, striping, signage, and other improvements are in the 
same condition as prior to construction. 
 
8. Prior to the issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy, the applicant shall fine grade and sod all disturbed 
areas with Bahia sod. 
 
9. Prior to the issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy, the applicant shall broom sweep all areas of the 
affected right of way and remove of all silt and debris collected as a result of construction activity.  
 
 
 



PZB No. 16-00500004 
2001 & 2003 10th Avenue North 

Major Si te Plan Amendment and Conditional Land Use Application 
Planning and Zoning Board Meeting of May 4, 2016 

Page 3 

 

 
 
 
Water Utilities: 
 
1. Confirm that the existing drainage system from connection to control structure and the control 
structure itself is of adequate size to accept the additional flows. Show the alignment of how the existing 
onsite system connects to the control structure. Show any proposed modifications to the existing system. 
 
2. Review the Exfiltration Trench Detail on Sheet C-03 with regards to the 2’-0” dimensions on the right 
side of the trench and the location of the pipe within the trench envelope.  
 
3. Complete water, sewer and drainage plans showing proposed pipe sizes, materials, conflict and 
structure sizes and elevations, as well as all pertinent site elevations.  
 
4. Show limits of right of way restoration in engineering drawings.  
 
5. Fireflow calculations based on a recent hydrant test  
 
6. Drainage Calculations, and typical sections along each property line  
 
7. Any storm water permits from SFWMD and LWDD. 
 
8. All applicable City of Lake Worth notes and details 
 
9. Provide details of the Control Structure including size, weir length and elevation, bleeder size and 
elevation, etc. 
 
10. Provide grate and invert elevations, structure and pipe sizes for the proposed drainage system. Provide 
parking lot grading, pavement highs and lows, and overland flow arrows.  
 
11. Provide cross-section(s) at the south property line and demonstrate that runoff from the 3 year-1 day 
storm event is maintained onsite. 
 
10. Provide signed and sealed engineering drainage calculations for water quality, quantity and exfiltration 
trench requirements. 
 
12. Provide geotechnical information for the determination of the hydraulic conductivity of the soil and 
the groundwater elevation. 
 
13. Provide a copy of the SFWMD surface water management permit upon receipt.  
 



PZB No. 16-00500004 
2001 & 2003 10th Avenue North 

Major Si te Plan Amendment and Conditional Land Use Application 
Planning and Zoning Board Meeting of May 4, 2016 

Page 4 

 

14. Provide Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan and details. Erosion protection shall be in place prior to 
site clearing. 
 
15. Provide grading and additional details for the proposed miniature golf area and building expansion 
including the proposed and existing finished floor elevations, the amount of additional impervious area 
and volume of area to be filled. Review requirements of the C-51 Rule. 
 
16. Provide turning radius information for the bus traffic at the southeast corner of the project. Confirm 
whether additional impervious pavement area will be required to accommodate the turning movements. 
 
Electric Utilities: 
 
1. Provide a 10 foot easement from the location of the transformer to the nearest power pole. 
 
 

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 
PZB CASE No. 16-00500008 

 
Conditional Land Use 
 

1. The subject site shall remain clear and clean of any trash or debris when the business has closed 

for the day. 
 

2.  Any activities associated with the operation of the business shall emit no more than 65 (db) 
decibels and at no time be audible above daytime ambient noise levels beyond the real property 
lines of the site.  

 
 

 
 
 
Approved by: 
 
 
_________________________ 
Maxime Ducoste 
Assistant Director for Planning and Preservation 
 
 

















EXISTING WALK


E
X
I
S
T
.
 
D

U
N

K
I
N

 
D

O
N

U
T
S
 
D

R
I
V
E
 
T
H

R
U

1
0
'

D
.
E
.

PROPOSED

FUN DEPOT

EXPANSION

U.P.

U.P.

L.P.

L.P.

U.P.

W/ LT.

U.P.

U.P.

H/C
H/C

H/C
H/C

L.P.

L.P.

L.P.

L.P.

EXISTING FUN DEPOT - #2003

L.P.

C.B.

L.P.

H/C H/C

C.B.

L.P.

1
2
'
 
U

.
E
.

L.P.

C.B.

U.P. W/ LT.

C.B.


U.P.














EXISTING CBS WALL





PROPOSED

MINIATURE GOLF


















 

M.H.

M.H.

C.B.

M.H.

1
2
'
 
U

.
E
.

L.P.

C.B.

C.B.

L
O

A
D

I
N

G

NEW

CONCRETE

EXISTING

CBS WALL

EXISTING

C.L. FENCE

(TYPICAL)

U.P. W/ LT.

NEW CONCRETE

WALK

U.P. W/ LT.

U.P.

U.P. W/ LT.

NEW BIKE RACKS

LANDING

NEW CONCRETE

WALK

NEW DUMPSTER

ENCLOSURE

WATER METER

NEW DUMPSTER

ENCLOSURES

EX. WALK

5' LANDSCAPE BUFFER

EX. CONCRETE

WALK

EX. CONCRETE

WALK

EXISTING

 GO-CART TRACK

EXISTING

RETAIL

BUILDING

EX. W.I.C.

5
'
 
D

.
E
.

1
0
'
 
D

.
E
.

SOD

SOD

SOD

EX. CABBAGE PALM
TO REMAIN
(14' O.A.)

EX. CABBAGE PALM
TO REMAIN
(10' O.A.)

EX. CABBAGE PALM
TO BE REMOVED
(12' O.A.)

EX. CABBAGE PALM
TO BE REMOVED
(10' O.A.)

EX. LIVE OAK
TO REMAIN
(12" DBH)

EX. BLACK OLIVE
TO REMAIN
(9" DBH)

EX. BLACK OLIVE
TO REMAIN
(12" DBH)

EX. LIVE OAK
TO REMAIN
(12" DBH)

EX. LIVE OAK
TO REMAIN
(9" DBH)

EX. LIVE OAK
TO REMAIN
(12" DBH)

EX. CABBAGE PALM
TO REMAIN
(10' O.A.)

EX. CABBAGE PALM
TO BE REMOVED
(12' O.A.)

EX. LIVE OAK
TO REMAIN
(8" DBH)

EX. X-MAS PALM
(TRIPLE) TO REMAIN
(10-12' O.A.)

EX. LIVE OAK
TO REMAIN
(5" DBH)

EX. X-MAS PALM
(TRIPLE) TO REMAIN
(10-12' O.A.)

EX. SILVER B-WOOD
TO REMAIN
(6" DBH)

EX. ROEBELENNII PALM (2)
TO REMAIN (TRIPLE)

EX. SILVER B-WOOD
TO REMAIN
(4" DBH)

EX. GRM. B-WOOD. (4)
TO REMAIN
(10-12' O.A.)

SOD

SOD

EX. LIVE OAK
TO REMAIN
(6" DBH)

E
X
I
S
T
I
N

G
 
S
I
D

E
W

A
L
K

EXISTING SIDEWALK

EXISTING SIDEWALK

EX. CABBAGE PALM
TO REMAIN (20' O.A.)

SOD

SOD

SOD

REMOVE EX. FICUS
HEDGE ALONG
PROPOERTY LINE

EX.

CONC.

LANDSCAPE LEGEND

LIVE OAK (QUERCUS VIRGINIANA)

ROYAL PALM (ROYSTONEA ELATA)

EXISTING TREE OR PALM TO REMAIN

FOXTAIL PALM (WODYETIA BIFURCATA)

SILVER BUTTONWOOD (CONOCARPUS ERECTUS 'SERICEUS')

CRAPE MYRTLE (LAGERSTROEMIA INDICA)

CABBAGE PALM (SABAL PALMETTO)

DAHOON HOLLY (ILEX CASSINE)

PROPOSED HEDGE MATERIAL

EX. CABBAGE PALM
TO BE REMOVED
(10' O.A.)

LOADING

SOD

NEW BENCHES

SOD

SOD

PROVIDE MULCH AROUND

NEW AND EXISTING TREES.

PROVIDE SOD BETWEEN HEDGE

AND EDGE OF ROAD

EXISTING POWERLINES

LOCATED ALONG PROPERTY LINE

EXISTING POWERLINES

LOCATED ALONG PROPERTY LINE

EXISTING POWERLINES

LOCATED ALONG PROPERTY LINE

EXISTING POWERLINES

SOD

SOD

SOD

SOD

SOD

SOD

SOD

SOD

SOD

SOD

SOD

RE

3

CIC

33

TDD

65

SOD

WB

4

CIC

51

QV

1

CIC

157

IC

2

CIC

113

TDD

50

RE

9

TDD

10

TDD

20

IC

1

CRI

3

IVO

35

SP

3

CS

10

IC

1

CIC

112

IC

3

CS

1

CE

2

CE

2

CIC

145

QV

4

TDD

38

MFR

29

TDD

45

LI

8

MFR

20

MFR

20

TDD

45

MFR

13

TDD

25

MFR

64

CE

3

QV

1

IVO

22

MFR

16

TDD

24

WB

4

CIC

39

IC

46

CLU

532

SOD

SOD

PROVIDE MULCH AROUND

NEW AND EXISTING TREES.

PROVIDE SOD BETWEEN HEDGE

AND EDGE OF ROAD

IVO

35

LI

2

CIC

15

CIC

29

WB

4

CIC

7

CIC

15

CIC

88

LI

8

QV

3

SP

3

IVO

80

QTY.SYM BOTANICAL NAME SPR.COMMON NAME NOTES:

COMMON NAME SPR.BOTANICAL NAMEKEY QTY.

HEIGHT

HEIGHT

MULCH: 

M  INDICATES MODERATELY DROUGHT TOLERANT PLANT MATERIAL
V  INDICATES VERY DROUGHT TOLERANT PLANT MATERIAL
*  ASTERISK DENOTES NATIVE PLANT MATERIAL

REMARKSO.C.

#3, 24" O.A. 18" 24" FULL & THICK TO BASESIMPSON'S STOPPERMYRCIANTHES FRAGRANSMFR 162

ALL NEW AND EXISTING LANDSCAPE AREAS SHALL BE RECEIVE 100% OVERLAP COVERAGE FROM A FULLY AUTOMATIC IRRIGATION

SOD: ST. AUGUSTINE 'FLORITAM'

CRI CRINUM AUGUSTUM 'QUEEN EMMA' QUEEN EMMA CRINUM LILY 3-4'#15, 48" O.A. 36" FULL & THICK TO BASE26

IRRIGATION WATER SOURCE: WELL & PUMP

ROYSTONEA ELATA FL. ROYAL PALM FULL & THICK, MATCHED HEIGHTS8-10' G.W.RE -12* V

LIVE OAKQUERCUS VIRGINIANAQV* V 10 12' O.A., 3" DBH FULL & THICK, SINGLE TRUNK 6' MIN.

CIC CHRYSOBALANUS ICACO 'RED TIP' RED TIP COCOPLUM 18" MIN.#3, 24" MIN. 24" FULL & THICK TO BASE759

#3, 24" O.A. 18" 24" FULL & THICK TO BASESMALL LEAF CLUSIACLU 532 CLUSIA GUTTIFERA

PLANT LIST

3" SHREDDED MELALEUCA  MULCH (OR APPROVED RECYCLED MULCH) TO BE APPLIED TO ALL PLANTING BEDS.

IRRIGATION NOTE:

SYSTEM EQUIPPED WITH A RAIN SENSOR.

* V
* V

  M
* V
  M

FULL & THICK TO GROUND, SINGLE TRUNK12' O.A., 3" DBHDAHOON HOLLYILEX CASSINE 6' MIN.IC* V 58
FULL & THICK, SINGLE TRUNK12' O.A., 3" DBHSILVER BUTTONWOODCONOCARPUS ERECTUS 'SERICEUS' 6' MIN.CS* V 16

FULL & THICK, STAGGER HEIGHTS, SLICK10-18' C.T.CABBAGE PALMSABAL PALMETTO -SP* V 15

#3, 18" O.A. 18" 24" FULL & THICK TO BASEDWF. YAUPON HOLLYIVO 349 ILEX VOMITORIA * V

TDD TRIPSACUM FLORIDANA FL. GAMA GRASS 16" #3, 20" O.A. 30" FULL & THICK TO BASE384

FULL & THICK, MULTI-TRUNK, 4' C.T.12' O.A.CRAPE MYRTLELAGERSTOEMIA INDICA 'MUSKOGEE' 6' SPD.LI  M 10
FULL & THICK, MATCHED HEIGHTS16' O.A.FOXTAIL PALMWODYETIA BIFURCATA -WB  M 18

PERCENTAGE OF NATIVE TREES AND PALMS REQUIRED: 50%
PERCENTAGE OF NATIVE TREES AND PALMS PROVIDED: 70.5%

IVO

13

TDD

13

IVO

7

CIC

43

IVO

35

CRI

7

WB

6

LIGHTPOLES, TYP.

LIGHTPOLES, TYP.

NEW SIGN

IC

1

S
P
E
E
D

 
B
U

M
P

SPEED

BUMP

SPEED

BUMP

QV

1


E
X
.
 
W

A
L
K

SOD

IVO

25

SP

3

SP

3

SP

3

SOD

GREEN BUTTONWOOD (CONOCARPUS ERECTUS)

CS

1

IC

1

IC

1

FULL & THICK, SINGLE TRUNK12' O.A., 3" DBHGREEN BUTTONWOODCONOCARPUS ERECTUS 6' MIN.CE* V 8
IVO

35

CS

4

EX. QUEEN PALM
TO BE REMOVED
(18' O.A.)

EX. CABBAGE PALM
TO REMAIN (20' O.A.)

EX. QUEEN PALM
TO BE REMOVED
(12' O.A.)

EX. QUEEN PALM
TO BE REMOVED
(16' O.A.)

EX. RED MAPLE
TO BE REMOVED
(18' O.A.)

EXISTING TREE OR PALM TO BE REMOVED

CRI

2

TDD

40

CRI

5

IVO

27

TDD

34

CRI

9

IVO

35

SOD

IC

2

CE

1

F.H.

SOD

LP-1

Scale: 1" = 30'-0"

Sheet No.

Landscape Plan

Project Name

Litterick
Landscape 
Architecture
2740 SW Martin Downs Blvd. #199
Palm City, Fl 34990
561-719-3876
JasonLA1677@yahoo.com

Landscape Architect of Record

Jason M. Litterick, RLA
(LA0001677)

NORTH

120'90'60'15'0 30'

LC26000482

1.  ALL PLANT MATERIAL SHALL BE FLORIDA NUMBER 1 OR BETTER AS DEFINED  BY THE DIVISION OF PLANT INDUSTRY

'GRADES AND STANDARDS' LATEST  EDITION.

2.  ALL LANDSCAPE SHALL CONFORM TO THE REQUIREMENTS OF THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH CODE.

3.  THE LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR SHALL NOT MAKE ANY SUBSTITUTIONS CHANGES WITHOUT THE AUTHORIZATION OF

THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH, THE OWNER  AND THE LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT.

4.  THE LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR SHALL REVIEW THE PROJECT DRAINAGE AND  UTILITY PLANS PRIOR TO

CONSTRUCTION AND AVOID ALL CONFLICTS.  THE  LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR SHALL VERIFY THE LOCATION OF ALL

UNDERGROUND UTILITIES PRIOR TO COMMENCING WORK.

5.  THE LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR ALL PERMITS.

6.  ALL TREES SHALL BE LOCATED WITHIN A MULCH PLANTING BED WITH A  MINIMUM OF TWO (2) FEET OF CLEARANCE

TO THE EDGE OF THE BED.

7.  ALL SOD SHALL BE STENOTAPHRUM SECONDATUM FLORITAM (ST. AUGUSTINE SOD).

8.  ALL VEGETATION SHALL BE SELECTED AND POSITIONED SO THAT IT DOES NOT PRESENT OBSTRUCTIONS TO THE LINE

OF SIGHT AT INTERSECTIONS PURSUANT TO FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION SIGHT LINE GUIDELINES.

9.  CLEAR VISIBILITY SHALL BE MAINTAINED BETWEEN 30" AND 8' WITHIN SIGHT VISIBILITY TRIANGLES. 15' X 30'

SIGHT VISIBILITY TRIANGLES SHALL BE PROVIDED AT THE INTERSECTIONS WITH THE PUBLIC RIGHT OF WAY.  IN

ADDITION, ALL LANDSCAPING SHALL CONFORM TO THE REQUIREMENTS OF FDOT INDEX 546.

10.  ALL LANDSCAPE ISLANDS AND BEDS WILL BE FREE OF SHELL ROCK AND CONSTRUCTION DEBRIS, EXCAVATED TO A

DEPTH OF 30 INCHES OR TO CLEAN NATIVE SOILS AND FILLED WITH THE SPECIFIED BACKFILL MIXTURE.

11.  ALL PROPOSED LANDSCAPE AREAS SHALL RECEIVE 100% OVERLAP COVERAGE FROM A FULLY AUTOMATIC

IRRIGATION SYSTEM EQUIPPED WITH A RAIN SENSING DEVICE ACCORDING TO LOCAL AND STATE CODES.  IRRIGATION

WATER SHALL BE PULLED FROM A WELL SOURCE AND CITY WATER WILL BE USED AROUND BUILDING.

12.  ALL ABOVE GROUND UTILITIES SHALL BE SCREENED FROM VIEW ON THREE SIDES WITH AN APPROPRIATE HEDGE

MATERIAL. HEIGHT OF PLANT MATERIAL AT TIME OF INSTALLATION SHALL BE AT LEAST AS TALL AS THE UTILITY BEING

SCREENED AND SHALL BE SPACED APPROPRIATELY IN ORDER TO  PROVIDE COMPLETE SCREENING OF UTILITY WITHIN

ONE YEAR OF INSTALLATION.

13.  ALL TREES NOT LOCATED WITHIN A LANDSCAPE BED SHALL RECEIVE A 4-5' DIA. MULCH RING.

14.  ALL EXOTIC AND NUISANCE VEGETATION SHALL BE REMOVED FROM SUBJECT PROPERTY PRIOR TO ANY

CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY.

15.  TREES ARE TO BE INSTALLED WITH A 10' SEPARATION FROM FROM ANY WATER OR SEWER MAIN  AND/OR SERVICE,
HYDRANTS, AND LIFT STATIONS. IF A 10' SEPARATION CANNOT BE ACHIEVED, THE TREE CAN BE INSTALLED WITH A

ROOT BARRIER SYSTEM. HOWEVER IN NO CASE SHALL A TREE ENCROACH INTO A PBCUE WITHOUT PRIOR PBCWUD

APPROVAL AND ONLY SOD CAN BE INSTALLED WITHIN 7.5' OF A FIRE HYDRANT UNLESS OTHERWISE APPROVED BY THE

FIRE MARSHALL.

16.  ALL PLANT MATERIAL SHALL BE INSTALLED AT THE HEIGHT, SPREAD AND DBH SHOWN ON THE PLANT LIST,

CONTAINER SIZES ARE GIVEN AS A SUGGESTION ONLY.

Know what's below
Call before you dig.

R

C
ity

 o
f L

ak
e 

W
or

th
, F

lo
rid

a
FU

N
 D

EP
O

T

Approved:

Designed:

Revisions:

Job no.

Date:

Drawn:

JML

1/26/16

JML

JML

LOT SIZE: 291,670 S.F. (6.69 ACRES)

LANDSCAPE AREA PROVIDED (OPEN SPACE): 98,685 S.F. (34.98%)

VEHICULAR USE AREA: 76,838.67 S.F.

INTERIOR LANDSCAPE AREA REQ'D.: 15,367.7 S.F. (MIN. 20% OF VEH. USE AREA)

INTERIOR LANDSCAPE AREA PROVIDED: 16,197.5 S.F. (21.1%)

INTERIOR TREES REQUIRED: 62 TREES (1/250 S.F. OF REQ'D INT. LAND. AREA)

INTERIOR TREES PROVIDED: 65 TREES

MAX. # OF PALMS ALLOWED: 16 PALMS (25% MAX)

# OF PALMS PROVIDED: 16 PALMS (25%)

3/31/16



PLANTING DETAILS

TYPE AND THICKNESS)

PALM PLANTING DETAIL

BACKFILL MIXTURE

EXISTING SOIL

BACKFILL MIXTURE 
COMPACTED MOUND OF 

3" TALL WATER CONTAINMENT SAUCER

MULCH (SEE PLANT LIST FOR

2" X 4" WOOD BRACES (4" X 4" FOR LARGER

3 - 5 WOOD BATTENS (2"X4"X16")

STEEL BANDING (1" WIDE)

PLANTING SPECIFICATIONS

CONTAINER GROWN PLANTS SHALL, WHEN DELIVERED, SHALL HAVE SUFFICIENCY GROWTH TO HOLD EARTH INTACT WHEN

REMOVED FROM CONTAINER AND SHALL NOT BE ROOT BOUND.  PLANT PITS FOR CONTAINER MATERIALS SHALL BE FORMED FLAT

ON THE BOTTOM TO AVOID AIR POCKETS AT THE BOTTOM OF ROOT BALLS AND CONTAINERS SHALL BE REMOVED CAREFULLY TO

PREVENT DAMAGE TO THE PLANT OR ROOT SYSTEMS.

TEST TREE PITS WITH WATER BEFORE PLANTING TO ASSURE PROPER DRAINAGE PERCOLATION IS AVAILABLE.  PITS WHICH ARE

FOUND NOT TO BE ADEQUATELY DRAINING SHALL BE EXCAVATED TO A A DEPTH SUFFICIENT FOR DRAINAGE AND BACKFILLING

WITH GRAVEL OR CRUSHED ROCK.  NO ALLOWANCES WILL BE MADE FOR LOST PLANTS DUE TO IMPROPER DRAINAGE.

PLANTING BED PREPARATION

ALL PLANTING BEDS SHALL BE PROPERLY PREPARED PRIOR TO THE COMMENCEMENT OF ANY PLANTING. PLANTING AREAS,

INCLUDING LAWNS SHALL BE FREE OF ALL WEEDS AND NUISANCE VEGETATION. IF TORPEDO GRASS (PANICUM REPENS) IS PRESENT

OR ENCOUNTERED DURING PLANTING, THE LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR SHALL STOP ALL PLANTING UNTIL IT CAN BE DEMONSTRATED

THAT IT HAS BEEN COMPLETELY REMOVED OR ERADICATED. THERE SHALL BE NO EXCEPTIONS TO THIS PROVISION.

ALL LANDSCAPE ISLANDS AND BEDS WILL BE FREE OF SHELL ROCK AND CONSTRUCTION DEBRIS AND WILL BE EXCAVATED TO A

DEPTH OF 30 INCHES OR TO CLEAN, NATIVE SOIL AND FILLED WITH THE SPECIFIED BACKFILL MIXTURE.

PLANTING TREES

EXCAVATE PIT AS PER PLANTING DETAILS.  COMPACT LAYER OF TOPSOIL IN PIT WITH A SLIGHTLY DISHED GRADE TO CENTER.

BACKFILL AROUND BALL WITH TOPSOIL AND SLIGHTLY COMPACT, WATER THOROUGHLY AS LAYERS ARE PLACED TO ELIMINATE

VOIDS AND AIR POCKETS.  BUILD A 6" HIGH BERM OF TOPSOIL BEYOND EDGE OF EXCAVATION.  APPLY 3" (AFTER SETTLEMENT) OF

MULCH.

PRUNE TREE TO REMOVE DAMAGED BRANCHES, IMPROVE NATURAL SHAPE AND THIN OUT STRUCTURE. DO NOT REMOVE MORE

THAN 15% OF BRANCHES.  DO NOT PRUNE BACK TERMINAL LEADER.

GUY AND STAKE TREE IN ACCORDANCE WIT THE STAKING DETAILS IMMEDIATELY AFTER PLANTING.

PLANTING SHRUBS

LAYOUT SHRUBS TO CREATE A CONTINUOUS SMOOTH FRONT LINE AND FILL IN BEHIND.

EXCAVATE PIT OR TRENCH TO 1-1/2 TIMES THE DIAMETER OF THE BALLS OR CONTAINERS OR 1'-0" WIDER THAN THE SPREAD OF

ROOTS AND 3" DEEPER THAN REQUIRED FOR POSITIONING AT PROPER HEIGHT.  COMPACT A LAYER OF TOPSOIL IN BOTTOM

BEFORE PLACING PLANTS.  BACKFILL AROUND PLANTS WITH PLANTING MIXTURE, COMPACTED TO ELIMINATE VOIDS AND AIR

POCKETS.  FORM GRADE SLIGHTLY DISHED AND BERMED AT EDGES OF EXCAVATION.  APPLY 3" OF MULCH.

PRUNE SHRUBS TO REMOVE DAMAGED BRANCHES, IMPROVE NATURAL SHAPE AND THIN OUT STRUCTURE.  DO NOT REMOVE MORE

THAN 15% OF BRANCHES.

PLANTING GROUND COVER

LOOSEN SUBGRADE TO DEPTH OF 4" IN AREAS WHERE TOPSOIL HAS BEEN STRIPPED AND SPREAD SMOOTH.

SPACE PLANTS AS OTHERWISE INDICATED.  DIG HOLES LARGE ENOUGH TO ALLOW SPREADING OF ROOTS.  COMPACT BACKFILL TO

ELIMINATE VOIDS AND LEAVE GRADE SLIGHTLY DISHED AT EACH PLANT.  WATER THOROUGHLY.  APPLY 3" OF MULCH OVER ENTIRE

PLANTING BED, LIFTING PLANT FOLIAGE ABOVE MULCH.  PURPLE QUEEN GROUNDCOVER, IF SPECIFIED, SHALL ONLY RECEIVE 1"

OF MULCH.

DURING PERIODS OF HOT SUN AND/OR WIND AT TIME OF PLANTING, PROVIDE PROTECTIVE COVER FOR SEVERAL DAYS OR AS
NEEDED.

PLANTING SOD

SODDING:  SOD TYPE SPECIFIED ON PLANT LIST SHALL BE MACHINE STRIPPED NOT MORE THAN 24 HOURS PRIOR TO LAYING.  SOD

SHALL BE FIRM, TOUGH TEXTURE, HAVING A COMPACT GROWTH OF GRASS WITH GOOD ROOT DEVELOPMENT, AND SHALL CONTAIN

NO BERMUDA GRASS, WEEDS OR ANY OTHER OBJECTIONABLE VEGETATION.

LOOSEN SUBGRADE TO DEPTH OF 4" AND GRADE WITH TOPSOIL EITHER PROVIDED ON SITE OR IMPORTED TO FINISH DESIGN

ELEVATIONS.  IT SHALL BE THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR TO FINISH GRADE ALL LANDSCAPE AREAS,

ELIMINATING ALL BUMPS, DEPRESSIONS, STICKS, STONES AND OTHER DEBRIS. ROLL PREPARED LAWN SURFACE.  WATER

THOROUGHLY, BUT DO NOT CREATE MUDDY SOIL CONDITION.

FERTILIZE SOIL AT THE RATE OF APPROXIMATELY 10 LBS. PER 1,000 S.F.  SPREAD FERTILIZER OVER THE AREA TO RECEIVE GRASS

BY USING AN APPROVED DISTRIBUTION DEVICE CALIBRATED TO DISTRIBUTE THE APPROPRIATE QUANTITY.  DO NOT FERTILIZE

WHEN WIND VELOCITY EXCEEDS 15 M.P.H. THOROUGHLY MIX FERTILIZER INTO THE TOP 2" OF TOPSOIL.

LAY SOD STRIPS WITH TIGHT JOINTS, DO NOT OVERLAP, STAGGER STRIPS TO OFFSET JOINTS IN ADJACENT COURSES. WORK SIFTED

SOIL MIX INTO MINOR CRACKS BETWEEN PIECES OF SOD AND REMOVE EXCESS SOIL DEPOSITS FROM SODDED AREAS.  SOD ON

SLOPES GREATER THAN 3:1 SHALL BE STAKED IN PLACE.  ROLL OR STAMP LIGHTLY AND WATER THOROUGHLY WITH A FINE SPRAY

IMMEDIATELY AFTER PLANTING.

5. MISCELLANEOUS LANDSCAPE WORK

LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE

MAINTAIN LANDSCAPE WORK IMMEDIATELY AFTER PLANTING AND UNTIL FINAL ACCEPTANCE IS ISSUED BY THE OWNER'S

REPRESENTATIVE.  INCLUDE WATERING, WEEDING, CULTIVATING, RESTORATION OF GRADE, MOWING AND TRIMMING GRASS,

PRUNING TREES AND SHRUBS, PROTECTION FROM INSECTS AND DISEASES, FERTILIZING AND SIMILAR OPERATIONS AS NEEDED TO

INSURE NORMAL GROWTH AND GOOD HEALTH FOR LIVE PLANT MATERIAL.  SETTLED PLANTS SHALL BE RESET TO PROPER GRADE,

PLANTING SAUCERS RESTORED, AND DEFECTIVE WORK CORRECTED.

IN THE EVENT OF SERIOUS DAMAGE FROM INSECTS OR DISEASE PRIOR TO FINAL ACCEPTANCE, THE PLANTS SHALL BE TREATED BY

PREVENTATIVE OR REMEDIAL MEASURES APPROVED FOR GOOD HORTICULTURAL PRACTICE AT NO ADDITIONAL COST TO THE

OWNER.

CLEAN UP

THE LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR SHALL AT ALL TIMES KEEP THE PREMISES FREE FROM ACCUMULATION OF WASTE MATERIALS OR

DEBRIS CAUSED BY HIS CREWS DURING THE PERFORMANCE OF THE WORK.  UPON COMPLETION OF THE WORK, THE CONTRACTOR

SHALL PROMPTLY REMOVE ALL WASTE MATERIALS, DEBRIS, UNUSED PLANT MATERIAL, EMPTY PLANT CONTAINERS AND ALL

EQUIPMENT FROM THE PROJECT SITE.

ANY SOIL, PEAT OR SIMILAR MATERIAL WHICH HAS BEEN BROUGHT ONTO ANY PAVED AREAS SHALL BE REMOVED PROMPTLY

KEEPING THESE AREAS CLEAN AS THE WORK PROGRESSES.  UPON COMPLETION OF THE PLANTING, ALL EXCESS SOIL, STONES AND

DEBRIS WHICH HAS NOT BEEN PREVIOUSLY CLEANED UP SHALL BE REMOVED FROM THE SITE.

INSPECTION & ACCEPTANCE

THE LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR SHALL NOTIFY THE LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT UPON COMPLETION OF THE WORK TO REQUEST A FINAL

INSPECTION OF THE INSTALLATION AND PLANT MATERIALS. THE LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT AND/OR OWNER'S REPRESENTATIVE WILL

NOTIFY THE LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR OF ANY DEFICIENCIES VIA A 'PUNCH LIST' WHICH SHALL BE PROMPTLY CORRECTED BY THE

LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR. CONDITIONAL LANDSCAPE ACCEPTANCE OF ALL PLANT MATERIAL AND WORKMANSHIP WILL BE GIVEN

IN WRITING BY THE LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT AFTER ALL 'PUNCH LIST' ITEMS HAVE BEEN CORRECTED AND ANY PLANT

REPLACEMENTS MADE. THIS ACCEPTANCE WILL BEGIN THE WARRANTEE PERIOD. DEFICIENCIES NOTED AFTER THE CONDITIONAL

LANDSCAPE ACCEPTANCE SHALL BE RECTIFIED DURING THE WARRANTEE PERIOD AND PRIOR TO FINAL LANDSCAPE ACCEPTANCE.

GUARANTEE AND REPLACEMENT

ALL PLANT MATERIAL AND WORKMANSHIP SHALL BE GUARANTEED BY THE LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR FOR A PERIOD OF SIX (6)

MONTHS FROM THE DATE OF CONDITIONAL LANDSCAPE ACCEPTANCE BY THE LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT. ANY PLANT MATERIAL OR

WORKMANSHIP THAT IS DEFICIENT OR HAS DIED SHALL BE REPLACED AT THE SAME SPECIFICATION NOTED IN THE APPROVED

LANDSCAPE PLANS. REPLACEMENTS SHALL BE MADE BY THE LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR WITHIN TWO (2) WEEKS OF NOTIFICATION

BY THE LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT OR OWNER'S REPRESENTATIVE AT NO ADDITIONAL COST TO THE OWNER. WARRANTEES OF

REPLACEMENT MATERIAL SHALL BE SIX (6) MONTHS FROM THE DATE OF REPLACEMENT INSTALLATION. DEATH OR DAMAGE

RESULTING FROM LIGHTNING, VANDALISM OR AUTOMOBILES OR BY NEGLIGENCE BY THE OWNER SHALL NOT BE THE

RESPONSIBILITY OF THE LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR. UNLESS OTHERWISE ARRANGED WITH THE OWNER, THE CONTRACTOR IS

RESPONSIBLE FOR GENERAL PLANT MAINTENANCE INCLUDING WATERING AND MOWING UP UNTIL THE DATE OF CONDITIONAL

ACCEPTANCE.

PLANT MATERIAL SUBSTITUTION

THERE WILL BE NO SUBSTITUTION OF PLANT MATERIAL UNLESS AUTHORIZED BY THE LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT AND/OR OWNER.

THIS INCLUDES SPECIES AND SIZE OF PLANT MATERIAL.

1. SCOPE OF WORK

LANDSCAPE CONTRACT WORK INCLUDES, BUT IS NOT LIMITED TO, SOIL PREPARATION, FINE OR FINISH GRADING, FURNISHING

AND INSTALLING PLANT MATERIAL, WATERING, STAKING, GUYING AND MULCHING.

ALL LABOR AND MATERIAL FOR SOIL AMENDMENTS AND FERTILIZER THAT IS REQUIRED TO INSURE THE SUCCESSFUL

ESTABLISHMENT AND SURVIVAL OF THE PROPOSED VEGETATION, AS WELL AS ALL THE COST FOR THE REMOVAL OF UNSUITABLE OR

EXCESS BACKFILL MATERIAL, SHALL BE INCLUDED IN THE CONTRACTOR'S BID TO PERFORM THE WORK REPRESENTED IN THIS PLAN

SET.

2. QUALITY ASSURANCE

LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR MUST BE REGULARLY ENGAGED IN THE INSTALLATION OF LIVING PLANT MATERIAL.  LABOR CREWS

SHALL BE CONTROLLED AND DIRECTED BY A LANDSCAPE FOREMAN WELL VERSED IN LANDSCAPE INSTALLATION, PLANT

MATERIALS, READING PLANS AND COORDINATION BETWEEN THE JOB AND NURSERY.

THE LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR AND IRRIGATION CONTRACTOR SHALL REVIEW LAYOUT AND SCHEDULING PRIOR TO INSTALLATION

OF MATERIAL.  MINOR ADJUSTMENT TO IRRIGATION DESIGN MAY BE MADE IN RESPONSE TO THE NEEDS OF SPECIFIC PLANT

MATERIAL.  THE LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT MUST BE NOTIFIED OF SUCH CHANGES.

3. MATERIALS

PLANT SIZE AND QUALITY

PLANT SPECIES AND SIZES SHALL CONFORM TO THOSE INDICATED ON THE DRAWINGS, NOMENCLATURE SHALL CONFORM TO

STANDARD PLANT NAMES, 1942 EDITION.  ALL NURSERY STOCK SHALL BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH GRADES AND STANDARDS FOR

NURSERY PLANTS PARTS I & II, LATEST EDITION PUBLISHED BY THE FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE AND CONSUMER

SERVICES, UNLESS SPECIFIED OTHERWISE.  ALL PLANTS SHALL BE FLORIDA GRADE NUMBER 1 OR BETTER AS DETERMINED BY THE

FLORIDA DIVISION OF PLANT INDUSTRY.  TIGHTLY KNIT PLANT, SO TRAINED OR FAVORED IN ITS DEVELOPMENT THAT FIRST

APPEARANCE IS UNQUESTIONABLE AND IT IS OUTSTANDINGLY SUPERIOR IN FORM, NUMBER OF BRANCHES, COMPACTNESS AND

SYMMETRY.  ALL PLANTS SHALL BE FRESHLY DUG, SOUND, HEALTHY, VIGOROUS, WELL BRANCHED AND FREE OF DISEASE AND

INSECT EGGS AND LARVAE AND SHALL HAVE ADEQUATE ROOT SYSTEMS.  TREES AND PALMS FOR PLANTING ROWS SHALL BE

UNIFORM IN SIZE AND SHAPE.  ALL MATERIALS SHALL BE SUBJECT TO APPROVAL BY THE LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT.  THE PLANTS

FURNISHED SHALL BE NORMAL FOR THE VARIETY AND FLORIDA NUMBER 1.  PLANTS SHALL BE PRUNED PRIOR TO DELIVERY ONLY

UPON THE APPROVAL OF THE LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT.  ALL PLANTS SHALL BE FREE OF WEEDS OR ANY OTHER OBJECTIONABLE

VEGETATION.

ALL CONTAINER GROWN MATERIAL SHALL BE HEALTHY, VIGOROUS, WELL-ROOTED PLANTS AND ESTABLISHED IN THE CONTAINER

IN WHICH THEY ARE SOLD.  THE PLANTS SHALL HAVE TOPS OF GOOD QUALITY AND BE IN A HEALTHY GROWING CONDITION.

CONTAINER GROWN PLANTS SHALL HAVE A DEVELOPED ROOT STRUCTURE SO THAT THE ROOT MASS STAYS IN TACT WHEN

REMOVED FROM CONTAINER. IN NO CASE SHALL THE PLANT CONTAIN CIRCLING ROOTS NOR BE ROOT-BOUND.

QUANTITIES

ALL QUANTITIES INDICATED ON THE PLANT LIST ARE INTENDED AS A GUIDE FOR THE BIDDERS AND DOES NOT RELIEVE THE BIDDER

OF HIS RESPONSIBILITY TO DO A COMPREHENSIVE PLANT TAKE OFF.  SHALL A DISCREPANCY OCCUR BETWEEN THE BIDDER'S TAKE

OFF AN THE PLANT LIST QUANTITY, THE LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT IS TO BE NOTIFIED FOR CLARIFICATION PRIOR TO THE

SUBMISSION OF THE BID.

MULCH

MULCH SHALL BE A SHREDDED VARIETY AS SPECIFIED IN THE PLANT LIST. ALL MULCH IS TO BE APPLIED TO A DEPTH OF 3' EXCEPT

FOR THOSE SPECIFIC SITUATIONS SHOWN BELOW IN SECTION 4 AND IN PLANTING DETAILS.

FERTILIZER

FERTILIZER IN BACKFILL MIXTURE FOR ALL PLANTS SHALL CONSIST OF 'MILORGANITE' ACTIVATED SLUDGE MIXED WITH THE

BACKFILL AT A RATE OF NOT LESS THAN 50 LBS. PER CUBIC YARD.

FERTILIZER FOR TREES AND SHRUBS MAY BE TABLET FORM OR GRANULAR.  GRANULAR FERTILIZER SHALL BE UNIFORM IN

COMPOSITION, DRY AND FREE-FLOWING.  THIS FERTILIZER SHALL BE DELIVERED TO THE SITE IN THE ORIGINAL UNOPENED BAGS,

EACH BEARING THE MANUFACTURER'S STATEMENT OF ANALYSIS. FERTILIZE ALL NEW PLANTINGS PER RATES SHOWN BELOW:

TREES:

FERTLIZE NEW TREES WITH 'MILORGANITE' AT THE FOLLOWING RATES:

              - 8' AND SMALLER:             2-4 LBS.

              - 8'-12' TALL:                     4-6 LBS.

              - 12' AND TALER:                6-8 LBS.

(3 CUPS = 1 LB.)

SHRUBS:

FERTILIZE NEW SHRUBS AND ACCENTS WITH 'MILORGANITE' AT THE FOLLOWING RATES:

              - 4-6" POTS:                      1
4 CUP

              - 1 GAL.:                            1
2 CUP

              - 3 GAL.:                            1 CUP

              - 7-10 GAL.:                       2 CUPS

              - 15 GAL. AND GREATER:   3 CUPS

PALM TREES:

FERTILIZE NEW PALM TREES WITH A "PALM SPECIAL" FERTILIZER IN SLOW RELEASE FORM. FERTILIZER SHALL CONTAIN AN

ADDITIONAL MAGNESIUM AND MICRO-NUTRIENT AMENDMENT

SOIL

PLANTING SOIL SHALL BE SANDY LOAM AND SHALL CONTAIN A 25% MINIMUM AMOUNT OF DECOMPOSED ORGANIC MATTER.

PLANTING SOIL SHALL BE FREE OF CLAY, STONES, PLANTS, ROOTS AND OTHER FOREIGN MATERIALS WHICH MIGHT BE A

HINDRANCE TO PLANTING OPERATIONS OR BE DETRIMENTAL TO GOOD PLANT GROWTH.  SOIL SHALL BE DELIVERED IN A LOOSE

FRIABLE CONDITION AND APPLIED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE PLANTING SPECIFICATIONS.

ALL SHRUBS, TREES AND GROUND COVER WILL HAVE IMPROVED SOIL AS PER PLANTING SOIL NOTES. THE SOILS SHALL BE PLACED

IN THE HOLE DURING PLANTING. TOP DRESSING ONLY IS NOT ACCEPTABLE.

DO NOT ALLOW AIR POCKETS TO FORM WHEN BACKFILLING. ALL TREES SHALL BE SPIKED IN UTILIZING WATER AND A TREE BAR.

WATER

WATER FOR PLANTING WILL BE AVAILABLE AT THE SITE AND WILL BE PROVIDED BY THE OWNER.  LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR SHALL

NOT ASSUME THAT THE IRRIGATION SYSTEM WILL BE OPERATIONAL AT THE TIME OF PLANTING.  IT IS THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE

LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR TO PROVIDE ALL THE REQUIRED WATER NECESSARY TO MAINTAIN THE PLANT MATERIAL IN A HEALTHY

GROWING CONDITION  THE WATERING MAY INCLUDE DEEP WATERING OF TREES ANT THE WATERING OF SHRUB AND GROUND

COVER AREAS.  ANY PLANT MATERIALS THAT DIE OR THAT ARE NOT IN A HEALTHY GROWING CONDITION DUE TO LACK OF WATER

SHALL BE REPLACED BY THE LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR AT NO ADDITIONAL COST TO THE OWNER.

4. EXECUTION

FIELD GROWN TREES AND PALMS PREVIOUSLY ROOT PRUNED SHALL OBTAIN A ROOT BALL WITH SUFFICIENT ROOTS FOR

CONTINUED GROWTH WITHOUT RESULTING SHOCK.

CONTRACTOR SHALL NOT MARK OR SCAR TRUNK IN ANY FASHION.

PLANTS SHALL BE WATERED AS NECESSARY OR WITHIN 24 HOURS AFTER NOTIFICATION BY THE LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT.

THE LOCATIONS OF PLANTS, AS SHOWN IN THESE PLANS, ARE APPROXIMATE.  THE FINAL LOCATIONS MAY BE ADJUSTED TO

ACCOMMODATE UNFORESEEN FIELD CONDITIONS.  MAJOR ADJUSTMENTS TO THE LAYOUT ARE TO BE APPROVED BY THE

LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT.

ALL PLASTIC FABRIC SHALL BE REMOVED FROM PLANT MATERIAL AT TIME OF INSTALLATION.

ALL TREES MUST BE STAKED AS SHOWN ON THE PLANTING DETAILS WITHIN 24 HOURS OF PLANTING.  STAKES TO REMAIN FOR A

MINIMUM OF 9 MONTHS, BUT NO LONGER THAN 18 MONTHS.  CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR MAINTENANCE AND REMOVAL OF

THE STAKES.

ALL TREES MUST BE PRUNED AS PER LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT'S DIRECTION. SABAL PALMS MAY BE HURRICANE CUT.

ALL SHRUBS, TREES AND GROUND COVER WILL HAVE IMPROVED SOIL AS PER PLANTING SOIL NOTES. THE SOILS SHALL BE PLACED

IN THE HOLE DURING PLANTING. TOP DRESSING ONLY IS NOT ACCEPTABLE.

DO NOT ALLOW AIR POCKETS TO FORM WHEN BACKFILLING. ALL TREES SHALL BE SPIKED IN UTILIZING WATER AND A TREE BAR.

AFTER FINAL SETTLING OF BALLED AND BURLAPED PLANTS, LOOSEN BURLAP WRAPPING EXPOSING THE TOP OF THE ROOTBALL,

LEAVING THE BALL UNBROKEN.  REMOVE EXCESS AMOUNTS OF BURLAP TO ELIMINATE VOIDS WHICH MAY BE CAUSED UPON

DECOMPOSITION.

PLANT LIST

BANDING IS NOT RUBBING AGAINST TREE)

5 LAYERS OF BURLAP

DO NOT NAIL TO TREE (INSURE STEEL

30-45°

PALMS, I.E. ROYALS, DATE PALMS)

(SEE SPECIFICATIONS)

LAWN
LAWN

REMOVE TOP 1/3 OF BURLAP, REMOVE ALL PLASTIC 

PLANTING HOLE TO BE 1-1/2

TIMES THE DIA. OF ROOTBALL

FERTILIZE WITH 'MILORGANITE'
OR 'PALM SPECIAL' FERTILIZER

2" X 4" WOOD BRACES (MIN. 3)

SECURE TO BATTENS W/ 3 - 20D NAILS,

TRUNKS SHALL HAVE NO 
SCRAPES OR SCARRING

MAX. 1/2" OF MULCH WITHIN 6" 
OF TRUNK OF PALM

PER SPECIFICATIONS WHILE 

HEIGHT OF GREY WOOD (G.W.)
OR CLEAR WOOD (C.W.)

HEIGHT OF CLEAR TRUNK (C.T.)

OVERALL HEIGHT OF PALM (O.A.)

PROTECT BUD BY TYING FRONDS

BACKFILLING PLANTING HOLE

(KNOCK DOWN FOLLOWING PLANT ESTABLISHMENT)

(REM. AFTER PLANT EST., 1 YR. MAX)

LOCATE BRACING WITHIN
MULCHED LANDSCAPE BED 

EQUALLY SPACED AROUND PALM,

TYPE AND THICKNESS)

TREE PLANTING DETAIL

BACKFILL MIXTURE

EXISTING SOIL

BACKFILL MIXTURE 
COMPACTED MOUND OF 

3" TALL WATER CONTAINMENT SAUCER

MULCH (SEE PLANT LIST FOR

PROVIDE RUBBER HOSE WHERE 
STRAPPING IS ATTACHED TO TREE

(SEE SPECIFICATIONS)

LAWN
LAWN

REMOVE TOP 1/3 OF BURLAP, REMOVE ALL PLASTIC 

PLANTING HOLE TO BE 1-1/2

TIMES THE DIA. OF ROOTBALL

FERTILIZE WITH 'MILORGANITE'

TRUNKS SHALL HAVE NO 
SCRAPES OR SCARRING

MAX. 1/2" OF MULCH WITHIN 6" 
OF TRUNK OF TREE

PER SPECIFICATIONS WHILE 

OVERALL HEIGHT OF TREE (O.A.)

BACKFILLING PLANTING HOLE

(KNOCK DOWN FOLLOWING PLANT ESTABLISHMENT)

LOCATE STRAPPING WITHIN
MULCHED LANDSCAPE BED 

VISABLE TRUNK FLARE VISABLE TRUNK FLARE

TREE CANOPY SPREAD (SPD.)

EQUAL. USE FOR TREES 1-1/2" - 4-1/2" CAL.
"LAWSON" TREE STAKING KIT OR APPROVED

EXTEND OUT FROM TRUNK 2"

(REM. AFTER PLANT EST., 1 YR. MAX)

TREES 5" CAL. OR LARGER SHALL UTILIZE 
THE 'PALM STAKING DETAIL' FOR BRACING.

TYPE AND THICKNESS)

SHRUB & GROUNDCOVER PLANTING DETAIL

BACKFILL MIXTURE

EXISTING SOIL

BACKFILL MIXTURE 
COMPACTED MOUND OF 

3" TALL WATER CONTAINMENT SAUCER

MULCH (SEE PLANT LIST FOR

(SEE SPECIFICATIONS)

LAWN
LAWN

PLANTING HOLE TO BE 1-1/2

TIMES THE DIA. OF ROOTBALL

FERTILIZE WITH 'MILORGANITE'

MAX. 1/2" OF MULCH WITHIN 3" 
OF TRUNK OF SHRUB OR G.C.

PER SPECIFICATIONS WHILE 

OVERALL HEIGHT OF SHRUB (O.A.)

BACKFILLING PLANTING HOLE

(KNOCK DOWN FOLLOWING PLANT ESTABLISHMENT)

VISABLE TRUNK FLARE

SHRUB SPREAD (SPD.)

O.C.

SPACING

TRIANGULAR PLANT SPACING (RECOMMENDED)

PERPENDICULAR (90°) PLANT SPACING

O.C.

SPACING

O
.C

.

SP
AC

IN
G

O.C.

SPACING

SHRUB OR GROUNDCOVER

TYPE AND THICKNESS)

ROOT BARRIER DETAIL

3" TALL WATER CONTAINMENT SAUCER

MULCH (SEE PLANT LIST FOR

LAWN
LAWN

(KNOCK DOWN FOLLOWING PLANT ESTABLISHMENT)

TRUNK OF TREE OR PALM

36" DEEP ROOT BARRIER "BIOBARRIER"

3' MIN. TO

ROOTBALL

ROOTBALL

WATER AND/OR SEWER UTILITY

15' MIN. W/ OUT ROOT BARRIER (TREE)

10' MIN. W/ ROOT BARRIER (TREE)

10' MIN. W/ OUT ROOT BARRIER (PALM)

7' MIN. W/ ROOT BARRIER (PALM)

SEE SHEET LP-1 FOR PLANT LIST

LP-2

Scale: Not to Scale

Sheet No.Landscape Specifications

Project Name

Litterick
Landscape 
Architecture
2740 SW Martin Downs Blvd. #199
Palm City, Fl 34990
561-719-3876
JasonLA1677@yahoo.com

Landscape Architect of Record

Jason M. Litterick, RLA
(LA0001677)

LC26000482

Approved:

Designed:

Revisions:

Job no.

Date:

Drawn: JML

JML

1/26/16

JML

& Planting Details

C
ity

 o
f L

ak
e 

W
or

th
, F

lo
rid

a
FU

N
 D

EP
O

T

3/31/16



EXISTING WALK


E
X
I
S
T
.
 
D

U
N

K
I
N

 
D

O
N

U
T
S
 
D

R
I
V
E
 
T
H

R
U

1
0
'

D
.
E
.

PROPOSED

FUN DEPOT

EXPANSION

U.P.

U.P.

L.P.

L.P.

U.P.

W/ LT.

U.P.

U.P.

H/C
H/C

H/C
H/C

L.P.

L.P.

L.P.

L.P.

EXISTING FUN DEPOT - #2003

L.P.

C.B.

L.P.

H/C H/C

C.B.

L.P.

1
2
'
 
U

.
E
.

L.P.

C.B.

U.P. W/ LT.

C.B.


U.P.














EXISTING CBS WALL





PROPOSED

MINIATURE GOLF


















 

M.H.

M.H.

C.B.

M.H.

1
2
'
 
U

.
E
.

L.P.

C.B.

C.B.

L
O

A
D

I
N

G

NEW

CONCRETE

EXISTING

CBS WALL

EXISTING

C.L. FENCE

(TYPICAL)

U.P. W/ LT.

NEW CONCRETE

WALK

U.P. W/ LT.

U.P.

U.P. W/ LT.

NEW BIKE RACKS

LANDING

NEW CONCRETE

WALK

NEW DUMPSTER

ENCLOSURE

WATER METER

NEW DUMPSTER

ENCLOSURES

EX. WALK

5' LANDSCAPE BUFFER

EX. CONCRETE

WALK

EX. CONCRETE

WALK

EXISTING

 GO-CART TRACK

EXISTING

RETAIL

BUILDING

EX. W.I.C.

5
'
 
D

.
E
.

1
0
'
 
D

.
E
.

EX. CABBAGE PALM
TO REMAIN
(14' O.A.)

EX. CABBAGE PALM
TO REMAIN
(10' O.A.)

EX. CABBAGE PALM
TO BE REMOVED
(12' O.A.)

EX. CABBAGE PALM
TO BE REMOVED
(10' O.A.)

EX. LIVE OAK
TO REMAIN
(12" DBH)

EX. BLACK OLIVE
TO REMAIN
(9" DBH)

EX. BLACK OLIVE
TO REMAIN
(12" DBH)

EX. LIVE OAK
TO REMAIN
(12" DBH)

EX. LIVE OAK
TO REMAIN
(9" DBH)

EX. LIVE OAK
TO REMAIN
(12" DBH)

EX. CABBAGE PALM
TO REMAIN
(10' O.A.)

EX. CABBAGE PALM
TO BE REMOVED
(12' O.A.)

EX. LIVE OAK
TO REMAIN
(8" DBH)

EX. X-MAS PALM
(TRIPLE) TO REMAIN
(10-12' O.A.)

EX. LIVE OAK
TO REMAIN
(5" DBH)

EX. X-MAS PALM
(TRIPLE) TO REMAIN
(10-12' O.A.)

EX. SILVER B-WOOD
TO REMAIN
(6" DBH)

EX. ROEBELENNII PALM (2)
TO REMAIN (TRIPLE)

EX. SILVER B-WOOD
TO REMAIN
(4" DBH)

EX. GRM. B-WOOD. (4)
TO REMAIN
(10-12' O.A.)

EX. LIVE OAK
TO REMAIN
(6" DBH)

E
X
I
S
T
I
N

G
 
S
I
D

E
W

A
L
K

EXISTING SIDEWALK

EXISTING SIDEWALK

EX. CABBAGE PALM
TO REMAIN (20' O.A.)

REMOVE EX. FICUS
HEDGE ALONG
PROPOERTY LINE

EX.

CONC.

EX. CABBAGE PALM
TO BE REMOVED
(10' O.A.)

LOADING

NEW BENCHES

EXISTING POWERLINES

LOCATED ALONG PROPERTY LINE

EXISTING POWERLINES

LOCATED ALONG PROPERTY LINE

EXISTING POWERLINES

LOCATED ALONG PROPERTY LINE

EXISTING POWERLINES

SOD

SOD

SOD

LIGHTPOLES, TYP.

LIGHTPOLES, TYP.

NEW SIGN

S
P
E
E
D

 
B
U

M
P

SPEED

BUMP

SPEED

BUMP


E
X
.
 
W

A
L
K

EX. QUEEN PALM
TO BE REMOVED
(18' O.A.)

EX. CABBAGE PALM
TO REMAIN (20' O.A.)

EX. QUEEN PALM
TO BE REMOVED
(12' O.A.)

EX. QUEEN PALM
TO BE REMOVED
(16' O.A.)

EX. RED MAPLE
TO BE REMOVED
(18' O.A.)

LP-3

Scale: 1" = 30'-0"

Sheet No.

Disposition Plan

Project Name

Litterick
Landscape 
Architecture
2740 SW Martin Downs Blvd. #199
Palm City, Fl 34990
561-719-3876
JasonLA1677@yahoo.com

Landscape Architect of Record

Jason M. Litterick, RLA
(LA0001677)

NORTH

120'90'60'15'0 30'

LC26000482

Know what's below
Call before you dig.

R

C
ity

 o
f L

ak
e 

W
or

th
, F

lo
rid

a
FU

N
 D

EP
O

T

Approved:

Designed:

Revisions:

Job no.

Date:

Drawn:

JML

3/31/16

JML

JMLExisting Tree/Palm

QTY BOTANICAL NAME COMMON NAME SIZE NATIVE

3 SYAGRUS ROMANZOFFIANA QUEEN PALM 12-18' O.A. NO

4 *SABAL PALMETTO CABBAGE PALM 10-12' O.A. YES

1 *ACER RUBRUM RED MAPLE 18' O.A., 5" DBH YES

* DENOTES TREES REQUIRING REPLACEMENT TREES, SINCE LANDSCAPE PLAN DEMONSTRATES THAT THERE

IS A SURPLUS OF 3 TREES, NO ADDITIONAL REPLACEMENT TREES ARE REQUIRED.

NOTE:

ALL OTHER TREES NOTED ON PLAN ARE TO BE PRESERVED IN PLACE AND PROTECTED DURING

CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIES.

Tree Protection Detail



PROJECT No.

15-1077
SHEET No.

PL
O

T
 D

A
T
E:

 M
ar

 3
1
, 
2
0
1
6
  
T
IM

E:
 1

0
:5

1
am

  
BY

: 
ag

re
en

iii
D

R
A

W
IN

G
: 
P:

\1
5
-1

0
7
7
 F

u
n
 D

ep
o
t\

K
A

 D
W

G
\C

-1
5
1
0
7
7
_C

-B
as

e.
d
w

g
  
LA

Y
O

U
T
: 
C

-0
1

F
U

N
 D

E
P
O

T
C

IT
Y

 O
F
 L

A
K

E
 W

O
R

T
H

P
A

L
M

 B
E
A

C
H

 C
O

U
N

T
Y

, 
F
L
O

R
ID

A

N
O

.
D

A
T
E

R
E
V

IS
IO

N
 /

 R
E
M

A
R
K

S
B
Y

SUNSHINE 811

IT'S THE LAW ! 

D
E
S
IG

N
E
D

C
A

D
A

P
P
R
O

V
E
D

C
H

E
C

K
E
D

D
A

T
E

S
C

A
L
E

 Mar 31, 2016

Allen T. Green III
P.E. 67401

K
E

S
H

A
V

A
R

Z   
   

 A
S

S
O

C
IA

T
E

S
  C

iv
il

 E
n

gi
n

ee
rs

  
●
  L

an
d

 S
u

rv
ey

or
s

   
 7

11
 N

or
th

 D
ix

ie
 H

ig
h

w
ay

, 
S

u
it

e 
20

1
   

 W
es

t 
P

al
m

 B
ea

ch
, 

F
lo

ri
d

a 
33

40
1

  T
el

: 
(5

61
) 

68
9-

86
00

 F
ax

: 
(5

61
) 

68
9-

74
76

CALL TWO (2) BUSINESS DAYS
BEFORE YOU DIG

VERTICAL DATUM
ALL ELEVATIONS SHOWN ARE IN
NATIONAL GEODETIC VERTICAL

DATUM OF 1929 (NGVD29)
CONVERSION:

NGVD29 (-) 1.525 = NAVD88 C-01

LOCATION MAP

CIVIL ENGINEER

WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA 33401
711 NORTH DIXIE HIGHWAY-SUITE 201
KESHAVARZ & ASSOCIATES, INC.

SECTION 20,  TOWNSHIP  44  SOUTH,  RANGE  43  EAST

SECTION 20, TOWNSHIP 44 SOUTH, RANGE 43 EAST

FUN DEPOT
FOR 

DESCRIPTION

DRAWING INDEX

COVER SHEETC-01

SHEET

NUMBER

C
O

V
E
R

 S
H

E
E
T

CONCEPTUAL ENGINEERING PLANSC-02

CITY OF LAKE WORTH,  PALM  BEACH  COUNTY,  FLORIDA

GRADING, PAVING AND DRAINAGE DETAILSC-03

CONCEPTUAL ENGINEERING PLANS

PROJECT SITE

AutoCAD SHX Text
RW

AutoCAD SHX Text
RB

AutoCAD SHX Text
RW

AutoCAD SHX Text
MK

AutoCAD SHX Text
1" = 40'

AutoCAD SHX Text
OKEECHOBEE BLVD

AutoCAD SHX Text
PALM BEACH LAKES BLVD



1
0
T

H
 
A

V
E

N
U

E
 
N

O
R

T
H

DETROIT STREET

24.4'

24.7'75.5'

75.4'

74.0'

36.0'

PROJECT No.

15-1077
SHEET No.

PL
O

T
 D

A
T
E:

 M
ar

 3
1
, 
2
0
1
6
  
T
IM

E:
 1

1
:0

0
am

  
BY

: 
ag

re
en

iii
D

R
A

W
IN

G
: 
P:

\1
5
-1

0
7
7
 F

u
n
 D

ep
o
t\

K
A

 D
W

G
\C

-1
5
1
0
7
7
_C

-B
as

e.
d
w

g
  
LA

Y
O

U
T
: 
C

-0
2

F
U

N
 D

E
P
O

T
C

IT
Y

 O
F
 L

A
K

E
 W

O
R

T
H

P
A

L
M

 B
E
A

C
H

 C
O

U
N

T
Y

, 
F
L
O

R
ID

A

N
O

.
D

A
T
E

R
E
V

IS
IO

N
 /

 R
E
M

A
R
K

S
B
Y

SUNSHINE 811

IT'S THE LAW ! 

D
E
S
IG

N
E
D

C
A

D
A

P
P
R
O

V
E
D

C
H

E
C

K
E
D

D
A

T
E

S
C

A
L
E

 Mar 31, 2016

Allen T. Green III
P.E. 67401

K
E

S
H

A
V

A
R

Z   
   

 A
S

S
O

C
IA

T
E

S
  C

iv
il

 E
n

gi
n

ee
rs

  
●
  L

an
d

 S
u

rv
ey

or
s

   
 7

11
 N

or
th

 D
ix

ie
 H

ig
h

w
ay

, 
S

u
it

e 
20

1
   

 W
es

t 
P

al
m

 B
ea

ch
, 

F
lo

ri
d

a 
33

40
1

  T
el

: 
(5

61
) 

68
9-

86
00

 F
ax

: 
(5

61
) 

68
9-

74
76

CALL TWO (2) BUSINESS DAYS
BEFORE YOU DIG

VERTICAL DATUM
ALL ELEVATIONS SHOWN ARE IN
NATIONAL GEODETIC VERTICAL

DATUM OF 1929 (NGVD29)
CONVERSION:

NGVD29 (-) 1.525 = NAVD88

P
L
A

N
 S

H
E
E
T

C-02

GRAPHIC SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
#2121 10TH AVENUE N

AutoCAD SHX Text
#3400 BOUTWELL ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONDOMINIUM COMPLEX

AutoCAD SHX Text
GASLIGHT WAREHOUSE

AutoCAD SHX Text
#2000 10TH AVENUE N

AutoCAD SHX Text
#1942 8TH STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
#1926 10TH AVENUE N

AutoCAD SHX Text
#2000 10TH AVENUE N

AutoCAD SHX Text
BFPD

AutoCAD SHX Text
CO

AutoCAD SHX Text
CO

AutoCAD SHX Text
CO

AutoCAD SHX Text
CO

AutoCAD SHX Text
CO

AutoCAD SHX Text
CO

AutoCAD SHX Text
CO

AutoCAD SHX Text
CO

AutoCAD SHX Text
CO

AutoCAD SHX Text
CO

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
BFPD

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADA RAMP

AutoCAD SHX Text
114

AutoCAD SHX Text
106

AutoCAD SHX Text
RAMP

AutoCAD SHX Text
RAMP

AutoCAD SHX Text
RAMP

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING W.I.C.

AutoCAD SHX Text
100

AutoCAD SHX Text
120

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW CONCRETE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING CONCRETE WALK 

AutoCAD SHX Text
C.B.

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
a

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
113

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXIST. DUNKIN DONUTS DRIVE THRU

AutoCAD SHX Text
D.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
174'

AutoCAD SHX Text
124'

AutoCAD SHX Text
(21,376 S.F.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED FUN DEPOT EXPANSION

AutoCAD SHX Text
U.P.

AutoCAD SHX Text
U.P.

AutoCAD SHX Text
L.P.

AutoCAD SHX Text
L.P.

AutoCAD SHX Text
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text
U.P. W/ LT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
U.P.

AutoCAD SHX Text
163

AutoCAD SHX Text
154

AutoCAD SHX Text
U.P.

AutoCAD SHX Text
59

AutoCAD SHX Text
H/C

AutoCAD SHX Text
H/C

AutoCAD SHX Text
H/C

AutoCAD SHX Text
H/C

AutoCAD SHX Text
146

AutoCAD SHX Text
140

AutoCAD SHX Text
154

AutoCAD SHX Text
147

AutoCAD SHX Text
85

AutoCAD SHX Text
H/C

AutoCAD SHX Text
H/C

AutoCAD SHX Text
80

AutoCAD SHX Text
70

AutoCAD SHX Text
50

AutoCAD SHX Text
49

AutoCAD SHX Text
41

AutoCAD SHX Text
L.P.

AutoCAD SHX Text
L.P.

AutoCAD SHX Text
L.P.

AutoCAD SHX Text
L.P.

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING FUN DEPOT - #2003

AutoCAD SHX Text
(26,148 S.F. AT GRADE) (3,250 AT MEZZANINE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(14,182 S.F.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
#2001

AutoCAD SHX Text
119

AutoCAD SHX Text
139

AutoCAD SHX Text
107

AutoCAD SHX Text
97

AutoCAD SHX Text
130

AutoCAD SHX Text
96

AutoCAD SHX Text
129

AutoCAD SHX Text
90

AutoCAD SHX Text
86

AutoCAD SHX Text
29

AutoCAD SHX Text
60

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
C.B.

AutoCAD SHX Text
L.P.

AutoCAD SHX Text
H/C

AutoCAD SHX Text
H/C

AutoCAD SHX Text
C.B.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
D.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'

AutoCAD SHX Text
C.B.

AutoCAD SHX Text
U.P. W/ LT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
U.P.

AutoCAD SHX Text
N89°29'30"W   464.05'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N00°02'56"W   629.19'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S00°00'00"W   628.76'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S89°32'36"E   463.48'

AutoCAD SHX Text
82.2'

AutoCAD SHX Text
260.2'

AutoCAD SHX Text
50.2'

AutoCAD SHX Text
227.9'

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.05'

AutoCAD SHX Text
22.9'

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.1'

AutoCAD SHX Text
46.3'

AutoCAD SHX Text
105.05'

AutoCAD SHX Text
239.2'

AutoCAD SHX Text
108.8'

AutoCAD SHX Text
111.2'

AutoCAD SHX Text
60.9'

AutoCAD SHX Text
22.2'

AutoCAD SHX Text
C.B.

AutoCAD SHX Text
80' RIGHT OF WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
U.P.

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
15'

AutoCAD SHX Text
40.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
40.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
(RIGHT OF WAY VARIES)

AutoCAD SHX Text
143.24'

AutoCAD SHX Text
143.24'

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING CBS WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'

AutoCAD SHX Text
a

AutoCAD SHX Text
a

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED MINIATURE GOLF (13,365 S.F.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
a

AutoCAD SHX Text
a

AutoCAD SHX Text
a

AutoCAD SHX Text
a

AutoCAD SHX Text
a

AutoCAD SHX Text
a

AutoCAD SHX Text
a

AutoCAD SHX Text
a

AutoCAD SHX Text
a

AutoCAD SHX Text
a

AutoCAD SHX Text
a

AutoCAD SHX Text
M.H.

AutoCAD SHX Text
M.H.

AutoCAD SHX Text
C.B.

AutoCAD SHX Text
M.H.

AutoCAD SHX Text
<

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING CONCRETE WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING GO-CART TRACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
L.P.

AutoCAD SHX Text
C.B.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
a

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING  CBS WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING  C.L. FENCE (TYPICAL)

AutoCAD SHX Text
  L.S.

AutoCAD SHX Text
<

AutoCAD SHX Text
U.P. W/ LT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW CONCRETE WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING CONC. WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
U.P. W/ LT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
U.P.

AutoCAD SHX Text
U.P. W/ LT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW BIKE RACKS (8' LONG) 

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXIST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXIST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW CONCRETE WALK 

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXIST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
COVERED ENTRY (NEW) - SEE LARGE SCALE PLAN THIS SHEET 

AutoCAD SHX Text
40

AutoCAD SHX Text
BENCH (2)

AutoCAD SHX Text
100'

AutoCAD SHX Text
43.16'

AutoCAD SHX Text
25.66'

AutoCAD SHX Text
BENCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW VINYL COATED CHAIN LINK FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SPEED

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUMP

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUMP

AutoCAD SHX Text
SPEED

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUS #1

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUS #9

AutoCAD SHX Text
a

AutoCAD SHX Text
171

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUMP

AutoCAD SHX Text
SPEED

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW EAST SIGN & LANDSCAPE ISLAND

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW WEST SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW STALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
RW

AutoCAD SHX Text
RB

AutoCAD SHX Text
RW

AutoCAD SHX Text
MK

AutoCAD SHX Text
1" = 40'

AutoCAD SHX Text
60'

AutoCAD SHX Text
30'

AutoCAD SHX Text
15'

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED EXFILTRATION TRENCH TO COMPENSATE FOR INCREASED STORM WATER RUN OFF AND SFWMD PERMITTING REQUIREMENTS.  CONFIGURATION AND FOOTAGE SHOWN WILL LIKELY BE MODIFIED. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
REROUTED/UPGRADED POTABLE WATER, FIRE SUPPRESSION AND WASTEWATER SERVICES

AutoCAD SHX Text
REROUTED STORM WATER AND ROOF DRAINAGE. EXISTING CONNECTION POINTS ROUTING AND OUTFALL ARE UNKNOWN AT THIS TIME.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROOF DRAINAGE FOR PROPOSED BUILDING TO CONNECT TO PROPOSED DRAINAGE SYSTEM

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING FIRE HYDRANT (TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING STORM DRAINAGE (TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING SANITARY SEWER MAIN (TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING WATER MAIN (TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING GAS MAIN (TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING POWER LINE (TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING STORM DRAINAGE CONTROL STRUCTURE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING WATER, WASTEWATER AND GAS SERVICES SHALL BE TRACED WHERE POSSIBLE PRIOR TO FINAL EXFILTRATION TRENCH LAYOUT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING EXFILTRATION TRENCH TO BE CONFIRMED

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. SAN. M.H. RIM EL.=13.9 INV.=7.0±

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. 6" SAN. PRIVATE  SERVICE AND CLEANOUTS INV.=(UNKNOWN)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED 15' WM EASEMENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED FIRE HYDRANT 8" WM W/ 15' EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONNECT TO EX. 6" SAN. 



PROJECT No.

15-1077
SHEET No.

PL
O

T
 D

A
T
E:

 A
p
r 

0
1
, 
2
0
1
6
  
T
IM

E:
 1

1
:1

4
am

  
BY

: 
ag

re
en

iii
D

R
A

W
IN

G
: 
P:

\1
5
-1

0
7
7
 F

u
n
 D

ep
o
t\

K
A

 D
W

G
\C

-1
5
1
0
7
7
_C

-B
as

e.
d
w

g
  
LA

Y
O

U
T
: 
C

-0
3

F
U

N
 D

E
P
O

T
C

IT
Y

 O
F
 L

A
K

E
 W

O
R

T
H

P
A

L
M

 B
E
A

C
H

 C
O

U
N

T
Y

, 
F
L
O

R
ID

A

N
O

.
D

A
T
E

R
E
V

IS
IO

N
 /

 R
E
M

A
R
K

S
B
Y

SUNSHINE 811

IT'S THE LAW ! 

D
E
S
IG

N
E
D

C
A

D
A

P
P
R
O

V
E
D

C
H

E
C

K
E
D

D
A

T
E

S
C

A
L
E

 Apr 01, 2016

Allen T. Green III
P.E. 67401

K
E

S
H

A
V

A
R

Z   
   

 A
S

S
O

C
IA

T
E

S
  C

iv
il

 E
n

gi
n

ee
rs

  
●
  L

an
d

 S
u

rv
ey

or
s

   
 7

11
 N

or
th

 D
ix

ie
 H

ig
h

w
ay

, 
S

u
it

e 
20

1
   

 W
es

t 
P

al
m

 B
ea

ch
, 

F
lo

ri
d

a 
33

40
1

  T
el

: 
(5

61
) 

68
9-

86
00

 F
ax

: 
(5

61
) 

68
9-

74
76

CALL TWO (2) BUSINESS DAYS
BEFORE YOU DIG

VERTICAL DATUM
ALL ELEVATIONS SHOWN ARE IN
NATIONAL GEODETIC VERTICAL

DATUM OF 1929 (NGVD29)
CONVERSION:

NGVD29 (-) 1.525 = NAVD88 C-03

D
E
T

A
IL

 S
H

E
E
T

CITY OF LAKE WORTH

PUBLIC SERVICES DEPARTMENT

H
T

R
O

W

EKAL
F

O
Y
TI

C

FLO R I DA

01GENERAL NOTES

ISSUED: 09/18/13

GENERAL NOTES

1. EXISTING UTILITIES.  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR CONTACTING ALL UTILITY COMPANIES AND "SUNSHINE STATE ONE CALL OF FLORIDA,
INC." TO LOCATE ALL EXISTING UTILITIES WITHIN THE CONSTRUCTION AREA PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION.  CONTRACTOR SHALL VERIFY THE HORIZONTAL AND
VERTICAL LOCATION OF ALL EXISTING UTILITIES PRIOR TO COMMENCING CONSTRUCTION.  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR PROTECTING ALL
EXISTING UTILITIES DURING CONSTRUCTION AND RESETTING UTILITIES TO NEW GRADE AND SLOPE WITHIN THE LIMITS OF CONSTRUCTION.

2. SAFETY.  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR COMPLYING WITH THE PROVISIONS OF THE FLORIDA TRENCH SAFETY ACT, THE FLORIDA
UNDERGROUND FACILITY DAMAGE PREVENTION AND SAFETY ACT, AND ALL APPLICABLE O.S.H.A. REQUIREMENTS.  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE
RESPONSIBLE FOR TAKING ALL NECESSARY PRECAUTIONS WHEN WORKING IN THE VICINITY OF OVERHEAD ELECTRIC LINES.

3. MAINTENANCE OF TRAFFIC.  CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE MAINTENANCE OF TRAFFIC (MOT) PLANS, PREPARED BY A WORK SITE TRAFFIC SUPERVISOR AS
CERTIFIED BY THE AMERICAN TRAFFIC SAFETY SERVICES ASSOCIATION, PRIOR TO COMMENCING CONSTRUCTION WITHIN CITY OF LAKE WORTH
RIGHT-OF-WAY.

4. ACCESS.  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR MAINTAINING SAFE VEHICULAR AND PEDESTRIAN ACCESS AT ALL TIMES.
5. WARRANTY.  ALL WORK, MATERIALS, OR EQUIPMENT SHALL BE WARRANTIED FOR A MINIMUM OF ONE YEAR, FROM THE DATE OF FINAL ACCEPTANCE BY THE

CITY OF LAKE WORTH, AGAINST DEFECTIVE MATERIALS AND/OR WORKMANSHIP.  ALL WORK FOUND TO BE DEFECTIVE WILL BE REPLACED BY THE
CONTRACTOR AT NO EXPENSE TO THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH.

6. SHOP DRAWINGS.  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE A MINIMUM OF SEVEN (7) COPIES (OR MORE, IF REQUIRED) OF SHOP DRAWINGS, PRODUCT DATA,
MATERIAL SPECIFICATIONS AND OTHER INFORMATION REGARDING CONSTRUCTION MATERIALS AND STRUCTURES AS REQUESTED BY THE ENGINEER OF
RECORD OR THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH.  SHOP DRAWINGS MUST BE NEWLY PREPARED INFORMATION, DRAWN TO ACCURATE SCALE.  STANDARD
INFORMATION PREPARED WITHOUT SPECIFIC REFERENCE TO THE PROJECT WILL BE RETURNED TO THE CONTRACTOR WITHOUT REVIEW.  SHOP DRAWINGS
SHALL BE SUBJECT TO THE FOLLOWING:

A. BY SUBMITTAL OF ANY SHOP DRAWING OR CATALOG DATA, BEARING AN APPROVAL STAMP, THE CONTRACTOR REPRESENTS THAT IT HAS
DETERMINED AND VERIFIED ALL FIELD MEASUREMENTS, FIELD CONSTRUCTION CRITERIA, MATERIALS, DIMENSIONS, CATALOG NUMBERS AND SIMILAR
DATA, OR WILL DO SO, AND THAT IT HAS CHECKED AND COORDINATED EACH ITEM WITH OTHER APPLICABLE APPROVED SHOP DRAWINGS AND THE
CONTRACT REQUIREMENTS.

B. SHOP DRAWINGS AND CATALOG DATA SUBMITTED WITHOUT THE CONTRACTOR'S STAMP OF APPROVAL WILL BE RETURNED TO THE CONTRACTOR
WITHOUT REVIEW.  APPROVAL OF SHOP DRAWINGS, SAMPLES, OR CATALOG DATA BY THE ENGINEER OF RECORD OR THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH
SHALL NOT AUTHORIZE ANY DEVIATION FROM THE REQUIREMENTS OF THE CONTRACT DOCUMENTS.

C. ANY PROPOSED SUBSTITUTE OR EQUAL TO THE THAT SHOWN ON THE CONTRACT DOCUMENTS SHALL BE ACCOMPANIED BY CALCULATIONS
SUBSTANTIATING EQUIVALENCY.  SHOP DRAWINGS WITH SUBSTITUTE MATERIALS NOT ACCOMPANIED BY CALCULATIONS WILL BE RETURNED
WITHOUT REVIEW.

D. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL CONFIRM COMPATIBILITY OF PIPE SLOPES AND INVERTS DURING THE SHOP DRAWING AND MATERIALS ORDERING PHASE OF
THE PROJECT AND ADVISE THE ENGINEER OF RECORD IN WRITING OF ANY DISCREPANCIES.

E. INDIVIDUAL SHOP DRAWINGS FOR ALL PRECAST STRUCTURES ARE REQUIRED.  CATALOG LITERATURE WILL NOT BE ACCEPTED FOR PRECAST
STRUCTURES.

7. FIELD REVIEWS.  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE NOTIFICATION, 48 HOURS (MIN.), PRIOR TO ANY REQUIRED FIELD REVIEWS OR INSPECTIONS AND SHALL
SUPPLY ALL NECESSARY EQUIPMENT, LABOR, AND MATERIALS FOR INSPECTION AND/OR TEST.  ALL WORK SHALL BE OPEN AND SUBJECT TO REVIEW AND/OR
INSPECTION BY AUTHORIZED PERSONNEL OF THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH AND THE ENGINEER OF RECORD.

13. DENSITY TESTING.  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR OBTAINING ALL NECESSARY TESTING TO ENSURE THAT THE PROPER COMPACTION HAS
BEEN ACHIEVED FOR ALL SUBGRADE, BASE MATERIAL, PIPE BASE MATERIAL, BACKFILL, & ALL OTHER AREAS WHERE COMPACTION REQUIREMENTS ARE
SPECIFIED.  ALL TEST RESULTS SHALL BE SIGNED & SEALED BY A FLORIDA LICENSED PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER AND COPIES SHALL BE PROVIDED TO THE
ENGINEER OF RECORD AND THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH.

14. PERMITS.  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL NOT COMMENCE CONSTRUCTION PRIOR TO RECEIPT OF ALL APPLICABLE PERMITS AND APPROVALS INCLUDING AN
APPROVED MAINTENANCE OF TRAFFIC PLAN.  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL ABIDE BY ALL APPLICABLE REQUIREMENTS OF THE PERMITS AND AGENCY
APPROVALS.

15. EROSION CONTROL.  ALL EROSION CONTROL MEASURES SHALL BE INSTALLED IN ACCORDANCE WITH FDOT INDICES 102, 103 AND 106, THE FDEP NATIONAL
POLLUTANT DISCHARGE ELIMINATION SYSTEM (NPDES) GENERAL PERMIT (IF APPLICABLE), AND THE STORMWATER POLLUTION PREVENTION PLAN (SWPPP).
FILTER FABRIC, HAY BALES, OR ROCK BAGS SHALL BE INSTALLED IN EACH INLET THROUGHOUT THE CONSTRUCTION PERIOD.  A SOIL TRACKING PREVENTION
DEVICE (STPD) SHALL CONSTRUCTED AT ALL UNSTABILIZED CONSTRUCTION ACCESS POINTS, PER FDOT INDEX NO. 106.

16. STORM DRAINAGE.  ALL STORM DRAINAGE PIPE JOINTS SHALL BE WRAPPED IN FILTER FABRIC PER FDOT STANDARD INDEX NO. 280.  ALL DRAINAGE
STRUCTURES SHALL CONFORM TO THE REQUIREMENTS OF FDOT STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS FOR ROAD AND BRIDGE CONSTRUCTION, LATEST EDITION.
ALL GRATES SHALL BE SECURED TO THE STRUCTURES WITH AN EYEBOLT AND CHAIN.  ALL STORM DRAINAGE SHALL BE FREE OF SILT AND SEDIMENT AT THE
TIME OF FINAL ACCEPTANCE BY THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH.

17. DEWATERING.  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR OBTAINING AND COMPLYING WITH ANY DEWATERING PERMITS AND/OR APPROVALS
NECESSARY FOR CONSTRUCTION.  NO WATER FROM DEWATERING MEASURES SHALL BE DISCHARGED OFF-SITE.  ALL DISCHARGE SHALL BE CONTAINED IN
ON-SITE SEDIMENT BASINS.

18. SIDEWALKS.  ALL SIDEWALKS SHALL BE CONSTRUCTED TO MEET THE REQUIREMENTS OF THE FLORIDA BUILDING CODE, CHAPTER 11 - FLORIDA
ACCESSIBILITY CODE FOR BUILDING CONSTRUCTION.  ALL CURB RAMPS SHALL BE CONSTRUCTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH FDOT STANDARD INDEX NO. 304
AND THE REQUIREMENTS OF THE FLORIDA BUILDING CODE.  ALL WALKWAYS CROSSING VEHICULAR AREAS SHALL HAVE A DETECTABLE WARNING SURFACE
(TRUNCATED DOMES) IN ACCORDANCE WITH FDOT STANDARD INDEX NO. 304 AND THE FLORIDA BUILDING CODE, CHAPTER 11 - ACCESSIBILITY CODE FOR
BUILDING CONSTRUCTION.  ALL SIDEWALKS SHALL BE BROOM FINISHED WITH AN EVEN, DUSTLESS SURFACE AND SHALL BE FREE OF CRACKS AT TIME OF
FINAL ACCEPTANCE BY THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH.

19. PAVEMENT.  WHERE FULL-DEPTH PAVEMENT REPLACEMENT IS SPECIFIED, EXISTING BASEROCK MAY NOT BE RE-USED, HOWEVER IT MAY BE UTILIZED AS
SUBGRADE STABILIZATION MATERIAL.  ALL SUBGRADE SHALL BE FREE OF MUCK, ROOTS, UNDERBRUSH, VEGETATIVE MATTER, GARBAGE, TRASH, OR ANY
OTHER UNSUITABLE MATERIALS.  BASEROCK AND ASPHALT SHALL BE PLACED IN MULTIPLE LIFTS AND SHALL BE PLACED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE
APPLICABLE FDOT STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS FOR ROAD AND BRIDGE CONSTRUCTION, LATEST EDITION.  FINAL LIFT OF ASPHALT SHALL PROVIDE A
UNIFORM FINISH AND SHALL BE PLACED TO CORRECT MINOR IMPERFECTIONS IN THE FIRST LIFT AND TO PROVIDE POSITIVE DRAINAGE FOR THE ROADWAY.

20. SIGNING AND PAVEMENT MARKING.  ALL PAVEMENT MARKINGS WITHIN CITY OF LAKE WORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY SHALL BE THERMOPLASTIC.  THERMOPLASTIC
SHALL NOT BE INSTALLED ON PAVEMENT UNTIL A MINIMUM OF FIVE CALENDAR DAYS AFTER THE FINAL LIFT OF ASPHALT HAS BEEN COMPLETED.  BLUE/BLUE
REFLECTIVE PAVEMENT MARKERS (RPM) SHALL BE INSTALLED TO INDICATE THE LOCATION OF ALL FIRE HYDRANTS.

DETAIL NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
RW

AutoCAD SHX Text
RB

AutoCAD SHX Text
RW

AutoCAD SHX Text
MK

AutoCAD SHX Text
1" = 40'

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2"

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOINT

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1" = 1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%uF.D.O.T. CURB TYPE `D' DETAIL 

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2" TOOLED

AutoCAD SHX Text
RADIUS

AutoCAD SHX Text
2" R.

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/4" R.

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOINT SEAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOINT FILLER

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
18"

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
3000 psi CONC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UNOTE%%u:

AutoCAD SHX Text
*

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2" EXP. JOINT REQUIRED WHEN

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURB ABUTS CONCRETE PAVEMENT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTES:

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UTYPICAL PIPE BEDDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
Max.

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
Max.

AutoCAD SHX Text
4" Min.

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
Min.

AutoCAD SHX Text
REMAINING BACKFILL PLACED IN

AutoCAD SHX Text
12" LAYERS AND COMPACTED TO

AutoCAD SHX Text
98% MAX DENSITY PER AASHTO T-180

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRANULAR BACKFILL (2" MAX SIZE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLACED AND COMPACTED TO 98%

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAX DENSITY PER AASHTO T-180

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEDDING MATERIAL 98% MAXIMUM

AutoCAD SHX Text
DENSITY PER AASHTO T-180

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING GROUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEDDING SHALL CONSIST OF IN-SITU GRANULAR MATERIAL OR WASHED

AutoCAD SHX Text
AND GRADED LIMEROCK 3/8"-7/8" SIZING.  UNSUITABLE IN-SITU MATERIALS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUCH AS MUCK, DEBRIS, AND LARGER ROCK SHALL BE REMOVED.

AutoCAD SHX Text
THE PIPE SHALL BE FULLY SUPPORTED FOR ITS ENTIRE LENGTH WITH

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROPRIATE COMPACTION UNDER THE PIPE HAUNCHES.

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.

AutoCAD SHX Text
THE PIPE SHALL BE PLACED IN A DRY TRENCH.

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BACKFILL SHALL BE FREE OF UNSUITABLE MATERIAL SUCH AS LARGER

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROCK, MUCK AND DEBRIS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
IF OVEREXCAVATED, BACKFILL

AutoCAD SHX Text
IN 6" LAYERS AND COMPACT TO

AutoCAD SHX Text
98% MAX DENSITY (AASHTO T-180)

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYPE "A" JOINT

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' O.C.

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYPE "B" JOINT

AutoCAD SHX Text
80' O.C.

AutoCAD SHX Text
FILTER FABRIC ALL (4) FOUR SIDES

AutoCAD SHX Text
#4 COARSE AGGREGATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/4" TP 1 1/2"

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UEXFILTRATION TRENCH 

AutoCAD SHX Text
SLOTS OR PERFORATIONS SHALL BE CONSTRUCTED BY THE PIPE MANUFACTURER AND

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT CUT AT THE PROJECT SITE.  SLOTS OR PERFORATIONS SHALL MEET FDOT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SPECIFICATIONS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
N.T.S.

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATERIALS AND CONSTRUCTION IN ACCORDANCE WITH FDOT INDEX # 285

AutoCAD SHX Text
FILTER FABRIC ALL FOUR SIDES OF EXFILTRATION TRENCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTES:

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.

AutoCAD SHX Text
6.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRENCH WIDTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
PIPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
OVERLAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED FINISHED GRADE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
15" PERF. R.C.P.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BLUE STRIPES per

AutoCAD SHX Text
FDOT INDEX NO. 17346

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%U ACCESSIBLE PARKING SPACE COMPLYING w/ FL. ADA REQMNTS. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHITE IN COLOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
2"

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARKING BY DISABLED PERMIT ONLY SIGN PER FDOT FTP-20-04 WITH FTP-22-04 $250 FINE PANEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRECAST CONCRETE

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHEEL STOP (TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"x6"x6'-0")

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHITE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIZE 5 FEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
IN HEIGHT and

AutoCAD SHX Text
per FDOT INDEX

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAVEMENT LOGO

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO. 17346.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BLUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
24"

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHITE per FDOT

AutoCAD SHX Text
INDEX NO. 17346

AutoCAD SHX Text
(TYP.) 3'-6" WIDE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHEVRONS EQUALLY

AutoCAD SHX Text
SPACED FOR AISLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
(MAX. 2% SLOPE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
5'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
N.T.S.

AutoCAD SHX Text
12'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
(PER PLAN)

AutoCAD SHX Text
18.6" MAX. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAX 2% SLOPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYPICAL ALL SPACES

AutoCAD SHX Text
note: all handicap accessible ramps shall meet all applicable local, regional and state accessibility guidelines and regulations. any modifications shall be approved by the engineer-of-record.

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%U WHEEL STOP DETAIL 

AutoCAD SHX Text
N.T.S.

AutoCAD SHX Text
* 2'-0" & 8" 

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text
END OF WHEEL STOP

AutoCAD SHX Text
9" IN FROM EACH 

AutoCAD SHX Text
#5 BAR x 18" LONG 

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDGE OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAVEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
6'-0" LONG PRECAST 

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE WHEEL STOP

AutoCAD SHX Text
(FIBERGLASS WHERE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SPECIFIED ON DRAWINGS)

AutoCAD SHX Text
OVERHANG

AutoCAD SHX Text
3" MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
24" FOR 18'-6"  STALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
* 8" FOR 17' STALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRIVEWAY)

AutoCAD SHX Text
4" (6" at

AutoCAD SHX Text
3000 PSI CONC. WITH FIBERMESH

AutoCAD SHX Text
AASHTO T-180.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE PLAN SHEET FOR WIDTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMPACTED BASE, 12" CLEAN SAND

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMPACTED TO 98% MAX. DENSITY

AutoCAD SHX Text
2%

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURRENT ADA STANDARDS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTE: ALL SIDEWALKS TO MEET 

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%U CONCRETE SIDEWALK DETAIL 

AutoCAD SHX Text
N.T.S.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SECTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE FDOT INDEX 310 FOR  ADDITIONAL DETAILS & NOTES

AutoCAD SHX Text
4'-6'

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UMANHOLE DETAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
FILL VOID WITH BRICK AND NON SHRINK MORTAR PER FDOT STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS FOR ROAD AND BRIDGE CONSTRUCTION.

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' MAX. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE PLAN SHEET FOR SIZES

AutoCAD SHX Text
2'

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
N.T.S.

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UPRECAST WALL JOINT DETAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%USTORM STRUCTURE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOR PRE CAST STRUCTURES TALLER THAN 6', MULTIPLE SEGMENTS ARE REQUIRED.  SEE WALL JOINT DETAIL.  

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.5"

AutoCAD SHX Text
OUTSIDE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
FACE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE WALL JOINT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
DETAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%USECTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
2" CL

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
N.T.S.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2'

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO. 4    BARS

AutoCAD SHX Text
AT 12"O.C. E.W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDGE OF PAVEMENT FLUSH W/ GRATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GROUT

AutoCAD SHX Text
BRICK TO GRADE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAXIMUM 5 COURSES

AutoCAD SHX Text
MINIMUM 2 COURSES

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALL SIDES

AutoCAD SHX Text
U.S.F. RING & AU COVER

AutoCAD SHX Text
U.S.F. NO. 170-E

AutoCAD SHX Text
OR EQUAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2" MORTAR

AutoCAD SHX Text
INSIDE & OUT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
INCLUDE BITUMASTIC JOINT

AutoCAD SHX Text
RAM NEK, OR APPROVED EQUAL.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALL JOINTS UNDER WATER TABLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
3. PAVED AREAS - SET FRAMES AT FINISH GRADE, UNPAVED 

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%U MANHOLE RING AND COVER DETAIL 

AutoCAD SHX Text
   AREAS - SET FRAMES AT FINISH GRADE + 0.15'.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2. MANHOLE COVER SHALL BE IMPRINTED WITH "STORM 

AutoCAD SHX Text
   APPROX. TOTAL WEIGHT 280 POUNDS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1. U.S.F. #170-E MANHOLE RING & COVER

AutoCAD SHX Text
   SEWER"

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTES:

AutoCAD SHX Text
N.T.S.

AutoCAD SHX Text
*

AutoCAD SHX Text
*

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"O.C. E.W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
#4    AT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLACE OR

AutoCAD SHX Text
FORMED-IN-

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" CONC. WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" CONC. WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRE-CAST

AutoCAD SHX Text
*

AutoCAD SHX Text
1'MIN. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
2" MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" MAX.

AutoCAD SHX Text
VARIES PER PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
*

AutoCAD SHX Text
*

AutoCAD SHX Text
*

AutoCAD SHX Text
*

AutoCAD SHX Text
2% TYPICAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
1% MINIMUM

AutoCAD SHX Text
BASE: 8" BASEROCK OR APPROVED  EQUAL COMPACTED TO 98% MAX DENSITY AASHTO T-180

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUBGRADE: COMPACTED TO 98% MAX DENSITY AASHTO T-180 

AutoCAD SHX Text
ACSC: 1.5" TYPE S-III ASPHALTIC CONCRETE 2 LIFTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
N.T.S.

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%U TYPICAL ASPHALT PAVEMENT SECTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
D CURB







City Of Lake Worth 
Department for Community Sustainability 

Planning, Zoning and Historic Preservation Division 
1900 Second Avenue North· Lake Worth, Florida 33460 · Phone: 561-586-1687 

 

 
DATE:  May 4, 2016 
 
TO:  Members of the Planning & Zoning Board 
 
FROM:  Curt Thompson, Community Planner 
  Maxime Ducoste, Assistant Director for Planning and Preservation 
 

a) SUBJECT: Consideration of a request for a Major Site Plan and Conditional Land PZB 
Project# 16-01400001, Major Site Plan to construct eight (8) townhomes pursuant to 
Section 23.2-30, 23.2-31, 23.2-32 of the LDRs.  

b) PZB Project# 16-00500001, Conditional Land Use to allow for a Mixed-Use development 
consisting of retail and residential uses and services within the Mixed-Use East (MU-E) 
Zoning District, pursuant to Section 23.2-29 and Section 23.4-13 of the Land 
Development Regulations (LDRs); and, 

c) PZB Project# 16-01500003, 16-01500004, 16-01500005 Variances from the minimum 
setback requirements (one of those variances  involve the frontage) pursuant to Section 
23.3-13. 
 

Land Use/Zoning: 
The site is located at 110 North F Street, with a Mixed Use – East (MU-E) zoning 
designation and a Mixed Use East (MU-E) Future Land Use Map designation.  

 
Meeting Date: May 4, 2016 
 

 
SYNOPSIS:  
 

Applicant Darrin Engel and Michael Pecar representing Neighborhood Renaissance 

General Location 110 North F Street 

Zoning Mixed Use East (MU-E) 

Existing Land Use Vacant 

Future Land Use 
Designation 

Mixed Use – East 

Applicable Municipal 
Code Sections 

 

23.2-26; 23.2-29, 23.2-30, 23.2-31, 23.2-32; 23.3-13  

 Required Proposed/Existing 

Lot Area 6,500 square feet  20,933 square feet 

Lot Width  25 feet 154.95 feet 



West Village Art Flats  

Conditional Use Permit 

Major Site Plan 

Three Variances 

Page 2 of 21 

 

Building Height 

Comprehensive 
Plan: Maximum 
45’ (Third story 
and above allowed 
with the provision 
of Community 
Benefits)  

Zoning Code: 
Maximum 30’ (not 
to exceed two 
stories) plus 5 feet 
(max 3 stories) 
with   Sustainable 
Bonus Incentive 
Program 

35 feet (30 + 5) (This includes 5 
feet for the sustainable bonus) 

Setbacks Required Provided 

Front (Lucerne) 10 feet minimum, maximum 22 feet  10 feet 

Side (F Street) 10 feet minimum, maximum 22 feet 10 feet  

Side (interior) 0 0 feet  

Rear (Alley) 10 13 

Bonus Height and 
Stories 

5 feet 5 feet  

Living Area Not Applicable Not Applicable 

Accessory Structure 
Limitations 

Not Applicable Not Applicable 

Impermeable Surface 
Total 

65% maximum 63.95%  

Maximum Building 
Coverage 

55%  35% 

Floor Area Ratio .90   .87 

Parking  17  
22 parking spaces for cars, plus 
4 motorcycle spaces and 16 bike 
rack spaces for bicycles.  

Board Action Required 
Approve, Approve With Conditions, Deny the Request, Continue the 
request for additional information;   

Staff 
Recommendation 

Staff recommends approval of the requested Conditional Land Use and 
Major Site Plan, with conditions, to allow for the construction of 8 
townhomes (+/-16,176 square feet) with a +/- 2,000 square foot 
commercial building.  

 Name and Title Initials 

Project Planner Curt Thompson, Community Planner CT 

Approved by 
Maxime Ducoste, Assistant Director for Planning and 
Preservation 

MD 

  
 
Project/Property Description: 
 
The applicant, Darrin Engel and Michael Pecar representing Neighborhood Renaissance, are seeking 
approval for a Major Site Plan, Conditional Use Permit and three variances to allow for a Mixed-Use 



West Village Art Flats  

Conditional Use Permit 

Major Site Plan 

Three Variances 

Page 3 of 21 

 

Development consisting of retail/commercial uses, residential uses (construct eight (8) townhomes) and 
accessory services within the Mixed-Use East (MU-E) Zoning District.  
 
Neighborhood Renaissance, Inc., (“Applicant”), has entered into a contract with the Lake Worth 
Community Development Agency (“CRA”) to purchase the property  located at 110 North F Street 
(“Property”). The applicant wants to construct eight (8) live work townhouse residences (16, 176 square 
feet) for working artists that will be sold to households earning less than 120% of the area median income 
which is considered affordable housing. In addition, the contract/agreement contemplates construction 
of additional community/commercial space on the subject property.  
 
The site plan was reviewed by the Site Plan Review Team (SPRT) at their regular meeting on March 14, 
2016.  The SPRT recommended a number of conditions of approval, which have been included for the 
Board’s reference. 
 

The following analysis includes a discussion about the specific site improvements the applicant is 
proposing followed by an analysis that addresses each of the three (3) part request outlined in the project 
description. In addition, following the conditional use review, there is a variance analysis for the three 
variances requested by the applicant.  

 
Public Support/Opposition 
 

Staff has not received any letters of support or opposition 

 

Consistency with the Comprehensive Plan: 

 
The applicant’s proposal to construct a Mixed-Use Development consisting of retail/commercial uses, 
residential uses (construct eight (8) townhomes) and accessory services within the Mixed-Use East (MU-
E) Zoning District at the subject property is consistent with the following Comprehensive Plan objectives 
and policies, which are outlined below: 
 

 Policy 1.1.3.4.: Redevelopment opportunities will be maximized through use of mixed land use 
designations that permit a flexible mix of multifamily residential and compatible office , service and 
commercial retail uses. 

 

The project site has a Future Land Use Designation of Mixed Use-East.  The Mixed Use-East zoning 
designation, which is the zoning of the project site, is geared toward the commercial gateways 
and thoroughfares that are adjacent to the central commercial core of the city. The intent of MU-
E district is to encourage the establishment and expansion of a broad range of office, commercial, 
hotel/motel and medium-density multiple-family residential development as well as to facilitate 
redevelopment within these areas that achieves a mix of residential and professional office land 
uses.    

 

 Policy 1.3.9.1: The City shall further discourage urban sprawl by: 
 



West Village Art Flats  

Conditional Use Permit 

Major Site Plan 

Three Variances 

Page 4 of 21 

 

1. Continuously promoting compact developments within the mixed use, high density 
residential and TOD areas while providing adequate public services for each development in 
the most cost effective manner possible; and, 
 

The applicant is proposing a compact development in the Mixed Use -East land use category.  
Existing public services, including potable water, sewer, fire and police services, are adequate to 
serve the project. The compact nature shall be consistent with the Mixed Use-East future land use 
designation and this policy. 

 
 

It is evident through consistency with the identified objectives and policies that the project is consistent 
with the adopted Comprehensive Plan.  
 

Section 23.2-29(d): General findings relating to harmony with LDRs and protection of public interest 

 

The project is in compliance with the general findings relating to harmony with the LDRs and protection 
of public interest, as follows: 

 

1. The conditional use exactly as proposed at the location where proposed will be in harmony with the 
uses which, under these LDRs and the future land use element, are most likely to occur in the immediate 
area where located. 

 

Staff Response: The proposed use will be in harmony with the intent of the Mixed Use – East (MU-E) 
Zoning District to construct 8 townhomes, a commercial building at the corner of Lucerne Avenue and 
North F Street and associated site improvements.            

 

2. The conditional use exactly as proposed at the location where proposed will be in harmony with existing 
uses in the immediate area where located. 

 

Staff Response: The existing uses in the surrounding area are as follows: 

 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning District 
Current Use/            

Name of Development 

North 
Medium Density 

Residential (MDR) 
SF-TF-14 

Single Family Home 

South Public PROS Shuffle Board Courts 

East 
MU-E MU-E Shopping Center 

West 
MU-E MU-E Residential – Urban 

Artist Lofts 



West Village Art Flats  

Conditional Use Permit 

Major Site Plan 

Three Variances 

Page 5 of 21 

 

 

The majority of existing uses are a mixture of residential and commercial/retail in nature. As such, the 
proposed mixed use project (townhomes and commercial building) shall be in harmony with the existing 
mix of commercial and residential uses in the immediate area. 

 

3. The conditional use exactly as proposed will not result in substantially less public benefit or greater 
harm than would result from use of the Property for some use permitted by right or some other 
conditional use permitted on the Property. 

 

Staff Response: The proposed mixed use project will be compatible with the Future Land Use designation 
(Mixed Use-East) and may stimulate investment and development of the surrounding area.  The proposed 
mixed use will not result in substantially less public benefit or greater harm than would result from a use 
permitted by right   

 

4. The conditional use exactly as proposed will not result in more intensive development in advance of 
when such development is approved by the future land use element of the comprehensive plan. 

 

Staff Response: The proposed townhomes and commercial building will not result in a more intensive 
development than that approved by the Future Land Use Element of the Comprehensive Plan.  Rather, 
the mixed use nature shall be compatible with the planning goals, objectives and policies of the Future 
Land Use Element as identified above under Consistency with the Comprehensive Plan.  

 
Section 23.2-29(e): Specific standards for all conditional uses 

 

1. The proposed conditional use will not generate traffic volumes or movements which will result in a 
significant adverse impact or reduce the level of service provided on any street to a level lower than 
would result from a development permitted by right. 

 

Staff Response: The proposed mixed use project will not generate traffic volumes or movements, which 
will reduce the level of service provided on any street to a lower level than would result from a 
development permitted by right. The 8 townhomes and the 2,000 square foot commercial building will 
replace the former County Health department offices of about 5,850 square feet. The residential 
component includes a work space that the applicant expects many of the occupants will work at home 
thus, reducing traffic impacts.    

 

2. The proposed conditional use will not result in a significantly greater amount of through traffic on 
local streets than would result from a development permitted by right and is appropriately located with 
respect to collector and arterial streets. 

 

Staff Response: The proposed conditional use will not result in a significantly greater amount of through 
traffic on local streets.  Traffic accessing the site is anticipated to come from the proposed entrance/exit 
onto an existing alley along the north side of the property.  



West Village Art Flats  

Conditional Use Permit 

Major Site Plan 

Three Variances 

Page 6 of 21 

 

 

3. The proposed conditional use will not produce significant air pollution emissions. 

 

Staff Response: The proposed mixed use does not include any operational features that would produce 
significant air pollution emissions. 

 

4. The proposed conditional use will be so located in relation to the thoroughfare system that neither 
extension nor enlargement nor any other alteration of that system in a manner resulting in higher net 
public cost or earlier incursion of public cost than would result from development permitted by right. 

 

Staff Response: the proposed mixed use project will not require either extension nor enlargement nor 
any other alteration of that system in a manner resulting in higher net public cost or earlier incursion of 
public cost than would result from development permitted by right. 

 

5. The proposed conditional use will be so located in relation to water lines, sanitary sewers, storm sewers, 
surface drainage systems and other utility systems that neither extension nor enlargement nor any other 
alteration of such systems in a manner resulting in higher net public cost or earlier incursion of public cost 
than would result from development permitted by right. 

 

Staff Response: The proposed conditional use will be served by existing utilities such that neither 
extension nor enlargement is necessary as a result of the project. 

 

6. The proposed conditional use will not place a demand on municipal police or fire protection service 
beyond the capacity of those services.  

 

Staff Response: The proposed conditional use is not anticipated to place a demand on municipal police 
or fire protection services which does not exceed that likely to result from a development permitted by 
right. 

 

7. The proposed conditional use will not generate significant noise, or will appropriately mitigate 
anticipated noise to a level compatible with that which would result from a development permitted by 
right. Any proposed use must meet all the requirements and stipulations set forth in section 15.24, Noise 
control. 

 

Staff Response: The mixed use project is not anticipated to generate significant noise.   

 

8. The proposed conditional use will not generate light or glare which encroaches onto any adjacent 
property in excess of that allowed in Section 23.4-3, Exterior lighting. 

 

Staff Response: The proposed lighting plan for the project is anticipated to be in compliance with Section 
23.4-3.  Please refer to Sheet ES - 1 in the site plan, for additional details 

https://library.municode.com/HTML/10091/level3/PTIICOOR_CH23LADERE_ART4DEST.html#PTIICOOR_CH23LADERE_ART4DEST_S23.4-10OREPA


West Village Art Flats  

Conditional Use Permit 

Major Site Plan 

Three Variances 

Page 7 of 21 

 

 
Section 23.2-31: Site Design Qualitative Standards 
 
1. Harmonious and efficient organization.   
 

Staff Response: All of the required elements of the site plan have been harmoniously and efficiently 
organized in relation to topography, and the size and type of parcel.   The site will be developed as to not 
impede the normal and orderly development or improvement of surrounding property.  The proposed 
development of the project site will have no negative impacts on the surrounding properties and/or uses.  
The criterion has been met. 

 
2. Preservation of natural conditions.  

 
Staff Response: The project site is currently vacant. There are no natural features of significance to 
preserve in place.     . 

 
3. Screening and buffering.  

 

Staff Response: The applicant is proposing landscaping and buffering which will meet the requirements 
of the LDRs. The landscape plan is attached for the board’s review as depicted in sheet ES-1. 

  
4. Enhancement of residential privacy.  

 

Staff Response: This project shall provide and protect residential privacy. 
 

5. Emergency access.  
 

Staff Response: Emergency access to the site is provided along the alleyway located along the north side 
of the property.  The criterion has been met. 

  
6. Access to public ways.  

 

Staff Response: Access to public rights-of-way to the project is being provided via one existing driveway 
located along north side of the property via the existing alleyway.  The criterion has been met. 
 
7. Pedestrian circulation.  

 

Staff Response:  There is an existing concrete sidewalk along Lucerne Avenue and North F Street. The 
criterion has been met. 

   
8. Design of ingress and egress drives.  

 

Staff Response: The site will utilize one existing entrance/exit along an alleyway at the north side of the 
site.  The criterion has been met. 



West Village Art Flats  

Conditional Use Permit 

Major Site Plan 

Three Variances 

Page 8 of 21 

 

  
9. Coordination of on-site circulation with off-site circulation.  

 

Staff Response: The existing on-site circulation has been designed in a manner to coordinate with the 
proposed parking area for the property. The criterion has been met. 
 
10. Design of on-site public right-of-way.  

 
Staff Response: There are no on-site public streets or rights-of-ways associated with the project site.  The 
criterion is not applicable   

 
11. Off-street parking, loading and vehicular circulation areas.  

 

Staff Response: Off-street parking, loading and vehicular circulation areas shall be located, designed and 
screened to minimize the impact of noise, glare and odor on adjacent property.  This criterion has been 
satisfied. 

 
12. Refuse and service areas. 

 

Staff Response: The residents and commercial tenants will be using carts and will be responsible for 
setting their carts on collection days. They will also be responsible for returning them to their garages or 
commercial spaces.   The criterion has been met. 
 
13. Protection of property values.  

 

Staff Response: The site is currently vacant. The site plan is arranged to enhance the frontage of along 
Lucerne and North F Street.  The redeveloped of this site is expected to serve as a catalyst for investment 
along Lucerne Avenue and North F Street areas.  The redeveloped site should have a positive effect on 
property values in the immediate area.  The criterion has been met.  
 
14. Transitional development.  

 
Staff Response: Due to the mixed use nature of the surrounding area, the proposed project and 
redevelopment will be in harmony with the uses in the vicinity.   

 
15. Consideration of future development. 

 

Staff Response: The vicinity in which the project site is located is in various stages of re-development.  The 
applicant is undertaking the redevelopment of the site that will result in a viable mixed use residential 
and commercial development.  The type of compact urban development proposed by the applicant is 
consistent with the Future Land Use Element of the Comprehensive Plan.  The redeveloped site is 
expected to serve as a catalyst for investment in the Mixed Use – East area.  The criterion has been met.  

   
d) Buildings, generally. 



West Village Art Flats  

Conditional Use Permit 

Major Site Plan 

Three Variances 

Page 9 of 21 

 

 
1. Buildings or structures which are part of a present or future group or complex shall have a unity of 

character and design. The relationship of forms of the use, texture and color of material shall be such 
as to create one (1) harmonious whole. When the area involved forms an integral part of, is 
immediately adjacent to, or otherwise clearly affects the future of any established section of the city, 
the design, scale and location of the site shall enhance rather than detract from the character, value 
and attractiveness of the surroundings. Harmonious does not mean or require that the buildings be 
the same.  
 
Staff Response: The residential buildings will be design to be compatible with the existing 
commercial/retail uses in the MU-E zoning district. Meets criterion. 
 

2. Buildings or structures located along strips of land or on a single site, and not a part of a unified multi-
building complex shall achieve as much visual harmony with the surroundings as is possible under the 
circumstances. If a building is built in an undeveloped area, three (3) primary requirements shall be 
met, including honest design construction, proper design concepts, and appropriateness to the city.  
 
Staff Response: Meets criterion. 
 

3. All façades visible to public or adjacent property shall be designed to create a harmonious whole. 
Materials shall express their function clearly and not appear foreign to the rest of the building.  
 
Staff Response: The building facades shall be designed to meet this criterion. 
 

4. The concept of harmony shall not infer that buildings must look alike or be of the same style. Harmony 
can be achieved through the proper consideration of scale, mass, bulk, proportion, height, 
orientation, site planning, landscaping, materials, rhythm of solids to voids and architectural 
components including but not limited to porches, roof types, fenestration, orientation and stylistic 
expression.  
 
Staff Response: The proposed mixed use project is to be designed to meet this criterion. 
 

5. Look-alike buildings shall not be allowed unless, in the opinion of the board, there is sufficient 
separation to preserve the aesthetic character of the present or evolving neighborhood. This is not to 
be construed to prohibit the duplication of floor plans and exterior treatment in a planned 
development where, in the opinion of the board, the aesthetics or the development depend upon, or 
are enhanced by the look-alike buildings and their relationship to each other.  
 
Staff Response: Meets criterion. 
 

6. Buildings, which are of symbolic design for reasons of advertising, unless otherwise compatible with 
the criteria herein, will not be approved by the board. Symbols attached to the buildings will not be 
allowed unless they are secondary in appearance to the building and landscape and are an aesthetic 
asset to the building, project and neighborhood.  
 



West Village Art Flats  

Conditional Use Permit 

Major Site Plan 

Three Variances 

Page 10 of 21 

 

Staff Response: The proposed use is not designed for advertising purposes, the intent is to provide 
additional affordable residential uses and commercial uses for the enhancement of the City.   
Meets criterion. 
 

7. Exterior lighting may be used to illuminate a building and its grounds for safety purposes, but in an 
aesthetic manner. Lighting is not to be used as a form of advertising in a manner that is not compatible 
to the neighborhood or in a manner that draws considerably more attention to the building or grounds 
at night than in the day. Lighting following the form of the building or part of the building will not be 
allowed if, in the opinion of the board, the overall effect will be  detrimental to the environment. All 
fixtures used in exterior lighting are to be selected for functional as well as aesthetic value.  
 
Staff Response: The project as proposed meets this criterion. 
 

8. Building surfaces, walls and roofs shall be compatible and in harmony with the neighborhood. 
 
Staff Response: All building surfaces, walls and roofs are proposed to be compatible and in harmony 
with the surrounding vicinity. Meets criterion. 
 

9. "Take-out" or "pick-up" windows of retail or wholesale establishments shall not be located on a 
building façade that faces a public right-of-way, unless they are designed in such a manner as to 
constitute an aesthetic asset to the building and neighborhood.  
 
Staff Response:  No such design(s) have been proposed for this development.  
 

10. All exterior forms, attached to buildings, shall be in conformity to and secondary to the building. They 
shall be an asset to the aesthetics of the site and to the neighborhood.  
 
Staff Response: Meets criterion. 
 

11. All telephones, vending machines, or any facility dispensing merchandise, or a service on private 
property, shall be confined to a space built into the building or buildings or enclosed in a separate 
structure compatible with the main building, and where appropriate and feasible, should not be 
readily visible from off-premises.  
 
Staff Response: No such design(s) have been proposed for this development. Meets criterion.  
 

12. Buildings of a style or style-type foreign to south Florida or its climate will not be allowed. It is also to 
be understood that buildings which do not conform to the existing or to the evolving atmosphere of 
the city, even though possessing historical significance to south Florida, may not be approved.  
 
Staff Response: Meets criterion. 
 

13. No advertising will be allowed on any exposed amenity or facility such as benches and trash 
containers.  
 



West Village Art Flats  

Conditional Use Permit 

Major Site Plan 

Three Variances 

Page 11 of 21 

 

Staff Response: No advertising has been proposed by this applicant. Meets criterion. 
 

14. Light spillage restriction. The applicant shall make adequate provision to ensure that light spillage 
onto adjacent residential properties is minimized. 
  
Staff Response: The proposal has been designed to meet this criterion. 
 

l) Community appearance criteria. The general requirements outlined in this section are minimum 
aesthetic standards for all site developments, buildings, structures, or alterations within the corporate 
limits of the city, except single-family residences. However, additions to existing bui ldings and sites shall 
be subject to review by the development review official for a determination regarding submission to the 
planning and zoning board or historic resources preservation board for review. All site development, 
structures, buildings or alterations to site development, structures or buildings shall demonstrate proper 
design concepts, express honest design construction, be appropriate to surroundings, and meet the 
following community appearance criteria:  

 
1. The plan for the proposed structure or project is in conformity with good taste, good design,      and in 
general contributes to the image of the city as a place of beauty, spaciousness, harmony, taste, fitness, 
broad vistas and high quality. 
 
Staff Response: Criterion met. 
  
2. The proposed structure or project is not, in its exterior design and appearance, of inferior quality such 
as to cause the nature of the local environment or evolving environment to materially depreciate in 
appearance and value.  
 
Staff Response: The materials to be used on the exterior will be durable. The structure will be built of block 
clad in stucco and tile. The railings and shade structures shall consist of either coasted aluminum or steel. 
Criterion met  
 
3. The proposed structure or project is in harmony with the proposed developments in the general area, 
with code requirements pertaining to site plan, signage and landscaping, and the comprehensive plan for 
the city, and with the criteria set forth herein.  
 
Staff Response: The proposed project is designed to be in harmony with the local built environment. 
Criterion met. 
 
4. The proposed structure or project is in compliance with this section and 23.2-29, as applicable 
 
Staff Response: Criterion met.  

 
Townhouse Standards 
 
(1)  Front setback shall be ten (10) feet, with an open porch permitted in a minimum of five (5)         
       Feet of setback;  

https://www2.municode.com/library/fl/lake_worth/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=PTIICOOR_CH23LADERE_ART2AD_DIV3PE_S23.2-29COUSPE


West Village Art Flats  

Conditional Use Permit 

Major Site Plan 

Three Variances 

Page 12 of 21 

 

 
Staff Response: Meets Criterion. 
 

(2) Distance between townhouse structures shall be twenty (20) feet; however, distance between      
      double-stacked townhouse structures shall be thirty (30) feet; 
 
Staff Response: The distance between the structures shall be about 32 feet. Meets criterion. 
  
(3) Rear setback shall be twenty (20) feet with ten (10) feet for accessory structures;  
 
Staff Response: Meets criterion. 
 
(4) Townhouse structures shall not exceed one hundred twenty (120) feet in overall length  or six    
      (6) Units;  
 
Staff Response: Meets Criterion. 
 
(5) The maximum number of attached townhouse units within a townhouse building fronting on  
      Federal Highway shall be four (4) units, unless a planned development district is approved;  
 
Staff Response: This project does not front Federal Highway. Criterion does not apply 
 
(6) No front door access from alleys when abutting single family residential use or district.  
 
Staff Response: Meets criterion. 
 
Sustainable Bonus Incentive Program 
 
The maximum allowable building height for the MU-East district is 30 feet.  However, the proposed site 
plan and architectural plans indicate 35’ for the height of the two proposed townhome buildings.  In order 
to be allowed to increase the height of the building, the applicant has applied for the Sustainable Bonus 
Incentive Program, which allows an increase in height beyond two stories or an increase in floor area ratio 
(FAR) provided the applicant has additional improvements elsewhere on site that go above and beyond 
what is required by code. In addition, in order to benefit from the Sustainable Bonus Incentive, it requires 
that all stories above the second story, both the front façade and rear façade must be setback and 
additional distance beyond the minimum. In this instance, the front façade for the third story and above 
must have a front setback of height (8) to twelve (12) feet in addition to the minimum. As indicated on 
the Sustainable Bonus Incentive Program Application included with this submittal, the applicant is 
required to determine the total value of the required improvements and provide a description of the 
proposed improvements and the valuation of the same.  
 
According to Section B of the Sustainable Bonus Application, Based on a value multiplier of $5.00 per 
square foot, the total value of required improvements is $26,665.   
 
Multiply the Bonus Area by the Value Multiplier to determine the value of required improvements.  



West Village Art Flats  

Conditional Use Permit 

Major Site Plan 

Three Variances 

Page 13 of 21 

 

5,333 square feet (to add a Third Floor) x $5.00/SF of Bonus Area= $26,665   
 

In addition, according to Section C of the Sustainable Bonus Application, the applicant is proposing the 
following community benefit: 
    
On‐Site Features & Improvements: 
1. The project will be designed to achieve either Florida Green Building Council or ICC 700 National Green 
Building Standard certification: $13,333, which will require a performance bond in this amount. 
2. Construction value of the addition of Luna Park Plaza open for use by the public and residents by moving 
the commercial building north by 14 feet and preserving 3 mature trees. Size of the plaza shall be 860 
square feet, $21,500 
3. Inclusion of 12 bike racks to encourage visits by non-motorized vehicles: $2,400 
4. Six existing mature trees have been preserved in the site layout plan, $2,120. This feature cannot 
receive bonus credit because these trees would have to be replaced in kind and number when they are 
removed.    
Total Value of Community Benefit $ 37,233 
 
Site Plan Review Team 
 
The project was reviewed by the Site Plan Review Team on March 14, 2016.   

 
Conclusion: 

 
The analysis has shown that the required findings can be made with respect to the Conditional Land Use  
and, Major Site Plan requests.  The use as proposed is in harmony with the underlying zoning district and 
surrounding areas, subject to compliance with staff proposed conditions of approval.  
 
CONSEQUENT ACTION:  
 
The Planning & Zoning Board’s decision on the Conditional Land Use  and Major Site Plan will be final. The 
staff recommends that the Planning and Zoning Board approve the Major Site Plan and Conditional Use   
to allow for the construction of 8 townhomes with a +/- 2,000 square foot commercial building.      
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends the following on the Major Site Plan and Conditional Land Use requests: 
 
Staff recommends that the Planning and Zoning Board DENY PZB Project# 16-01400001, Major Site Plan 
to allow for the construction of eight (8) townhomes  with a +/- 2,000 commercial building pursuant to 
Section 23.2-30, 23.2-31, 23.2-32 of the LDRs. The site currently has a Mixed Use – East (MU-E) zoning 
district, with a Future Land Use designation of Mixed Use – East (MU-E).  This recommendation is based 
upon the denial of the variances requested.        
 
Staff recommends that the Planning & Zoning Board  DENY PZB Project# 16-00500001, Conditional Land 
Use to allow for the construction of eight  (8) townhomes with a +/- 2,000 square foot commercial 



West Village Art Flats  

Conditional Use Permit 

Major Site Plan 

Three Variances 

Page 14 of 21 

 

building. The site currently has a Mixed Use – East (MU-E) zoning district, with a Future Land Use 
designation of Mixed Use – East (MU-E). This motion is pursuant to Section 23.2-29 and Section 23.4-13 
of the Land Development Regulations (LDRs);  
 
POTENTIAL MOTION: 
 
Should the Planning & Zoning Board concur with staff’s recommendation the following motions are 
recommended: 
 
“PZB PROJECT NUMBER 16-01400001: I MOVE TO APPROVE/DENY PZB PROJECT Project # 16-01400001,  
Major Site Plan to construct eight (8) townhomes pursuant to Section 23.2-30, 23.2-31, 23.2-32 of the 
LDRs. The site currently has a Mixed Use – East (MU-E) zoning district, with a Future Land Use designation 
of Mixed Use – East (MU-E).    
 
“PZB PROJECT NUMBER 16-00500001: I MOVE TO APPROVE/DENY PZB PROJECT Project # 16-00500001,  
Conditional Land Use to allow for the construction of 8 townhomes with a +/- 2,000 square foot 
commercial building. The site currently has a Mixed Use – East (MU-E) zoning district, with a Future Land 
Use designation of Mixed Use – East (MU-E). This motion is pursuant to Section 23.2-29 and Section 23.4-
13 of the Land Development Regulations (LDRs);  
 
Variance Request 
 

VARIANCE ANALYSIS: 

According to Section 23.2-26 the power to grant any such variance shall be limited by and be 

contingent upon documentation that all required findings are made by the appropriate board. The 

following addresses each of the required findings with respect to the applicant’s requested variances. 
 
PZB Project# 16-01500003, 16-01500004, 16-01500005: Variances from the minimum setback 
requirements pursuant to Section 23.3-13 of the City’s Land Development Regulations for the following: 
 
1. PZB 16-01500003, Design Guidelines for Major Thoroughfares: According to the City’s Land 
Development Regulations (LDRs), for corner lot properties such as this site, the front yard shall be the 
narrow end of said lot whether or not the physical structure is oriented toward the narrow side. According 
to the City’s “Design Guidelines for Old Town Historic District and Major Thoroughfares”, buildings along 
Lucerne Avenue shall have a zero (0) front setback unless an arcade or loggia is provided. Therefore, there 
is a conflict between the City’s LDRs and the Major Thoroughfare Guidelines. As a result of this conflict 
between the LDRs and the Major Thoroughfare Guidelines, applicant is requesting a variance to allow a 
10 foot setback along Lucerne Avenue.       
 
2. PZB 16-01500004, Section 23.3-13 (d) 3(a): Minimum front setback for nonresidential building shall 
be 10 feet not to exceed 22 feet along Lake Avenue and Lucerne Avenue.   The applicant is proposing for 
the commercial building planned at the corner of North F Street and Lucerne Avenue to be setback 24 
feet where 22 feet is the maximum allowed by this section. 
 



West Village Art Flats  

Conditional Use Permit 

Major Site Plan 

Three Variances 

Page 15 of 21 

 

3. PZB 16-01500005, Section 23.3-13(3) (d) - Additional height and stories setback: Buildings in excess of 
thirty (30) feet in height shall provide an additional front and rear setback of between 8 and 12 feet to the 
minimum required front and rear setback. The applicant is proposing no additional front and rear setback 
in addition to the minimum required front and rear setback. The Sustainable Bonus program allows an 
applicant to add five (5) additional feet of building height for a third floor, provided the front façade and 
rear façade be setback  8 to 12 feet in addition to the minimum setback.    
 
 

1. Special circumstances or conditions exist which are peculiar to the land or building for which the 

variance is sought and do not apply generally to nearby lands and buildings, and that this is not 

the result of action of the applicant;  
 
Staff Response: The applicant complies with this standard.  
Major Thoroughfares: The existing circumstance that created this variance request originates 
from the conflict between the “Design Guidelines for Old Town Historic District and Major 
Thoroughfares” and the Land Development Regulation (LDRs). The Major Thoroughfare 
Guidelines (“guidelines”) were initially implemented in May of 2001. The current LDRs were 
approved and implemented in August 2013. According to the City’s Land Development 
Regulations (LDRs), for corner lot properties such as this site, the front yard shall be the narrow 
end of said lot whether or not the physical structure is oriented toward the narrow side. According 
to the City’s “Design Guidelines for Old Town Historic District and Major Thoroughfares”, buildings 
along Lucerne Avenue shall have a zero (0) front setback unless an arcade or loggia is provided. 
Therefore, there is a conflict between the City’s LDRs and the Major Thoroughfare Guidelines. As 
a result of this conflict between the LDRs and the Major Thoroughfare Guidelines, the applicant 
is required to request a variance to allow a 10 foot setback along Lucerne Avenue as required in 
the LDRs. Whenever there is a conflict with the LDRs and the guidelines, the LDRs take 
precedence.   Thus, this special circumstance is not due to the action(s) of the applicant but, by 
the conflict in the implementation of the City’s regulations.      
 
The applicant does not comply with this standard. 
Minimum front setback for nonresidential building shall be 10 feet not to exceed 22 feet along 
Lake Avenue and Lucerne Avenue: There are no circumstances or conditions unique to this site 
that require the applicant to request this variance. The applicant has the lot area to reduce the 
setback for the commercial building by 2 feet (24 inches)  to a 22 foot setback. The impact of the 
proposed commercial building will not adversely affect the existing shade tree near the corner of 
Lucerne Avenue and North F Street.   

 

Staff Response: The applicant does not comply with this standard. 

Additional height and stories setback: There are no special circumstances or conditions peculiar 

or unique to the land requiring the approval of the setback variance. The applicant can remove 

the need for this variance request by simply designing or redesigning the structures to build each 

structure at two stories or set back the third floor to meet the required setback or set back the 

entire building to meet the setback requirement. An undue hardship exists only if the condition is 

unique to the property. A condition or circumstance is not unique if it is shared by other properties 



West Village Art Flats  

Conditional Use Permit 

Major Site Plan 

Three Variances 

Page 16 of 21 

 

in the zoning district. Every single property within this zoning district is subject to this height 

requirement for a sustainable bonus.   There are no conditions on this vacant, unimproved lot 

which make it unique or peculiar whereby the required setbacks cannot be met. The variance 

request should not be granted. 
          
 

2. The strict application of the provision of these LDRs would deprive the applicant of any reasonable 

use of the land or building for which the variance is sought;  

 

Staff Response: The applicant complies with this standard. 

Major Thoroughfares: Because of the conflict between the LDRs and the thoroughfare guidelines, 

the strict application of the provision of the LDRs create a major disruption and deprive the 

applicant’s ability to adequately plan and design their project for this site.  

 

Staff Response: The applicant does not comply with this standard. 

Minimum front setback for nonresidential building shall be 10 feet not to exceed 22 feet along 

Lake Avenue and Lucerne Avenue: To prove that the applicant will receive no reasonable return 

without a two foot (24 inch) variance, they must prove they will receive no reasonable return  

without this variance. Due to the fact that this is a vacant site, the applicant can design their site 

plan to reduce the setback in such a way that the impact on the existing shade tree should be 

minimal. Requesting a variance to justify the preservation of the tree is not the only option 

available to the applicant. The city code other mitigation options, such as providing replacement 

trees on site equivalent to the caliper of the tree, paying a fee proportionate to the size of the 

tree, etc.  

  

 

Staff Response: The applicant does not comply with this standard. 

Additional height and stories setback: In order for the applicant to prove that they will receive 

no reasonable return without the variance, they must show that they will be deprived of all 

beneficial use of their property. Currently the site is vacant and can be designed by the applicant 

to obtain a reasonable use of the land. Instead of having two 3 story townhouse  building, the 

applicant can very easily design and build two townhome structures that will be two stories in 

height thus not needing to apply for the Sustainable Bonus Incentive.  Or the applicant could 

design two 3 story townhouse buildings that met the required setbacks.  The applicant consciously 

has chosen to design structures that are in conflict with the City’s Sustainable Bonus Incentive 

Program and its requirement that stories above the second floor to be set back an additional 8, 

10 or 12 feet. Therefore, the request is not reasonable and not in keeping with the spirit and 

intent of the LDRs and comprehensive plan.  The variance request should not be granted. 

 



West Village Art Flats  

Conditional Use Permit 

Major Site Plan 

Three Variances 

Page 17 of 21 

 

3. That the variance proposed is the minimum variance which makes possible the reasonable use of 

the land or building;   

 

 

Staff Response: The applicant complies with this standard. 

Major Thoroughfares: As a result of the conflict between the LDRs and the major thoroughfare 

guidelines, approval of the variance request is the minimum variance necessary that would enable 

the applicant to make a reasonable use of this site.   

 

Staff Response: The applicant does not comply with this standard. 

Minimum front setback for nonresidential building shall be 10 feet not to exceed 22 feet along 

Lake Avenue and Lucerne Avenue: Denial of the two foot variance would not deprive the 

applicant of the ability to plan, design and build this project while complying with the City’s LDRs.  

 

Staff Response: The applicant does not comply with this standard. 

Additional height and stories setback: The concept of "reasonable use of the land or building" 

has been defined in very specific terms by Planning and Zoning experts. To prove that the 

landowners will receive no reasonable return without the variance, they must show that they will 

be deprived of all beneficial use of their land. What this standard means is that they must show 

that the land is not suitable for any use permitted by the zoning ordinance. The applicants have 

not shown how the zoning regulations deprive them of a reasonable use of their land. Conversely, 

the subject property is vacant and can be reasonably design to meet the City’s LDRs.   The variance 

should not be granted. 

 

4. That the granting of the variance will be in accordance with the spirit and purpose of this chapter, 

and will not be unduly injurious to contiguous property or the surrounding neighborhood nor 

otherwise detrimental to the public welfare. In deciding appeals from decisions of the 

development review official or in granting variances, the decision-making board is authorized and 

required to impose any reasonable conditions and safeguards it deems to be necessary or 

desirable, and violation of such conditions or safeguards when made a part of the terms under 

which a variance is granted, shall be deemed to be a violation of these LDRs.  

 

Staff Response: The applicant complies with this standard. 

Major Thoroughfares: Approval of this variance will allow the applicant to plan, design and build 

their project without the unduly burden of trying to navigate between the conflict between the 

LDRs and the major thoroughfare guidelines. This circumstance was not of their creation.  

 

Staff Response: The applicant does not comply with this standard. 



West Village Art Flats  

Conditional Use Permit 

Major Site Plan 

Three Variances 

Page 18 of 21 

 

Minimum front setback for nonresidential building shall be 10 feet not to exceed 22 feet along 

Lake Avenue and Lucerne Avenue: Although this request would not be unduly injurious to the 

surrounding properties, to approve this variance would be granting a special privilege that would 

not be available to other properties. The applicants have not convince the staff that not granting 

the variance would cause an "undue hardship." Undue hardship, in this context, means a problem 

created by some feature of the land rather than a desire by the applicant move the building 2 feet 

further back from the property line. Conversely, the applicants request would represent granting 

of a special privilege specific to this property.   

 

Staff Response: The applicant does not comply with this standard. 

Additional height and stories setback: In regards to the setback, the same can be said in that, 

although this request would not be unduly injurious to the surrounding properties, to approve 

this variance would be granting a special privilege that would not be available to other properties. 

The applicants have not convinced the staff that not granting the variance would cause an "undue 

hardship." It is the applicant’s desire to add a third story to the structures for reasons not 

connected to the unique topography of the site.  Granting of this variance request would be in 

direct conflict with the City’s Sustainable Bonus Incentive Program requirements for stories above 

the second floor.  The fundamental basis of the City’s LDRs and Comprehensive Plan requirements 

for additional height of buildings above the second floor is for the upper floors to be provided 

with an additional setback or for the entire building to be provided an additional setback.  Again, 

the applicant consciously designed a project that does not meet either the intent or the spirit of 

the City’s LDRs and Comprehensive Plan. Therefore, the applicant’s request would represent a 

granting of a special privilege specific to this property and should in no uncertain terms be 

granted.  

 
CONSEQUENT ACTION:  
The decision of the Planning and Zoning Board will be final; however, the Applicant may appeal the Board’s 
decision to the Circuit Court of Palm Beach County. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Based on the findings outlined in the analysis, staff recommends that the Planning and Zoning Board 
approve variance number PZB 16-01500003 variance from the Design Guidelines for Major Thoroughfares 
and Section 23.3-13 (Mixed Use - East) as requested by the applicant. 
 
Staff recommends that the Planning and Zoning Board deny variance number PZB 16-01500004, variance 
from Section 23.3-13 (d) 3(a): Minimum front setback for nonresidential building shall be 10 feet not to 
exceed 22 feet along Lake Avenue and Lucerne Avenue as requested by the applicant. 
 
Staff recommends that the Planning and Zoning Board deny variance number: 16-01500005, variance 
from Section 23.3-13(3) (d) - Additional height and stories setback requirement as requested by the 
applicant. 



West Village Art Flats  

Conditional Use Permit 

Major Site Plan 

Three Variances 

Page 19 of 21 

 

 
 
POTENTIAL MOTION: 
I MOVE TO APPROVE/DENY OF PZB PROJECT NUMBER: PZB 16-01500003, variance from the Design 
Guidelines for Major Thoroughfares and Section 23.3-13 (Mixed Use - East). 
 
I MOVE TO APPROVE/DENY OF PZB PROJECT NUMBER: PZB 16-01500004, variance from Section 23.3-13 
(d) 3(a): Minimum front setback for nonresidential building shall be 10 feet not to exceed 22 feet along 
Lake Avenue and Lucerne Avenue.     
 
I MOVE TO APPROVE/DENY OF PZB PROJECT NUMBER: 16-01500005, variance from Section 23.3-13(3) (d) 
- Additional height and stories setback requirement.  
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



West Village Art Flats  

Conditional Use Permit 

Major Site Plan 

Three Variances 

Page 20 of 21 

 

 
LOCATION MAP 

 

 
 

Attachments:  
A. Conditions of Approval 
B. Proposed Plans 

Survey 
Site Plan  
Architectural Plans 
Photometric Plan 
Landscape Plan 

Preliminary Civil Plans 
 









































 DEPARTMENT FOR COMMUNITY SUSTAINABILITY 
PLANNING, ZONING AND HISTORIC PRESERVATION DIVISION 

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL AND DEVELOPMENT INFORMATION FOR 
PZB CASE No. 16-00500001 

 
Date of Preparation:   April 29, 2016 
P&ZB Meeting Date:   May 4, 2016 
Applicant: West Village Art Flats 
Location: 110 N F Street  

 

 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 
PZB CASE No. 16-00500001 

 
Standard Conditions of Approval: 

 
1. The issuance of any permits shall comply with all provisions of the Lake Worth Municipal Code 

and all other applicable Codes including but not limited to the Florida Building Code.  
 
2. Unless construction has commenced pursuant to a building permit, or a time extension is 

granted in accordance with Code, this application shall expire one (1) year from Planning & 
Zoning Board Approval. 

 
3. No Certificate of Occupancy shall be granted until all conditions of approval have been satisfied. 

 
4. This approval is for a conditional land use pursuant to Sections 23.2-29 for a Conditional Use 

Permit approval to allow for the construction of a eight (8) townhomes and a +/- 2,000 square 
foot commercial building on a  +/- 20,933 square foot parcel within the Mixed Use-East (MU-E) 
zoning district at 110 North F Street. 

 
5.  This use must operate in compliance with all state and local laws that govern this use.   
 
6. In the event of a legal challenge to this approval, the applicant shall be responsible for all costs 

to defend the action of the city in approving any and all permits related to this application. 
Should the applicant fail to enter into an agreement fund the costs of litigation, the city, at its 
discretion, may rescind this approval and revoke all permits issued.  

 
Additional Conditions of Approval: 
 
Planning and Zoning 
 

1. The approval of the major site plan is subject to the approval of the variance related to the 
location of the lot frontage. 

2. The approval of the major site plan is subject to the approval of the variance related to the front 
setback for the commercial building. 

3. The major plan is predicated upon meeting the requirements of the Land Development 
Regulations and Sustainable Bonus Incentive. 



PZB No. 16-01400001 
PZB No. 16-00500001 

PZB 16-01500003 
PZB 16-01500004 

PZB 16-01500005 
110 North F Street 

Major Si te Plan, Conditional Use Permit and three Variances  
Planning and Zoning Board Meeting of April 6, 2016 

Page 2 

 

4. The major plan is predicated upon meeting the requirements of the Land Development 
Regulations and Sustainable Bonus Incentive. 

5. Prior to the issuance of a building permit, the applicant shall provide for adequate emergency 
vehicle access to the site. 

 
 
 

Public Services: 
 
1. The issuance of any permits shall comply with all provisions of the Lake Worth Municipal Code and all 
other applicable standards including but not limited to the Florida Department of Transportation (FDOT), 
Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices (MUTCD), and City of Lake Worth Public Services Construction 
Standards and Policy and Procedure Manual.  
 
2. No Certificate of Occupancy shall be granted until all conditions of approval have been satisfied under 
jurisdiction of the Department of Public Services.  
 
3. Prior to the issuance of a building permit, the applicant shall contact the Lake Worth Drainage (LWDD) 
District’s Engineering Department and obtain any required permit(s), if necessary, and furnish to the City.  
 
Prior to the issuance of a building permit, the applicant shall contact the South Florida Water Management 
District’s (SFWMD) Engineering Department and obtain any required permit(s), if necessary.   
 
4. Prior to issuance of a certificate of occupancy, the applicant shall remove and construct a new 5-foot 
wide sidewalk along the east side of North F Street from the southwest property corner to the northwest 
property corner in compliance with the Public Service Department’s specifications and Policy and 
Procedure Manual. 
  
5. Prior to issuance of a certificate of occupancy, the applicant shall remove and construct new Type F 
curb and gutter along the east side of North F Street from the southwest property corner to the northwest 
property corner in compliance with the Public Services Department’s specifications. 
  
6. Prior to issuance of a certificate of occupancy, the applicant shall construct a 1” mill and overlay along 
the eastern half of North F Street from the southwest property corner to the northwest property corner , 
from the centerline of the roadway to the east curb line in compliance with the Public Services 
Department’s specifications.  
 
7. Prior to issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy, (should the construction of off -site improvements not 
be feasible due to timing, future City planning, etc.) the applicant shall make a contribution to the City’s 
Construction Fund for the associated costs of those improvements to the associated right of way.  



PZB No. 16-01400001 
PZB No. 16-00500001 

PZB 16-01500003 
PZB 16-01500004 

PZB 16-01500005 
110 North F Street 

Major Si te Plan, Conditional Use Permit and three Variances  
Planning and Zoning Board Meeting of April 6, 2016 

Page 3 

 

 
8. Prior to the issuance of a building permit, provide a signage and striping plan that illustrates the striping 
pattern necessary for vehicles entering and exiting the property.  
9. Prior to issuance of a certificate of occupancy, construct off-site signage and striping improvements per 
the approved plan and in accordance with the construction standards of the Public Services Dept. 
 
10. Prior to the issuance of a certificate of occupancy, alleyway improvements consisting of a 1” mill and 
overlay at the alleyway approach at North F Street to the northeast property corner shall be constructed  
in accordance with the construction standards of the Public Services Dept.  
 
11. Prior to the issuance of a building permit, the Applicant shall contact and meet with a representative 
from the Public Services Refuse and Recycling Division to confirm refuse  enclosure location, accessibility 
and demand on property and that it is compatible with the requirements of the Department of Public 
Services. Refuse Division contact number is 561-533-7344. 
 
12. Prior to the issuance of a certificate of occupancy, the Applicant shall ensure the entire surrounding 
off-site infrastructure inclusive of the roadway, sidewalk, curbing, stormwater system piping and 
structures, valve boxes, manholes, landscaping, striping, signage, and other improvements are in the same 
condition as prior to construction. 
 
13. Prior to the issuance of a building permit, the applicant shall submit an Erosion Control plan and 
indicate the BMP’s and NPDES compliance practices. Prior to the issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy, 
the applicant shall fine grade and sod all disturbed areas with Bahia sod. 
 
14. Prior to the issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy, the applicant shall broom sweep all areas of the 
affected right of way and remove of all silt and debris collected as a result of construction activity. 

 

Utilities – Electric 
 
None 

 
UTILITIES‐WATER & SEWER 
 
Prior to Building Permit application, the Preliminary Engineering Plans shall be amended as follows:  
 
1. Fire department connections must be within 100 feet of a fire hydrant.  
 



PZB No. 16-01400001 
PZB No. 16-00500001 

PZB 16-01500003 
PZB 16-01500004 

PZB 16-01500005 
110 North F Street 

Major Si te Plan, Conditional Use Permit and three Variances  
Planning and Zoning Board Meeting of April 6, 2016 

Page 4 

 

2. Provide a 15 foot utility easement around the proposed watermains and gravity sewer, except between 
proposed buildings “A” and “B” where 10 foot easement will be acceptable, and a 5 foot utility easement 
around proposed fire hydrants. 
 
3. Provide fireflow calculations based on a recent hydrant test.  
 
4. Provide cross-section on each property line and grading to indicate site will maintain the runoff from a 
3 year - 1 day storm event. Perimeter swales may be required.  
 
5. Provide geotechnical report on the determination of the hydraulic conductivity “K” value.   
 
6. Prior to building permit issuance, reserved capacity fees for water and sewer must be paid in full in 
accordance with the current City Ordinance. 
 
 
Palm Beach County Fire Department 
 
 Prior to the issuance of a building permit, the applicant shall satisfy the Water Supply for Fire-Flow 
Requirement. 

 
Building Division 
 

Prior to the issuance of a building permit, the applicant shall comply with all Building Division regulations 
of the City of Lake Worth as it relates to this development.     

 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 
PZB CASE No. 16-00500001 

 
Conditional Land Use 
 

1. The proposed Luna Park Plaza shall remain open to the public and remain clear and clean of any 
trash or debris. 

 
2.  Any activities associated with the operation of the Luna Park Plaza shall emit no more than 65 

(db) decibels and at no time be audible above daytime ambient noise levels beyond the real 
property lines of the site.  

 
 
 



PZB No. 16-01400001 
PZB No. 16-00500001 

PZB 16-01500003 
PZB 16-01500004 

PZB 16-01500005 
110 North F Street 

Major Si te Plan, Conditional Use Permit and three Variances  
Planning and Zoning Board Meeting of April 6, 2016 

Page 5 

 

Approved by: 
 
 
_________________________ 
Maxime Ducoste 
Assistant Director for Planning and Preservation 
 
 



155.00'(P) 154.95'(M)

13
5.

00
'(P

) 1
35

.1
9'(

M
)

13
5.

00
'(P

) 1
34

.7
0'(

M
)

155.00'(P) 154.84'(M)

90°

FLAG POLE

CBMH 2

MH 3
MH 4

CB
8' CONC. WALK

30
.0

'

2' CONC. F CURB

LUCERNE AVENUE
60' PLATTED R/W

40' ASPHALT

NO
RT

H 
F 

ST
RE

ET
40

' R
/W

28
.6

' A
SP

HA
LT

20.0'

CC

C
C

FOUND MAG &
DISK/LB 7551

FOUND 1/2"
IRON ROD
NO ID

FOUND MAG &
DISK/LB 7551

FOUND 1/2"
IRON ROD
NO ID

5' 
CO

NC
. W

AL
K

SMH 1

AT&T ±15' ASPHALT
15' PLATTED ALLEY

LOT 25
BLOCK 12

5' CONC.

WPP

LOT 31
BLOCK 12

LOT 30
BLOCK 12

LOT 29
BLOCK 12

LOT 28
BLOCK 12

LOT 27
BLOCK 12

LOT 26
BLOCK 12

W
PP

GR
AP

HI
C 

SC
AL

E
0

3
0

6
0

1
5

1 
inc

h 
= 

 3
0 

 ft
.

4
5

1"
=3

0' 
   

  

90°

90°
90°

25.0' 25.0' 25.0' 25.0' 25.0' 30.0'

Ø 15"

Ø 15"

Ø 20"

Ø 15" Ø 15"

Ø 12"

Ø 9" Ø 16"

BOLLARD
(TYPICAL)

Ø 10"

Ø 7"

Ø 9"

BE
NC

HM
AR

K
BO

X 
CU

T
EL

EV
 =

 1
5.

39
'

DIRT

MH 5

ES
LP

CB
LP

ESES

WPP

EXISTING BUILDING
(ACCESS IS FROM F St.,

HAS OFF-STREET PARKING,
NO LOADING OR SERVICE

AREAS, NO BUFFERS)

WV

WPP
WPP WPP

WPP
WM BACKFLOW

PREVENTER

AD
JA

CE
NT

 B
UI

LD
IN

G
(A

CC
ES

S 
IS

 F
RO

M
 L

UC
ER

NE
 A

VE
NU

E,
NO

 O
FF

-S
TR

EE
T 

PA
RK

IN
G,

NO
 L

OA
DI

NG
 O

R 
SE

RV
IC

E 
AR

EA
S,

NO
 B

UF
FE

RS
)

PA
RK

IN
G

SP
AC

E
PA

RK
IN

G
SP

AC
E

PARKING SPACE PARKING SPACE PARKING SPACE

3.0'

3.2'

CONCRETE WALK

EDGE OF PAVEMENT

EXISTING
BUILDING

IN
GR

ES
S-

EG
RE

SS

NO
 P

AR
KI

NG

10'x10'
UTILITY
EASEMENT
(ORB 3141
PG 1740)

5' RIGHT OF WAY EASEMENT
(ORB  3694 PG 1680)
EXCLUDED FROM TITLE POLICY

INGRESS-EGRESS

IN
GR

ES
S-

EG
RE

SS

IN
GR

ES
S-

EG
RE

SS

PARKING SPACE PARKING SPACE

FIRE
HYDRANT

FIRE
HYDRANT

STORM MH
RIM= 15.78
BOTTOM= 10.76
TOP OF 10" PIPE= 12.76

SMH 1:
RIM = 15.58'
EAST  = 12.48
WEST = 12.53
SOUTH = 12.61

BSTMH

MH 2:
RIM = 15.78'
INV. = 10.73'

MH 3:
RIM = 15.82'
INV. = 10.38'

MH 4:
RIM = 15.77'
INV. = 10.87'

14.59'14.55'

TRASH
CAN

TREE

"X-ING" SIGN

PLANTER

BENCH
SIGN

15.50'

SMH 5:
RIM = 16.82'
INV. = 13.26'

SANITARY MANHOLE
RIM = 16.44'
INV NORTH = 12.26'
INV WEST = 12.34'

H
Y D

H
Y D

OVERHEAD
CABLES

16.2'

17.2'

15.7'

16.2'

16.
63'

16.2'

17.0'

14.9'

14.9'

16.
38'

15.60'

15.90'

15.56'

15.53'

15.
78'

16.
5'

17.
7'

17.
5'

17.
4'

17.71'

15.85'

16.
04'

16.
60'

15.
44'

15.75'

15.57'

15.47'

15.
42'

15.
70'

16.
16'

16.
11'

16.34'
16.86'

17.
94'

TREE

PLANTER

NOTE:
1) ELEVATIONS SHOWN HEREON ARE
BASED ON NATIONAL GEODETIC VERTICAL
DATUM OF 1929. AND REFERENCE SITE 
BENCHMARK SET IN UTILITY POLE.

OHLOHLOHLOHL

8"
 P

IP
E

8" SANITARY LINE
6" WATER LINE 6" WATER LINE 6" WATER LINE 6" WATER LINE

6" W
ATER LINE

6" W
ATER LINE

6" W
ATER LINE

6" W
ATER LINE

6" W
ATER LINE

24
" S

TO
RM

 P
IP

E

2) UNDERGROUND LINES LOCATED HEREON 
ARE PER ABOVE GROUND EVIDENCE AND 
AS-BUILT LOCATION FROM CITY OF LAKE
WORTH GIS MAPLET, AND SHOULD BE VERIFIED
PRIOR TO ANY EXCAVATION.

 28.3' CARTWAY

16.3' CARTWAY

26
.9

2'

40
.0

1'

O

ETC

NO. 5044
STATE OF

I D

U

LF
RO

DN S

E
F

O
R

P

A

N
OI

S

L

S

AL

R
E

P
P

M

O

A
YEVR

R
&

A

R
CGINO FU

TR IFI
E

LAN
A

BOUNDARY SURVEY

14090792 F ROAD WIDTHS                                              JH                      01-16-16
                         REV + ELEV JPM CD 10-27-15

REV CD 10-12-15
UPDATE P/B CD 09-28-15
BOUNDARY SURVEY DL CD 09-15-14

JOB# PURPOSE FIELD DRAFT DATE

PM SURVEYING

LOCATION MAP
NTSPROPERTY ADDRESS:

110 NORTH F STREET
LAKE WORTH, FL 33460

FLOOD ZONE:  “C”
Panel No: 120213 0002 C
Date: SEPTEMBER 30, 1982

CERTIFIED TO:
CITY OF LAKE WORTH

LEGAL DESCRIPTION:
PER VESTING DEED IN ORB 27554 PG 0905 AND AS SHOWN ON PROPERTY APPRAISER'S WEBSITE:
LOTS 26-31, INCLUSIVE, BLOCK 12, THE PALM BEACH FARMS COMPANY PLAT NO. 2,
TOWNSITE OF LUCERNE, NOW KNOWN AS LAKE WORTH, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT
THEREOF AS RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 2, PAGE 29 OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF PALM
BEACH COUNTY, FLORIDA.
NOTE:
TITLE POLICY  COMMITMENT, REVIEWED HEREON, EXCLUDES SOUTHERLY FIVE FEET OF ABOVE
DESCRIPTION.

SIGNED:_________ _____________________  DATE:  10-27-15
       GINO FULANO
       PROFESSIONAL LAND SURVEYOR AND MAPPER
       FLORIDA CERTIFICATE No. 5044

LICENSED BUSINESS No. 6788

4546 CAMBRIDGE STREET
WEST PALM BEACH, FL 33415
OFFICE 561-478-7764
FAX 561-478-1094

C CENTERLINE
R/W RIGHT-OF-WAY
SEC SECTION
TWP TOWNSHIP
CB CATCH BASIN
LP LIGHT POLE
WPP WOOD POWER POLE
RGE RANGE
UNREC UNRECORDED
CLF CHAIN LINK FENCE

WF WOOD FENCE
CONC CONCRETE
FD FOUND
COV COVERED
WM WATER METER
CBS CONCRETE BLOCK
STRUCTURE
POB POINT OF BEGINNING
POC POINT OF
COMMENCEMENT

ABBREVIATIONS

Please visit us on the web @ www.pmsurveying.net

SURVEYORS' NOTES:
1. I HEREBY CERTIFY this survey meets Minimum Technical Standards
pursuant to Section 472.027, Florida Statutes.
2. The survey map and report and the copies thereof are not valid without the
signature and the original raised seal of a Florida licensed surveyor and mapper.
3. Underground or obscured improvements were not located.
4. Dimensions are record and field unless otherwise noted.
5. Stated dimensions take precedence over scaled dimensions.
6. This firm's Certificate of Authorization Number is LB 6788.
7. Additions or deletions to survey maps or reports by other than the signing
party or parties is prohibited without written consent of the signing party or parties.
8. Survey subject to reservations, restrictions, easements and rights-of-way
of record. (This survey has been completed in the absence of a title insurance policy).
9. Location map is gleaned from online mapping sites and and is only approximate.

TITLE POLICY COMMITMENT REVIEW:
THIS OFFICE HAS REVIEWED FIDELITY NATIONAL TITLE INSURANCE COMPANY'S COMMITMENT FOR TITLE INSURANCE,
ISSUED BY MATHISON WHITTLES, LLP, ORDER NUMBER: 5478751; CUSTOMER REFERENCE:9242C; EFFECTIVE DATE:
SEPTEMBER 16TH, 2015; AND ALL PLOTTABLE SURVEY MATTERS ARE DEPICTED.
SCHEDULE B2 EXCEPTIONS:
1-6. STANDARD EXCEPTIONS. NOT SURVEY MATTERS. NOT DEPICTED.
7. MINERAL RIGHTS. NOT A SURVEY MATTER. NOT DEPICTED.
8. MINERAL RIGHTS. NOT A SURVEY MATTER. NOT DEPICTED.
9. EASEMENT TO SOUTHER BELL. IN ORB 3141 PG 1740. DEPICTED IN NORTHEAST CORNER OF PROPERTY.
10. RIGHT OF WAY EASEMENT IN ORB 3694 PG 1680. DEPICTED ALONG SOUTH OF PROPERTY.
11. FLORIDA LEAGUE OF CITIES OBLIGATIONS IN ORB 5035, PG 1141 & ORB 5988 PG 915. NOT A SURVEY MATTER. NOT
DEPICTED.
12. UNRECORDED RESOLUTION 47-89. CREATES DEVELOPMENT AGENCY. NOT A SURVEY MATTER.  NOT DEPICTED.
13. SUPPORT OF GATEWAY LOAN FINANCING IN ORB 25680 PG 1830.



E
X

IS
T

IN
G

 C
O

M
M

E
R

C
IA

L
 /
 R

E
T

A
IL

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

EXISTING ARMORY
ARTS BUILDING

(3) 3-Story
Townhouses

1 Story
Retail

(5) 3-Story
Townhouse

SHARED
PARK /

GARDEN

LUCERNE AVENUE  S.R. 802 F.D.O.T. R.O.W.

N
."

F
" 

ST
R

E
E

T

ALLEY (ASPHALT PAVED)ALLEY (SHELLROCK PAVED)

LUNA PARK

EXISTING CRA PHASE
1 ARTIST LOFTS

EXISTING CRA PHASE
1 ARTIST LOFTS

EXISTING LIGHT
INDUSTRIAL

BUILDING

EXISTING RESIDENTIAL
BUILDING

EXISTING
RESIDENTIAL

BUILDINGS

EXISTING
CONDOMINIUM

COMPLEX

E
X

IS
T

IN
G

 W
A

R
E

H
O

U
S

E

F
.E

.C
. 
C

O
R

R
ID

O
R

CITY OF LAKE WORTH
PARKING LOT

REG #

DATE

DRAWN

CHECKED

© 2016

DESIGNER

OWNERSHIP AND USE OF THESE DOCUMENTS &
SPECIFICATIONS AS INSTRUMENTS OF SERVICE
ARE AND SHALL REMAIN THE PROPERTY OF THE
ARCHITECT WHETHER THE PROJECT THEY ARE
MADE FOR IS EXECUTED OR NOT.  THEY SHALL
NOT BE USED BY THE OWNER OR OTHERS ON
OTHER PROJECTS OR FOR ADDITIONS TO THIS
PROJECT BY OTHERS, EXCEPT BY AGREEMENT IN
WRITING AND WITH APPROPRIATE
COMPENSATION TO THE ARCHITECT.

www.regarchitects.com

W E S T B E A C HP A L M
3 0 0 C L E M A T I S S T R E E T

A R - 0 0 1 4 1 7 2P R E S I D E N T
RICK GONZALEZ, A.I.A

F L O R I D A 33401
P H : ( 5 6 1 )  -  6 5 9  -  2 3 8 3

( 5 6 1 )  -  6 5 9  -  5 5 4 6F A X :

EST. 1988

AA - 0002447
CORPORATION NUMBER

REG

Neighborhood Renaissance, Inc.
510 24th St., Suite A

West Palm Beach, FL 33407

Lake Worth CRA
29 South J Street, Unit 1

Lake Worth, FL 33460

CVR

Cover Sheet

02-09-2016

RM

DE/REG

SITE PLAN REVIEW

15035

110 North "F" Street
Lake Worth, FL 33460

West Village
Art Lofts

----
 1" = 40'-0"1 00 - Site Plan - Vicinity

NO. DATE DESCRIPTION

SITE PLAN REVIEW

02-09-2016

WEST VILLAGE ART LOFTS
110 North "F" Street lake Worth, FL 33460 REG ARCHITECTS - INTERIORS - PLANNERS, INC.

Rick Gonzalez, AIA, President
Darrin Engel, Project manager
300 Clematis Street, West palm Beach, FL 33401
Phone: 561-659-2383 / Fax: 561-659-5546

LAKE WORTH CRA
29 South J Street, Unit 1
Lake Worth, FL 33460

NEIGHBORHOOD RENAISSANCE, INC.
510 24th ST, Suite A
West Palm Beach, FL 33407

WAYNE VILLAVASO LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE, INC.
Wane Villavaso, President
268 Flamingo Dr.
West Palm Beach, FL 33401
Phone: 561 820-1566 / Fax: 561 833-6707

McLEOD, McCARTHY & ASSOCIATES
Todd McLeod, Vice President
1655 PB Lakes Blvd., Ste. 712
West Palm Beach, FL 33401
Phone: 561 689-9500 / Fax: 561 689-8080

OMN&J
Philip J. Rizzo, P.E. – Vice President, Project Manager
321 LA Kirksey Street, Suite 200
West Palm Beach, FL 33401
Phone: 561-835-9994

ELLIS & GRITTER CONSULTING ENGINEERS
Ben Ellis, Project Manager
1106 North G Street, Ste. B
Lake Worth, FL  33460
Phone: 561 370-3300 / Fax: 561 370-3294

LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT

CIVIL ENGINEER

STRUCTURAL ENGINEER

MEP, FIRE PROTECTION & PHOTOMETRICS

GREEN / LEED CONSULTING

CONSULTANTS

ARCHITECT

OWNER

LOCATION MAP

LOCATED IN THE CITY
OF LAKE WORTH

1-95

LUCERNE AVE

N
 D

IX
IE

 H
W

Y

IN
TR

AC
O

AS
TA

L
W

AT
ER

W
AY

AT
LA

NT
IC

 O
CE

AN

N
 F

E
D

E
R

A
L 

H
W

Y

10th AVE N

N
 D

IX
IE

 H
W

Y

PROJECT SITE

LUCERNE AVE

FE
C 

RA
IL

RO
AD

LAKE AVE

N
 F

 S
TR

E
E

T 2ND AVE N

ARMORY ART
ANNEX

LAKE WORTH
CITY HALL

PHASE 1

PHASE
2

VICINITY MAP

TBD
X
X
X
Phone: 561 000-0000 / Fax: 561 000-0000

SHEET INDEX - SITE PLAN REVIEW

Sheet Number Sheet Name
A-Cover Sheet
CVR Cover Sheet
B-Civil
1 of 8 Paving, Grading, & Drainage Plan
2 of 8 Paving, Grading, & Drainage Details
3 of 8 Paving, Grading, & Drainage Details
4 of 8 Water & Wastewater Plan
5 of 8 Sanitary Sewer Details
6 of 8 Ssanitary Sewer Details
7 of 8 Water Details
8 of 8 Water Details
C-Landscape Design
L-1 Landscape Plan
E-Architectural
A-0.1Ex Site Plan Existing Conditions
A-0.01 Site Plan
A-0.10 Overall Plan - Retail & Studio Level
A-0.20 Overall Plan - Living Level
A-0.30 Overall Plan - Sleeping Level
A-0.40 Overall Plan - Roof Plan
A-3.00 Building Elevations
A-3.02 Elevations - Color and Shade
A-3.03 Building Materials & Colors
A-3.01 Building Elevations
G-Electrical
ES-1 Site Lighting

A VIEW FROM LUCERNE AVENUE AND "F" STREET LOOKING NORTH EAST

A VIEW FROM ON LUCERNE AVENUE BY FEC R.R. TRACKS LOOKING NORTH WEST



















EXISTING 
ESMT.

EX
IS

TI
N

G
C

O
M

M
ER

C
IA

L 
/ R

ET
A

IL
B

U
IL

D
IN

G

(3)
3-Story

Townhouses

RETAIL

MAILBOX

A/C 
GROUND
UNIT, TYP.

PROPOSED LINE OF
BALCONIES O.H.,
TYP.

(5)
3-Story

Townhouse

SHARED
PARK /GARDEN

4' ALUM. PICKET
FENCE W/ GATE

LUCERNE AVENUE  S.R. 802 F.D.O.T. R.O.W.

N
."F

" S
TR

EE
T

ALLEY

BIKE RACKS  W/
GRAVEL BELOW

LUNA 
PARK

HYM
2

COC
4

JAS
84

RAP
33

VBS
5JAS

84

COC
5

JAS
65

COC
5

VBS
5

RAP
33

HYM
2

HYM
4

HYM
4

VBS
33

LEG
145

VBS
31

CRO1
7

COC
7

COC
7

VBS
7

CRO1
7

RAP
16

LEG
21

IA
4

LEG
21

COC
40

RAP
17

LEG
21

NOD
5

NOD
5

RAP
10

CRO1
7

CES
7

LEG
14

LEG
16

LEG
14

CRO1
7

IA
3

RAP
14

COC
48

COC
34

CF
3

QV1
1

SP
4

COC
7RAP

36

PE3
3

HYM
4

LEG
50

VBS
5

HYM
4

COC
7

RAP
33

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11
12

13

LEG
14

LEG
14

LEG
14

LEG
14

LEG
14

HYM
4

HYM
2

RAP
40

AC

AC

AC

AC AC AC AC AC

VBS
21

JAS
385

PE3
2

QV1
1

RAP
10

RAP
5

5' FDOT
EASEMENT

PROPOSED LINE OF
BALCONIES O.H.,
TYP.

GRAVEL
(TYP)

TRASH/RECYCLING
CART HOLDING PAD

COC
10

Wayne
Villavaso
Landscape
Architecture,
Incorporated

Copyright 2016 By Wayne Villavaso
Landscape Architecture, Inc. This
drawing is provided for
informational purposes only, unless
signed and sealed by a Professional
Landscape Architect representing
Wayne Villavaso Landscape
Architecture, Inc.

DESIGNED BY:

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

DATE:

SCALE:

CAD FILE:

JOB NO.

SHEET

REVISIONS

Land Planning
Landscape Architecture

268 Flamingo Drive
West Palm Beach,
Florida 33401

PH. (561) 820-1566
FX. (561) 833-6707

Reg.  FL.,  N.C.,  N.Y.

WEV

WEV

WEV

2/12/2016

AS SHOWN

L1

21533W
ES

T 
V

IL
LA

G
E 

A
R

T 
LO

FT
S

 LANDSCAPE PLANThese plans are based on------- tree
survey and ----- Site Plan rec'd. via
e-mail from--- .

N

W
E

ST
 V

IL
L

A
G

E
A

R
T

 L
O

FT
S

11
0 

N
or

th
 "F

" S
tre

et
La

ke
 W

or
th

, F
L 

33
46

0

Know what's below.
before you dig.Call

R

PRESERVE

Existing Vegetation Inventory
NO. COMMON NAME SIZE ACTIONBOTANICAL NAME

PRESERVE
PRESERVE
PRESERVE
TO BE REMOVED
TO BE REMOVED
TO BE REMOVED
PRESERVE
TO BE REMOVED
TO BE REMOVED
PRESERVE
PRESERVE
PRESERVE

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13

SWIETENIA MAHAGONI 20"  CAL
QUERCUS VIRGINIANA OAK

QUERCUS VIRGINIANA OAK

MAHOGANY
XXX

15"  CAL
15"  CAL
12"  CAL
9"    CAL
16"  CAL
6"    CAL.
15"  CAL
15"  CAL
10"  CAL
7"    CAL
9"    CALCONOCARPUS ERECTUS SERICEUS  SILVER BUTTONWOOD

CONOCARPUS ERECTUS SERICEUS  SILVER BUTTONWOOD
CONOCARPUS ERECTUS SERICEUS  SILVER BUTTONWOOD

SWIETENIA MAHAGONI MAHOGANY
SWIETENIA MAHAGONI MAHOGANY
SABAL PALMETTO SABAL PALM
QUERCUS VIRGINIANA OAK
SWEITENIA MAHOGANY MAHOGANY

BUCIDA BUCERAS BLACK OLVE

EXISTING TREES TO BE REMOVED

EXISTING TREES TO REMAIN

TREE SYMBOL LEGEND

*

*
*

*
*

*

* FLORIDA NATIVE SPECIES
MODERATELY DROUGHT TOLERANT SPECIES

STREET TREE REQUIREMENTS 
IN MU-E DISTRICT

REQUIRED
1 TREE/25' L.F.=11 T

PROPOSED
12 TREES

NORTH F STREET (134.72' FRONTAGE) 5 TREES 5 TREES
LUCERNE AVENUE (154.95' FRONTAGE) 6 TREES 7 TREES

PROPOSED USE RETAIL AND TOWNHOUSE

LAND USE
DESIGNATION

P (PUBLIC)

FUTURE LAND USE PROPOSED

MU-E MIXED -USE
(EAST)

 ADJACENT TO:
MU-E: Mixed-Use-East  (Southwest, East, & West)
MDR: Medium Density Residential (North)
AMU: Artisan Mixed-Use  (Northeast)

P (PUBLIC)

EXISTING

ADJACENT
LAND USE
DESIGNATION

PROS: Public Recreation & Open Space (South)

TOTAL SITE ACRES: .4649 ACRES
SQUARE FEET SITE AREA: 20,933 SF

NATIVE STREET TREES 50% MIN.
7 TREES5 TREES

(3) THREE-STORY TOWNHOUSES
(3 UNITS@50 PTS. EA)

324 POINTS
3 TREES@10 PTS. EA.=
147 SHRUBS@2 PTS. EA.=

30 POINTS
294 POINTS

150 POINTS

(5) THREE-STORY TOWNHOUSES
(5 UNITS@50 PTS. EA)

397 POINTS
4 TREES@10 PTS. EA.=

175 SHRUBS@2 PTS. EA.=

40 POINTS

350 POINTS

250 POINTS

(PE3's COUNTED AS 1 TREE)
(INCL. EX. TREES #2,3,4)
& 4 PROPOSED TREES)

EX. TREE #13@7 PTS.= 7 POINTS

NON-RESIDENTIAL PORTION OF SITE 628 POINTS
5 TREES@10 PTS. EA.=

277 SHRUBS@2 PTS. EA.=

-- POINTS

2 EX. TREES #11&12@7 PTS.=
50 POINTS

554 POINTS

14 POINTS
4 PALMS@3:1@10 PTS. EA.= 10 POINTS

Landscape Tabulation

BUCIDA BUCERAS BLACK OLVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAPHIC SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
30'

AutoCAD SHX Text
20'

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'

AutoCAD SHX Text
RED TIP COCOPLUM  

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHRYSOBALANUS ICACO 'RED TIP' 

AutoCAD SHX Text
174

AutoCAD SHX Text
COC

AutoCAD SHX Text
3 GAL., 24" HT. X 24" SPR.,

AutoCAD SHX Text
FULL TO BASE, 24" O.C.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PETRA CROTON

AutoCAD SHX Text
CODIAEUM VAR. 'PETRA'  

AutoCAD SHX Text
28

AutoCAD SHX Text
CRO1

AutoCAD SHX Text
3 GAL., 24" HT. X 24" SPR.,

AutoCAD SHX Text
FULL TO BASE, 24" O.C.

AutoCAD SHX Text
TAB & GRANULAR

AutoCAD SHX Text
FERTILIZER  

AutoCAD SHX Text
TBD

AutoCAD SHX Text
FERT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER PLANTING SPECIFICATIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
EVERGREEN GIANT LIRIOPE   

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIRIOPE MUSCARI 'EVERGREEN GIANT'  

AutoCAD SHX Text
372

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEG

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 GAL., 10 BIBS PER POT MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
12-14" HT., 15" O.C., FULL

AutoCAD SHX Text
Plant and Materials List

AutoCAD SHX Text
SPECIFICATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
SYM

AutoCAD SHX Text
ITEM

AutoCAD SHX Text
QTY

AutoCAD SHX Text
INDIAN HAWTHORN   

AutoCAD SHX Text
RAPHIOLEPIS INDICA  

AutoCAD SHX Text
247

AutoCAD SHX Text
RAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
3 GAL., 14" HT. X 14" SPR.,

AutoCAD SHX Text
FULL TO BASE, 18" O.C.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SANDANKWA VIBURNUM

AutoCAD SHX Text
VIBURNUM SUSPENSUM   

AutoCAD SHX Text
107

AutoCAD SHX Text
VBS

AutoCAD SHX Text
3 GAL., 24" HT. X 24" SPR.,

AutoCAD SHX Text
FULL TO BASE, 24" O.C.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ST. AUGUSTINE FLORATAM SOD   

AutoCAD SHX Text
STENOTAPHRUM SEC. 'FLORATAM' 

AutoCAD SHX Text
TBD

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOD

AutoCAD SHX Text
FRESH SOLID SOD

AutoCAD SHX Text
REPLACE AS NECESSARY

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLANTING SOIL  

AutoCAD SHX Text
TBD

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER PLANTING SPECIFICATIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SPIDER LILY 

AutoCAD SHX Text
HYMENOCALLIS LATIFOLIA 

AutoCAD SHX Text
26

AutoCAD SHX Text
HYM

AutoCAD SHX Text
3 GAL., 24" HT. X 24" SPR.,

AutoCAD SHX Text
FULL PLANTS, 24" O.C.

AutoCAD SHX Text
EAST PALATKA HOLLY

AutoCAD SHX Text
ILEX X ATTENTUATA 'EAST PALATKA'

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
IA

AutoCAD SHX Text
12' HT. X 6' SPR., 5' C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SINGLE TRUNK (9 FEMALE-1 MALE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOLITAIRE PALM 

AutoCAD SHX Text
PTYCHOSPERMA ELEGANS

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
PE3

AutoCAD SHX Text
16' & 20' O.A. HT., TRIPLE, 20',20'&16'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATCHED

AutoCAD SHX Text
QUERCUS VIRGINIANA

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIVE OAK 

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
QV1

AutoCAD SHX Text
12' HT. X 6' SPR., 2" CAL., 5' C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATCHED

AutoCAD SHX Text
SABAL PALMETTO

AutoCAD SHX Text
CABBAGE PALM

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
SP

AutoCAD SHX Text
7-9 FRONDS MIN., 14" CAL.,

AutoCAD SHX Text
12'-22' C.W. STAGGERED GROUPS

AutoCAD SHX Text
3' DIA. ROOT BALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
SILVER BUTTONWOOD

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONOCARPUS ERECTUS SERICEUS  

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
CES

AutoCAD SHX Text
3 GAL., 24" HT. X 24" SPR.,

AutoCAD SHX Text
FULL TO BASE, 24" O.C.

AutoCAD SHX Text
MULCH  

AutoCAD SHX Text
TBD

AutoCAD SHX Text
MUL3

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHREDDED EUCALYPTUS

AutoCAD SHX Text
3" DEEP

AutoCAD SHX Text
GOLDEN SHOWER

AutoCAD SHX Text
CASSIA FISTULA

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
CF

AutoCAD SHX Text
12' HT. X 6-7' SPR., 5' C.T.,

AutoCAD SHX Text
FULL BRANCHING PATTERNS

AutoCAD SHX Text
DWARF SALMON OLEANDER   

AutoCAD SHX Text
NERIUM OLEANDER 'PETITE SALMON'   

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOD

AutoCAD SHX Text
3 GAL., 15" HT. X 15" SPR.,

AutoCAD SHX Text
FULL TO BASE, 24" O.C.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DWARF CONFEDERATE JASMINE   

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRACHELOSPERMUM ASIAT. 'MINIMA'   

AutoCAD SHX Text
618

AutoCAD SHX Text
JAS

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 GAL., 6" HT. X 10" SPR., 12" O.C.

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTES: 1. FLORIDA FRIENDLY LANDSCAPING PRINCIPLES SHALL BE UTILIZED IN LANDSCAPE & IRRIGATION DESIGN, INSTALLATION, AND MAINTENANCE. 2.  ALL LANDSCAPED AREAS SHALL BE PROVIDED WITH AN IRRIGATION SYSTEM, AUTOMATICALLY OPERATED, AND EQUIPPED WITH A RAIN SWITCH, TO PROVIDE COMPLETE COVERAGE OF ALL PLANT MATERIALS TO BE MAINTAINED.  



Wayne
Villavaso
Landscape
Architecture,
Incorporated

Copyright 2016 By Wayne Villavaso
Landscape Architecture, Inc. This
drawing is provided for
informational purposes only, unless
signed and sealed by a Professional
Landscape Architect representing
Wayne Villavaso Landscape
Architecture, Inc.

DESIGNED BY:

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

DATE:

SCALE:

CAD FILE:

JOB NO.

SHEET

REVISIONS

Land Planning
Landscape Architecture

268 Flamingo Drive
West Palm Beach,
Florida 33401

PH. (561) 820-1566
FX. (561) 833-6707

Reg.  FL.,  N.C.,  N.Y.

WEV

WEV

WEV

2/12/2016

AS SHOWN

L2

21533W
ES

T 
V

IL
LA

G
E 

A
R

T 
LO

FT
S

W
E

ST
 V

IL
L

A
G

E
A

R
T

 L
O

FT
S

11
0 

N
or

th
 "F

" S
tre

et
La

ke
 W

or
th

, F
L 

33
46

0

AutoCAD SHX Text
SMALL TREE PLANTING DETAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
    UP TO 2.5" CAL.

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
9"

AutoCAD SHX Text
9"

AutoCAD SHX Text
THE TOP  1/3 OF PLANTING

AutoCAD SHX Text
AGRIFORM FERT. TABLETS

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYPICAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT TO SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING SOIL SO TREE WILL

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" BERM TO HOLD WATER.

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIN. 3" MULCH, SEE SPECS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLACE  PLANTING  BALL ON

AutoCAD SHX Text
BACKFILL W/ PLANTING SOIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT SETTLE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIX.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE SPECIFICATIONS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRANULAR FERTIIZLER,

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE SPECIFICATIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING SOIL.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BALL.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2" x 2" x 7' WOOD STAKES

AutoCAD SHX Text
EQUALLY SPACED AROUND TREE. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
POUNDED 24" BELOW GRADE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOLD BACK BURLAP, EXPOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-PLY REINFORCED RUBBER

AutoCAD SHX Text
OR PLASTIC HOSE.  -  MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/4" DIA.,  WRAPPED ABOVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
#12  GALV. GUY WIRES (MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
3 PER TREE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIRST BRANCHES.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEPTH + 3" IN GROUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHRUB & GROUNDCOVER PLANTING DETAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYPICAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
3"

AutoCAD SHX Text
3"

AutoCAD SHX Text
3"

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT TO SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHRUB WILL NOT SETTLE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING SOIL/LEVEL SOIL SO

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE SPECIFICATIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
AGRIFORM FERT. TABLETS

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING SOIL.

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIX IN SHRUB BEDS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BACKFILL W/ PLANTING SOIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLACE  PLANTING  BALL ON

AutoCAD SHX Text
COVER BEDS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
3" BERM TO HOLD WATER.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE SPECIFICATIONS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRANULAR FERTILIZER,

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIN. DEPTH OF CONTINUOUS

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLANTING SOIL TO BE POT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
THE TOP  1/3 OF PLANTING

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOLD BACK BURLAP, EXPOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIN. 3" MULCH, SEE SPECS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BALL.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BATTENS,  CONNECTED WITH

AutoCAD SHX Text
2- 3/4" STEEL BANDS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2"x 4"x 10'  WOOD BRACES

AutoCAD SHX Text
(ADJUST BRACE LENGTH TO

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIT PALM)   POUNDED INTO

AutoCAD SHX Text
GROUND 24". TOENAILED TO

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIN. 3" MULCH, SEE SPECS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" BERM TO HOLD WATER.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BATTENS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BACKFILL W/ PLANTING SOIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING SOIL.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE SPECIFICATIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
AGRIFORM FERT. TABLETS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE SPECIFICATIONS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRANULAR FERTILIZER,

AutoCAD SHX Text
COCONUT PALM PLANTING DETAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLACE  PLANTING BALL ON

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING SOIL SO PALM WILL

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT SETTLE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
9"

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLEAR TRUNK HT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
9"

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIX.

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYPICAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT TO SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRUNE PALM FRONDS AND

AutoCAD SHX Text
REMOVE COCONUTS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SET PALMS TO LEAN AS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SPECIFIED IN  PLAN OR AS

AutoCAD SHX Text
DIRECTED  BY  LANDSCAPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ARCHITECT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLEAR TRUNK REQUIREMENTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
VARY. SEE PLAN FOR HT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
REQUIREMENT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
5-LAYERS OF BURLAP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
5-2"x 4"x 12" WOOD

AutoCAD SHX Text
MULTI-TRUNK TREE PLANTING DETAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYPICAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
9"

AutoCAD SHX Text
9"

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLACE  PLANTING  BALL ON

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING SOIL SO TREE WILL

AutoCAD SHX Text
AGRIFORM FERT. TABLETS

AutoCAD SHX Text
BACKFILL W/ PLANTING SOIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT TO SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT SETTLE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRANULAR FERTILIZER,

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE SPECIFICATIONS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE SPECIFICATIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING SOIL.

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIX.

AutoCAD SHX Text
EQUALLY SPACED AROUND TREE. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
2" x 2" x 8' WOOD STAKES 

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOLD BACK BURLAP, EXPOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text
POUNDED 24" BELOW GRADE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
AROUND FIRST BRANCHES OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/4" DIA.,   W/ #12-GALV. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
OR PLASTIC HOSE.  -  MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-PLY REINFORCED RUBBER

AutoCAD SHX Text
CENTER,  STRONGEST TRUNK.

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIN. 3"  MULCH, SEE SPECS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" BERM TO HOLD WATER.

AutoCAD SHX Text
THE TOP  1/3 OF PLANTING

AutoCAD SHX Text
BALL.

AutoCAD SHX Text
(MIN. 3  PER TREE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
LARGE TREE PLANTING DETAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
9"

AutoCAD SHX Text
    2.5" CAL. TO 4.5" CAL.

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
9"

AutoCAD SHX Text
EQUALLY SPACED AROUND TREE. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
2"x 4"x 4' WOOD STAKES

AutoCAD SHX Text
POUNDED 36" BELOW GRADE

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYPICAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT TO SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING SOIL SO TREE WILL

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLACE  PLANTING  BALL ON

AutoCAD SHX Text
BACKFILL W/ PLANTING SOIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT SETTLE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING SOIL.

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIX.

AutoCAD SHX Text
OR PLASTIC HOSE.  -  MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
AGRIFORM FERT. TABLETS

AutoCAD SHX Text
THE TOP  1/3 OF PLANTING

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOLD BACK BURLAP, EXPOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" BERM TO HOLD WATER.

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIN. 3" MULCH, SEE SPECS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHITE OR YELLOW SURVEYOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
#12  GALV. GUY WIRES (MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/4" DIA.,  WRAPPED ABOVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE SPECIFICATIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRANULAR FERTILIZER,

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE SPECIFICATIONS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BALL.

AutoCAD SHX Text
GALV. TURNBUCKLES

AutoCAD SHX Text
TAPE ON EACH WIRE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
3 PER TREE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIRST BRANCHES.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-PLY REINFORCED RUBBER

AutoCAD SHX Text
PINE TREE PLANTING DETAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
9"

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
9"

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYPICAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT TO SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
AGRIFORM FERT. TABLETS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE SPECIFICATIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
BACKFILL W/ PLANTING SOIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLACE  PLANTING  BALL ON

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING SOIL SO TREE WILL

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING SOIL.

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT SETTLE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIX.

AutoCAD SHX Text
POUNDED 24" BELOW GRADE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRANULAR FERTILIZER,

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE SPECIFICATIONS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
THE TOP  1/3 OF PLANTING

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOLD BACK BURLAP, EXPOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" BERM TO HOLD WATER.

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIN. 3" MULCH, SEE SPECS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BALL.

AutoCAD SHX Text
EQUALLY SPACED AROUND TREE. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
2"x 2"x 8' WOOD STAKES

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRUNK (MIN. 3 PER TREE.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-PLY REINFORCED RUBBER

AutoCAD SHX Text
OR PLASTIC HOSE.  -  MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/4" DIA.,   W/ #12-GALV. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
AROUND FIRST BRANCHES OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
MULTI-TRUNK PALM PLANTING DETAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYPICAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
9"

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING SOIL.

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT TO SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
AS PER SPECIFICATIONS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BACKFILL W/ PLANTING SOIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLACE  PLANTING BALL ON

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING SOIL SO PALM WILL

AutoCAD SHX Text
AGRIFORM FERT. TABLETS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE SPECIFICATIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
9"

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT SETTLE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2- 3/4" STEEL BANDS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" BERM TO HOLD WATER.

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIN. 3" MULCH, SEE SPECS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
AT 180%%d. ATTACHED IN 2-

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOCATIONS TO TRUNK WITH

AutoCAD SHX Text
5-LAYERS OF BURLAP AT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
EACH POINT OF SPLINT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SET ROOT BALL LEVEL WITH

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLEAR ALL SUCKERS PRIOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRANULAR FERTILIZER,

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-2"x 2"x 8' SPLINTS EACH

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE SPECIFICATIONS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
TO SHIPPING.

AutoCAD SHX Text
FINISH GRADE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ATTACHMENT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRUNE PALM FRONDS BELOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
90%. TIE UP  AND SPLINT

AutoCAD SHX Text
HEADS PRIOR TO SHIPPING.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLANTING DETAILS

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING SOIL.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BACKFILL W/ 100% SAND AS

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLACE  PLANTING BALL ON

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING SOIL SO PALM WILL

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT SETTLE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER SPECIFICATIONS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
AGRIFORM FERT. TABLETS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE SPECIFICATIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
9"

AutoCAD SHX Text
SABAL PALM PLANTING DETAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
9"

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYPICAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT TO SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRUNE PALM FRONDS AND

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLEAR TRUNK REQUIREMENTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
VARY. SEE PLAN FOR HT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
5-LAYERS OF BURLAP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
5-2"x 4"x 12" WOOD

AutoCAD SHX Text
BATTENS,  CONNECTED WITH

AutoCAD SHX Text
2- 3/4" STEEL BANDS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
REMOVE ALL MATURE LEAVES

AutoCAD SHX Text
REQUIREMENT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRANSPLANTING.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRIOR TO SHIPPING/

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO SCARS ON TRUNK.

AutoCAD SHX Text
REMOVE ALL BURN MARKS, 

AutoCAD SHX Text
POUNDED INTO GROUND 24".

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" BERM TO HOLD WATER.

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIN. 3" MULCH, SEE SPECS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOENAILED TO BATTENS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
(MIN. 3 PER PALM.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
2"x 4"x 8' WOOD BRACES

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRANULAR FERTILIZER,

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE SPECIFICATIONS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLEAR TRUNK HT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROYAL PALM PLANTING DETAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRY WOOD HT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING SOIL SO PALM WILL

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT TO SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT SETTLE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYPICAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
9"

AutoCAD SHX Text
9"

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLACE  PLANTING BALL ON

AutoCAD SHX Text
BACKFILL W/ PLANTING SOIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRANULAR FERTILIZER,

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE SPECIFICATIONS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
AGRIFORM FERT. TABLETS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE SPECIFICATIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIX.

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING SOIL.

AutoCAD SHX Text
EACH PALM 

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOENAIL TO BATTENS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
POUNDED INTO GROUND 24".

AutoCAD SHX Text
4"x 4"x 10'  WOOD BRACES

AutoCAD SHX Text
(MIN. 4 PER PALM)

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" BERM TO HOLD WATER.

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIN. 3"  MULCH, SEE SPECS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTE: INSTALL 2 BUBBLERS ON

AutoCAD SHX Text
TO FIT PALM)   

AutoCAD SHX Text
2- 3/4" STEEL BANDS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BATTENS,  CONNECTED WITH

AutoCAD SHX Text
5-2"x 4"x 12" WOOD

AutoCAD SHX Text
5-LAYERS OF BURLAP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
VARY. SEE PLAN FOR G.W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
GREY WOOD REQUIREMENTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRUNE MIN # PALM FRONDS

AutoCAD SHX Text
REQUIREMENT.



PLANTING SPECIFICATIONS

Wayne
Villavaso
Landscape
Architecture,
Incorporated

Copyright 2016 By Wayne Villavaso
Landscape Architecture, Inc. This
drawing is provided for
informational purposes only, unless
signed and sealed by a Professional
Landscape Architect representing
Wayne Villavaso Landscape
Architecture, Inc.

DESIGNED BY:

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

DATE:

SCALE:

CAD FILE:

JOB NO.

SHEET

REVISIONS

Land Planning
Landscape Architecture

268 Flamingo Drive
West Palm Beach,
Florida 33401

PH. (561) 820-1566
FX. (561) 833-6707

Reg.  FL.,  N.C.,  N.Y.

WEV

WEV

WEV

2/12/2016

AS SHOWN

L3

21533W
ES

T 
V

IL
LA

G
E 

A
R

T 
LO

FT
S

W
E

ST
 V

IL
L

A
G

E
A

R
T

 L
O

FT
S

11
0 

N
or

th
 "F

" S
tre

et
La

ke
 W

or
th

, F
L 

33
46

0

AutoCAD SHX Text
2. Container Grown Plants: Plants grown in containers will be accepted as "B & B", providing that all other specified requirements are met.  Container grown plants shall meet plant sizes as specified on the plant list and on the Drawings, and shall not be governed by container sizes. Minimum root balls of container grown material shall be no more than 25% less proportionately in size than that stated in "Grades & Standards" for nursery plants. These plants shall have been grown in the container for a maximum of two years prior to installation and shall exhibit a fully developed root system when removed from the container. B. Protection During Transporting: All plant material shall be protected from possible bark injury on breakage of branches.  All plants transported by open trucks shall be adequately covered to prevent windburn, drying, or damage to plants. C. Protection After Delivery: Plants which cannot be planted immediately on delivery to the site shall be covered with moist soil, mulch, or other protection from drying by wind and/or sun exposure.  All plants shall be watered as necessary until planted.  Plant storage period shall not exceed forty-eight (48) hours. D. Protection of Palms (If Applicable): Only a minimum of fronds shall be removed from the crown of the palm trees to facilitate moving and handling, except for "Hurricane Cut" Sabal Palms, if specified. E. Clear trunk shall be as specified after the minimum of fronds have been removed. Clear trunk shall be measured from the top of root ball to where the mature trunk joins the immature or green portions of the trunk.  All palms shall have a sufficient ball size for rapid growth and acclimation. All palm trunks shall straight and true unless otherwise specified, and be free of damage and scars. Sabal Palms shall have no burn marks on trunks.  Sabal Palm designated to have fronds at installation shall be tied with a biodegradable twine to be left in place until the tree is well established at which time the Contractor is to remove the twine if necessary. F. Protection During Planting: Trees and palms moved by chain, strap, winch, or crane shall be thoroughly protected from chain marks, girdling or bark slippage by means of burlap, wood battens or other approved methods. Trees and palms with damaged or girdled trunks will be rejected and will be replaced as per specified prior to final acceptance by the Owner/Landscape Architect. 3.2 PLANTING OPERATIONS A. Layout:  Location for plants and outline of areas to be planted are indicated on the Drawings.  All plant locations shall be staked in the field by the Contractor, to the satisfaction of the Landscape Architect.  Where construction or utilities below ground or overhead are encountered, or where changes have been made in the construction, necessary adjustments will be approved by the Landscape Architect. B. Soil Preparation: Apply two (2) applications of an approved pre-planting environmentally safe systemic herbicide.  Soil used shall be as herein before specified under "Planting Soil", thoroughly mixed with peat to produce 33 % peat by volume.  The soil should be in a relatively dry state and mixed thoroughly by hand or rotary mixer.  All planting areas shall be treated with an approved pre-emergent environmentally safe herbicide, according to the manufacturer's specifications. All chemicals used are subject to safe environmental applications based on industry standards by licensed professionals using all safety precautions recommended.   C. Excavation for Planting: Excavation of plant pits shall be circular in outline and shall extend to the required subgrades as specified hereunder.  The minimum depth of plant pits specified below shall be measured from the finish grade.  Mass planting beds shall be stripped of all vegetation prior to planting.  Use acceptable excess excavated topsoil to form 6" height 3' diameter watering berms around plants; use 25% of the excavated material and mix with topsoil for Backfill.  Remove all excess material to dump site as directed by Owner. If an on site dump area has not been designated by the Owner, remove excess material off-site. Excavated material in excess of the 6" temporary water berm above is not to mounded around the base of each plant.  The 6" water berm material is to be removed from site and the resulting area is to be mulched/sodded as required after the transplant acclimation period is complete to form a 3' diameter circular mulch ring centered around the base of the plant. D. Balled and Burlapped Plants: After final pit preparation, loosen burlap wrapping and fold burlap down exposing the top 1/3 of the root ball, leaving the ball unbroken.  Remove excessive amount of burlap to eliminate voids which may be caused upon decomposition. Remove all twine, rope, wire, etc., at the base of trunk upon installation to prevent the choking or girdling of the root system as the plant matures. E. Container Grown Plants: Container grown plants shall, when delivered, have sufficient growth to hold earth intact when removed from container and shall not be root bound.  Plant pits for container materials shall be formed flat on the bottom and compacted to avoid air pockets at the bottom of root balls and container shall be removed carefully to prevent damage to plant or root system. Plants with circular root systems will not be accepted and will be replaced by Contractor prior to final acceptance. F. Testing for Drainage: Test fill all tree pits with water before planting to assure proper drainage percolation is available.  Pits which are found not to be adequately draining shall be excavated to a depth sufficient for drainage and backfilling with gravel or crushed rock.  No allowances will be made for lost plants due to improper drainage. G. Pit Sizes: Minimum diameter (width) and depth of planting pits for balled and burlapped, and container grown plants, shall be as follows: 1. Diameter - Trees & Palms:  18"-24" greater than diameter of ball or spread of roots. 2. Diameter - Shrubs:  8"-12" greater than diameter of ball or spread of roots. 3. Depth - Trees and Palms: The center of each pit shall be dug to the depth of the root ball. The root ball shall sit tilled to existing subgrade.* The perimeter of each pit shall be 6" greater than depth of ball to provide 6" of planting soil backfill to enhance downward growth of roots. Also see 3.2 I & 3.2 J. * (If subgrade soils at the bottom of each pit are detrimental to plant growth, each pit is to be dug 6" deeper than root balls and the root ball is to sit on 6" of properly compacted specified planting soil mix to prevent settling.) 4. Depth - Shrubs: The center of each pit shall be dug to the depth of the root ball. The root ball shall sit on tilled existing subgrade.* The perimeter of each pit shall be 4" greater in depth than the root ball to provide 4" of planting soil backfill to enhance downward root growth.* Also see 4.I. 5. Depth - Vine Ground covers: Pits shall conform to accepted nursery practice for the particular species and equal the plant pot depth plus three (3) inches. H. Backfilling:  When the plant pit has been excavated as specified above and the plant has been set, the pit shall be backfilled with planting soil at the following minimum rates:    One-quarter cubic yard per one (1) tree    One cubic yard per twenty-five (25) - 7G (lerio cans / equal)    One cubic yard per fifty (50) - 3G shrubs     One cubic yard per one hundred (100) - 1G (ground covers, etc.) I. Setting Trees and Shrubs: Unless otherwise specified, all trees and shrubs shall be planted in pits, centered, and set on existing tilled subgrade soil* to such depths that the finished grade level of the plant shall be the same as that at which the plant was grown.  They shall be planted upright and faced to give the best appearance or relationship to adjacent structures.  No burlap shall be pulled out from under the balls and the burlap shall be folded down to expose the top 1/3 of ball.  Platforms, wire, and surplus binding from top and sides of the balls, shall be removed.  All broken or frayed roots shall be cut off cleanly. Planting Soil mix (1/3 clean sand, 1/3 peat, 1/3 topsoil) shall be placed and compacted thoroughly, avoiding injury and shall be settled by watering.  No filling around trunks will be permitted.  After the ground settles, additional soil shall be filled in the level of the finished grade allowing for three inches (3") of mulch after the granular fertilizer has been applied. All air pockets will be removed by alternately watering and adding soil as required. Form a shallow saucer around each plant by placing a berm of soil along the edge of the plant pit.  This berm shall be six inches (6") high for all trees and three inches (3") high for all shrubs. J. Setting Palms: All palms shall be planted in pits, centered, and set on existing tilled subgrade soil* to such depths that the finished grade level of the palm is the same as it was grown. They shall be planted upright (unless specified to lean), and faced to give the best appearance or relationship to adjacent structures or views. All broken or frayed roots shall be cut off cleanly. Except for Sabal Palms which are to be backfilled with sand, thoroughly washed in during planting operations, all palms shall be backfilled with planting soil mix of 1/3 clean sand, 1/3 peat, 1/3 topsoil, placed and compacted thoroughly, avoiding injury and shall be settled by watering. After settling, additional planting soil shall be used to fill in to finished grade allowing three inches (3") for mulch to be applied after granular fertilizer has been applied. A shallow saucer shall be formed around each palm by placing a berm of soil along the edge of each planting pit. This berm is to be a minimum of six (6") inches high. K. Fertilizing:  When setting trees, palms and shrubs placed in each plant hole with Agriform Planting Tablets, 20-10-5 formula, 21 gram, according to the following: Tablets application: 1 gallon container plant ......................................1 tablet 2 - 3 gallon container plant ..............................2 tablets 7 -15 gallon container plant.................................4 tablets B & B Shrubs and Trees.....................................1 tablet for every 20" around circumference of root ball above middle of ball. Granular application: Application of granular fertilizer by LESCO will be as per LESCO application rate specifications. Correct Placement of Tablets: Position the plant in the hole and backfill no higher than halfway up the root ball.  Place the recommended number of tablets evenly spaced around the perimeter of, and immediately adjacent to, the root ball at the depth which is between the middle and the bottom of the root ball.  Complete backfilling as described above under setting trees, palms and shrubs.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SECTION 02490 LANDSCAPE AND SOD   PART 1 - GENERAL 1.1 DESCRIPTION OF WORK A. The work includes furnishing all plants, materials, equipment, and labor necessary for the procurement and installation of plant and materials indicated on the drawing(s); and / or in the specifications. 1.2 RELATED SECTIONS A. Section 02110 - Site Clearing B. Section 02200 - Earthwork C. Section 02810 - Exterior Irrigation Work  1.4 QUALITY ASSURANCE A. The landscape contractor is to be regularly engaged in the installation of living plant material. Labor crews shall be controlled and directed by a landscape foreman well versed in landscape installation, plant materials, reading blueprints and coordination between the job and nursery.  The landscape contractor shall carry any necessary insurance and protect the Owner against all liabilities claims or demands for injuries or damage to any person or property growing out of the performance of the work under this contract and all of his workers shall be covered by Workmen's Compensation Insurance. B. The landscape contractor and irrigation contractor must coordinate scheduling and layout prior to commencement of material installation. If necessary, the landscape contractor and irrigation contractor may agree to minor adjustments in sprinkler layout, head type or quantity, in response to specific plant needs.  The landscape architect must be notified 48 hours prior to commencing field changes in order to review and approve of any such changes. PART 2 - PRODUCTS 2.1 PLANT MATERIAL A. All plant materials shall be nursery grown unless otherwise noted.  Abbreviations on plant list: B. Quality and Size: Plants shall have a habit of growth that is normal for the species and shall be healthy, vigorous and equal or exceed the measurements specified in the plant list, which are the minimum acceptable sizes.  Plants shall be measured before pruning with branches in normal position.  Any necessary pruning shall be done at the time of planting.  Requirements for measurements, branching, grading, quality, balling and burlapping of plants in the plant list generally follow the code of standards currently recommended by the American Association of Nursery Stock.  In all cases, plant materials shall be Florida Grade No. 1 or better (as defined by the February, 1998 edition of Grades and Standards).  Plants that meet the requirements specified, but do not have normal balance of heights and spread typical for the respective plant, shall not be accepted.  All plants shall be free of weeds or any other objectionable vegetation. All trees to have a single main leader, unless specified otherwise. C. Quantities:  All quantities indicated on the plant list are intended as a guide for the bidders and does not relieve the bidder of his responsibility to do a comprehensive plant take off.  If a discrepancy occurs between the bidder's take off and the plant list quantity, the Landscape Architect is to be notified for clarification prior to the submittal of bid. D. Substitution:  Plant substitution requests by the Contractor will be considered by the Landscape Architect only upon submittal of conclusive proof that any plant is not obtainable in the type and size specified.  The Landscape Architect shall determine the nearest equivalent replacement in an obtainable size and variety.  The unit price of the substitute item shall not exceed the bid item replaced, without approval of the Owner. E. Sabal Palms:  1. Hurricane cut: All Sabal Palms, if designated on plant list to be hurricane cut, shall be dug and have all fronds removed as standard to good horticultural practices, within 24 hours or transporting to site or transplanting on site. 2: Sabal Palms with fronds: All Sabal Palms, if designated on plant list to be installed with fronds, shall have the palm head trimmed up and have a minimum of seven (7) fronds per head. See specification 3.2,E. 2.2 COMMERCIAL FERTILIZER A. Commercial granular fertilizer shall be from LESCO ph.(561) 848-7122 as follows: 12-2-14 for ornamental trees, palms, shrubs and groundcover. Fertilizer will contain nitrogen, phosphoric acid and potash available plant food by weight.  At least 70% percent of the nitrogen in the fertilizer shall be slow-release.  Fertilizer shall be delivered to the site unopened in original containers, each bearing the manufacturer's guaranteed analysis.  Any fertilizer that becomes caked or otherwise damaged shall not be acceptable. Fertilizer shall be applied at the rate of 3 1/2 to 7 pounds per 1,000 sq. ft. to planting beds.  Use a rotary spreader, chest spreader, or hand application method to apply the fertilizer.  For new plantings, the fertilizer should be applied to the top of the soil around the plants after planting and before mulch is layed.  For trees and larger shrubs, apply one pound of fertilizer per inch of trunk diameter.  Spread evenly on the ground around the plant from the outer edge of the leaves inward to the trunk, or 1 to 1 1/2 pounds of fertilizer per 100 sq. ft. of ornamental bed area.  Apply the fertilizer to dry foliage and water in soon after application.  Wash or brush off walks and painted surfaces following application to avoid discoloration.  B. Planting tablets shall be tightly compressed, long lasting, slow release Agriform fertilizer tablets weighing 21 grams, with a potential acidity of not more than 5% by weight and having an analysis of  20-10-5, respectively. 2.3 PEAT A. Peat shall be horticultural peat composed of not less than 60% decomposed organic matter by weights, on any oven-dried basin.  Peat shall be delivered to the site in a workable condition free from lumps. 2.4 PLANTING SOIL A. Planting soil shall be 1/3 clean sand, 1/3 peat, 1/3 topsoil (by volume).  Planting soil shall be free of clay, stones, plants, roots, and other foreign materials which might be a hindrance to planting operations or be detrimental to good plant growth.  Soil shall be delivered in a loose friable condition and applied in accordance with the Planting Specifications. 2.5 MULCH A. Fibrous Mulch: All mulch material shall be a fibrous, non-floating, shredded Grade 'A' Eucalyptus mulch or as per plant and materials list on plans if listed differently, installed 3" deep (prior to compacting), and moistened at installation to prevent wind dispersement. B. Mulches shall not contain sticks larger that 1/2 inch in diameter or 3" long, stones, or other foreign material that will prevent the eventual decay of the mulch necessary for its complete effectiveness. 2.6 WATER A. Water for planting will be available at the site and will be provided by the Owner.  Landscape Contractor shall not assume that the irrigation system will be operational at the time of planting.  It is the responsibility of the Landscape Contractor to provide all the required water necessary to maintain the plant material in a healthy growing condition.  The watering may include deep watering of trees and the watering of shrub and ground cover areas.  Any plant materials that die or that are not in a healthy growing condition due to lack of water shall be replaced at no addition cost to the Owner. B. If water is not available on site, the Landscape Contractor will coordinate with the owner to determine who will provide the water. The Landscape Contractor will apply the water to all planting areas using a water truck. (Note: Landscape Contractor shall comply with all State, County & Municipal codes for traffic safety, etc.) It is the responsibility of the Landscape Contractor to apply all the required water necessary to maintain the plant material in a healthy growing condition. The watering includes deep watering of trees, palms, shrubs, ground covers and sod. Any plant material that die or that are not in a healthy growing condition due to lack of water shall be replaced at no additional cost to Owner. Minimum watering schedule for the first year by watering truck is: three(3) times per week for months 1 & 2, two(2) times per week for month 3 through month 12. NOTE: Contractor is to observe all code restrictions, if applicable, pertaining to watering of new plantings and advise the Owner/Landscape Architect of  any concerns for the plant material in advance. PART 3 - EXECUTION 3.1 PROTECTION OF PLANTS: A. Root Protection: 1. Balled and Burlapped Plants: Plants designated "B & B" (balled and burlap) shall be dug with firm natural balls of earth of sufficient diameter and depth to encompass to fibrous and feeding root system, necessary for full recovery of plant.  Balls shall be firmly wrapped with natural burlap or similar materials and bound with twine, cord, or wire mesh.  All collected plants shall be balled and burlap.

AutoCAD SHX Text
L. Pruning: Remove dead and broken branches from all plant material.  Prune to retain typical growth habit of individual species with as much height and spread as is practical.  Make all pruning cuts with a sharp instrument flush with trunk or adjacent branch, in such a manner as to ensure elimination of stubs.  "Head back" cuts, right angle to line of growth, will not be permitted and trees will not be poled or topped.  Paint all cuts 1/2" in diameter and larger with approved waterproof antiseptic tree paint and remove trimmings from site. Trees and palms incorrectly pruned will be rejected. M. Guying and Staking:     1. Guy all large trees 1" to 4 1/2" in caliper in three (3) directions with double strands of No. 12 galvanized wire attached to approved wood braces equally spaced and driven below grade per details.  When securing wires to trees, cover all wires which may come in contact with any part of tree with new 2-ply reinforced rubber or plastic hose of 3/4" in diameter or greater.  Place guys not less than 1/3 of the heights of tree above finished grade and above first substantial branches. All hoses shall be interlocked around tree trunk.  Place anchors so that guys are equally spaced. 2. Guy all SMALL TREES (less then 2 1/2" in caliper) as indicated above and stake with three (3) - 2" x 2" x 7' wood braces, equally spaced, 18" to 24" from trunk, pounded 24" below grade. 3. Guy all MEDIUM TREES (2 1/2" to 4 1/2" in caliper) as addressed above and stake with 3-2" x 4" x 8' wood braces, equally spaced around tree, pounded 36" below grade. Each guy wire shall angle from tree at a 45' angles to horizontal.  Keep guys tight until project completion by the use of a galv. steel turnbuckle placed midway between trunk and ground. Each wire shall have a yellow or white surveyor's tape located just above the turnbuckle. Each wood braced to have a 1/2" notch and the guy wire wrapped around the brace 3 times at the notch to prevent slipping. N. In staking palms and large broadleaf trees (4 3/4" caliper and up) no nails or other fasteners will directly penetrate the trunks.  Wood 2 x 4 battens, 12 inches (12") long, separated by a minimum of five (5) layers of burlap can be attached to the trunk of the palms/trees with metal banding.  Stakes can only be nailed to the wooden battens.  Stakes are to be sized according to to the size, weight, and exposure of the tree/palm with a minimum of 2 x 4's up to 6 x 6's or greater members as required. Stakes are to be removed by the Contractor when appropriate after maintenance period is complete subject species, root formation, and the Contractor's acceptance of the stability of  tree/palm. All trees and palms which lean or fall during the guarantee period will be straightened and properly reset at no charge to the Owner. O. Mulching:  All trees and shrub beds shall be mulched immediately after planting, to a three inch (3") depth, with the mulch as specied in the plant and materials list or as per these specifications.  Prevent wind displacement of mulch by thoroughly wetting the mulch down. P. Excess Excavated Soil: Excess excavated soil shall be disposed of off site by the Contractor at no additional expense to the Owner. If the excavated soil is clean and free of debris, it may be used for other on site earthwork if needed, unless specified otherwise. See 2.B. 3.3 SOD and SEED (When Applicable) A. Soil:  The Contractor shall submit a unit price per cubic yard for the supply and distribution of planting soil as herein before specified, to be applied at a compacted depth of one inch (1") to all areas receiving sod.  (The use of this item in the Contract shall be at the discretion of the Landscape Architect after evaluation of the existing soil on the site.)  Payment for this item will be determined by a square foot in place measurement of the installed sod area after sod installation is complete, multiplied by the specified depth of one inch (1"), to determine cubic yards of soil used. B. Grades:  It shall be the responsibility of the Contractor to finish (fine) grade all landscape areas, eliminating all bumps, depressions, sticks, stones and other debris to the satisfaction of the Landscape Architect, prior to the application of sod.  If supplemental topsoil is to be spread, no sod shall be laid until the depth of this soil has been approved. C. The sod shall be as called for on the Landscape Drawings.  Sod shall be of firm tough texture having a compact growth of grass with good root development, and shall contain only the species of grasses specified, and no weeds or any other objectionable vegetation.  The soil embedded in the sod shall be 2" of good earth, free from stones and debris and all sod shall be free from fungus, vermin and other diseases. D. Before being cut and lifted, the sod shall have been mowed at least three times with a lawn mover, with the final mowing not more than seven (7) days before the sod is cut.  The sod shall be carefully cut into uniform dimensions. E. Solid sod shall be laid by the Contractor with closely abutting joints with a tamped or rolled, even surface.  It shall be the responsibility of the Contractor to bring the sod edge in a neat, clean manner in straight lines or smooth radii as per plans to the edge of all paving, buildings, trees, palms, shrubs, etc. and bed areas or mulch rings. Sod installation, if subcontracted, is to be supervised by the Contractor to insure proper laying and proper bed lines per plans. Improper sod installations will be removed and relaid as necessary. Sod is to be "cut-in" to match the elevation of adjacent areas to develop a finished appearance and to avoid unevenness or tripping hazards. If, in the opinion of the Landscape Architect, top-dressing is necessary after rolling, clean sand will be evenly applied over the entire surface and thoroughly washed in at no additional cost to the Owner. F. Seed (if applicable) 1. Landscape Contractor shall remove all rocks larger than one inch (1") in dia. and all vegetation from the areas to be seeded, scarify the area, then apply 10-10-10 fertilizer at a rate of 500 lbs. per acre. 2. Application: Argentine Bahia grass seed shall be applied at a rate of 80 lbs. per acre, mixed with common Hulled Bermuda Seed - 20 lbs. per acre, and 30 lbs. per acre of suitable cover crop (millet seed or winter rye seed) depending upon the season of installation. 3. Roll immediately after seeding with a minimum 500-pound roller avoiding damage to site utilities and improvements by surveying and marking them as necessary. Then apply straw mulch at a rate of 2.5 tons per acre. 4. Apply approved fertilizer at the rate of 150 pounds per acre, 45 days after seeding. 3.4 CLEAN UP A. Any soil, peat or similar material which has been brought onto any paved areas shall be removed promptly keeping these areas clean as the work progresses.  Upon completion of the planting, all excess soil, stones and debris which has not been previously cleaned up shall be removed from the site. 3.5 MAINTENANCE A. Maintenance shall begin immediately after each plant is planted and shall continue during installation and until all planting has passed final inspection and acceptance.  Maintenance shall include watering, weeding, cultivating, removal of dead materials, resetting plants to proper grades or upright positions and restoration of the planting sauces and any other necessary operations.  Proper protection to lawn areas shall be provided and any damage resulting from planting operations shall be repaired promptly. B. All trees shall be deep watered for a period of 90 days after planting. Saucer berms shall be removed on all plant material 30 days after acceptance, except for all replacement materials. C. In the event of the threat of serious damage resulting from insects or disease prior to final acceptance, the plants shall be treated by preventative or remedial measures approved for good horticultural practice at no additional cost to the Owner. D. The Contractor shall furnish the Owner with a written and detailed description for the care and maintenance of all plant material at the time of final inspection.  The Owner agrees to execute the instructions for such care and maintenance. 3.6 INSPECTION AND ACCEPTANCE A. Inspection:  Inspection of work to determine completion of contract, exclusive of the possible replacement of plants, will be made by the Owner and/or Landscape Architect at the conclusion of all planting and at the written request of the Contractor. B. Acceptance:  After inspection, the Contractor will be notified by the Owner and/or Landscape Architect of the acceptance of all plant material and workmanship, exclusive of the possible replacement of plants subject to guarantee. 3.7 GUARANTEE AND REPLACEMENT A. Guarantee:  The Contractor, as part of this Contract, shall furnish a written guarantee warranting all materials, workmanship and plant materials, except sod, for a period of one (1) year from the time of completion and acceptance.  All plant materials shall be alive and in satisfactory condition and growth for each specific kind of plant at the end of the guarantee period.  Where vandalism is agreed by the Landscape Architect as the cause for replacement, the Contractor shall not be responsible for replacement during the one (1) year guarantee after final acceptance. B. Sod shall be guaranteed for a two month period dating from final acceptance and any lawn care which becomes necessary during the completion period will be the responsibility of the Owner to ensure a vigorous stand of grass.

AutoCAD SHX Text
G = gallon C T  = clear trunk HT = height          

AutoCAD SHX Text
C W = clear wood   SPR = spread O C  = on center

AutoCAD SHX Text
G W  = grey wood  O A  = overall height              D = diameter

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.8 TREE PROTECTION (When Applicable) A. Protection and care of existing trees, palms, shrubs, and ground cover to remain, to include all aspects of protection, fertilization and watering. B. Tree, palms, shrubs, and ground cover to remain are designated on the drawings or as directed by the Landscape Architect. C. Snow fence detail, when included in plans, will be installed prior to beginning construction activity on project site as part of base bid for contract. 3.9 TREE RELOCATION ( When Applicable) A. Prepare and relocate trees and palms designated for relocation to include all aspects of preparation, protection, fertilization and watering. 1. Trees and palms to be relocated on site are designated on the drawings or as directed by the Landscape Architect. 2. Diameter used herein shall mean diameter measured at breast high (DBH) of dicot or a conifer tree as measured four and one half feet (4 1/2) above ground.  The diameter of a monocot is measured at one foot (1') above ground. 3. All dicot trees, specifically Quercus Virginiana (Native Florida Live Oaks), shall be root pruned between 90-120 days before being relocated.   4. All monocot trees shall be dug with a vermeer or similar type tree spade equipment and moved to its permanent location in one move.  Monocots shall be watered before the move, installed with a complete watering system and maintained under full irrigation for a period adequate to establish the tree. 5. Plans are not complete for bid or construction unless accompanied by written letter/plan  format C.S.I landscape specifications. B. Tree Preparation 1. Excavate the total circumference of the root zone with a minimum eighty (80") inch diameter ball, cut to a depth of not less than thirty (30") depth and one foot wide, to get all roots that are necessary to the support of the tree in relocation.  The cut trench shall be backfilled with loose friable soil (1/3, 1/3, 1/3 mix) - and Eucalytus mulch (unless otherwise specified in plant and materials list on plans) and should be placed under constant watering until the time of the move. The tree shall be watered before the move, installed with a complete watering system and maintained under full irrigation for a sufficient period of time adequate to establish the tree. 2. At the time of root pruning, the oak trees shall also have their canopies selectively trimmed out to form a well shaped tree with a broad spread and a high canopy.  Thin out all interior branches and cut the perimeter branches back to the (1") one inch diameter limb size.  The intent is to reduce the foliar mass but keep plenty of small limbs and branches so that the new growth will emerge in the spring that the root system can support.  Cut no limbs larger than 1" diameter except interior branches to be removed. 3. Six months after the tree is established in its new location, remove stakes, bands, and battons unless they are still needed for bracing tree. 4. Coordinate the orientation of trees before they are set and as they are being set to avoid conflict with branch structure of trees adjacent to either the other trees, the building walls and any other overhead or underground utilities. 5. Excavate holes in scale with root ball of tree as it is dug so tree will be set to grow at the same grade as it was originally growing. C. Watering 1. This contract includes the responsibility to provide a constant supply of water to the tree to be relocated, from the day they are root pruned, throughout the holding period, to the new locations when they are moved, and for the final locations shown on plans.  Coordinate with the irrigation installer and the Contractor to utilize the existing water source(s) and the new irrigation water meter(s), so no period of the time occurs that water is not always available to the trees to avoid stress or loss of trees. 2. While hand watering, keep all upper branches moistened.  Continue any selective pruning that may be needed to adjust to the new planting locations. 3. Maintain supplementary hand watering throughout all phases of construction. 4. Form and maintain tree well for water retention in the root zone. D. Staking 1. Brace with 2 x 4, 4 x 4, or 6 x 6 wooden stakes depending on the tree size or at the landscape contractor's discretion after root pruning in place and after tree relocation.  The landscape contractor is fully responsible to reset trees at no additional cost if required.  All work, care, and follow up is to be included in base bid. 2. Burlap, battons and bands shall be used to protect bark from damage while rigging to lift trees by crane.  No nails in trees. E. Utilities 1. The installing contractor shall be responsible to coordinate with all construction plans and schedules, and all appropriate utility location service companies in the project area and the local agencies to provide locations for all overhead and underground utilities. F. Mulching 1. The installing contractor shall be responsible to coordinate with all construction plans and provide mulch to minimum 3" depth and incorporate the tree(s) with the rest of the new plantings. 2. Root hormones, fungicide and similar chemicals may be applied at the contractor's discretion. G. Soil 1. Backfill the trees with a 1/3, 1/3, 1/3 mix of planting soil.  Construct a tree well unless curbing or planter areas provide necessary well requirements. H. Fertilization 1. Fertilize tree with agriform tablets outside the root zone to encourage root growth. I. Guarantee 1. Equivalent replacement.  A tree (or trees) which due to its classification (based on the table of tree evaluation established by the International Society of Arboriculture) in the case of dicot or conifer condition size, and location, its determined by the city/county/state Landscape Architect/Urban Forester to be the equivalent to the tree (or trees) which it replaces.  In making this determination, the city/county/state Landscape Architect/Urban Forester shall be guided by the standards established by the International Society of Arboriculture. 2. Equivalent value is an amount of money, which reflects the cost of replacing a dicot or conifer tree, determined by multiplying the cross sectional diameter of the tree (measured in square inches) by the values (based on the cost of obtaining an equivalent replacement according to the classifications of tree as listed in the table of tree evaluation established by the International Society of Arboriculture. 3. Any tree or palm that dies or is deemed in unacceptable condition for one (1) year following relocation shall be removed by the Contractor including root ball, and backfilling of pit, at no cost to the Owner and the tree will be replaced with a new tree or palm of the same size and species, and installed to meet these specifications. 4. Acknowledging the nature of tree and palm relocation, the Contractor shall not be responsible for survival of trees and palms if it is deemed by the Landscape Architect or Owner that all possible measures have been taken by the Contractor to insure the tree(s) survivability.  If, however, it is deemed by the Landscape Architect or Owner that the tree or palm mortality is a product of negligence by the Contractor or failure to follow these specifications, the Contractor shall provide and install at no additional cost to the Owner a tree or palm of same size and species. END OF SECTION 02490



EXISTING
FIRE
HYDRANT

EXISTING EASEMENT

EXISTING STREET
TREE & PLANTER

EXISTING UTILITY
POLE

EXISTING UTILITY
POLE

EXISTING UTILITY
POLEEXISTING UTILITY

POLE

EXISTING UTILITY
POLE

EXISTING CURB CUT & APRON.
REMOVE AND REPLACE WITH CURB
AND SIDEWALK

EXISTING CURB CUT & APRON. REMOVE
AND REPLACE WITH CURB AND
SIDEWALK

EXISTING STREET
TREE & PLANTER

EXISTING EASEMENT

EXISTING RESIDENTIAL BUILDING

E
X

IS
T

IN
G

C
O

M
M

E
R

C
IA

L
 /
 R

E
T

A
IL

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

EXISTING TREES TO
REMAIN

PRESERVE EXISTING TREES

REMOVE EXISTING TREES

EXISTING TREES TO
BE REMOVED

EXISTING
ON-STREET
PARKING

EXISTING BOLLARDS TO
BE REMOVED

EXISTING ON-STREET
PARKING

EXISTING O.H. LINES

EXISTING O.H.
LINES

PROPOSED BUILDING PADS

LUCERNE AVENUE  S.R. 802 F.D.O.T. R.O.W.

N
."

F
" 

ST
R

E
E

T ALLEY
ALLEY

SEE SURVEY ALL EXISTING
GRADES

SITE PLAN LEGEND
EXISTING BUILDING

EASEMENT

BROAD LEAF TREE AND/OR LARGE SHRUB

PALM TREE

OVERHEAD LINES

ZONING SETBACK (TOWNHOUSE EXCLUDED)

PROPOSED FENCING

PROPOSED BUILDING - TOWNHOUSE

PROPOSED BUILDING - RETAIL

MECHANICAL

MAILBOX

ZONING SETBACK FOR TOWNHOUSES

PROPERTY LINE - TOWNHOUSE / RETAIL

VERIFY ALL CONDITIONS WITH SURVEY
AND EXISTING SITE, ARCHITECTURAL SITE
PLAN IS FOR REFERENCE ONLY - SEE CIVIL
DRAWINGS FOR PROPOSED WORK

NOTE:

T.H.

PROPERTY LINE

TOWNHOUSE

P.L.

PROPERTY LINE - OVERALL

REG #

DATE

DRAWN

CHECKED

© 2016

DESIGNER

OWNERSHIP AND USE OF THESE DOCUMENTS &
SPECIFICATIONS AS INSTRUMENTS OF SERVICE
ARE AND SHALL REMAIN THE PROPERTY OF THE
ARCHITECT WHETHER THE PROJECT THEY ARE
MADE FOR IS EXECUTED OR NOT.  THEY SHALL
NOT BE USED BY THE OWNER OR OTHERS ON
OTHER PROJECTS OR FOR ADDITIONS TO THIS
PROJECT BY OTHERS, EXCEPT BY AGREEMENT IN
WRITING AND WITH APPROPRIATE
COMPENSATION TO THE ARCHITECT.

www.regarchitects.com

W E S T B E A C HP A L M
3 0 0 C L E M A T I S S T R E E T

A R - 0 0 1 4 1 7 2P R E S I D E N T
RICK GONZALEZ, A.I.A

F L O R I D A 33401
P H : ( 5 6 1 )  -  6 5 9  -  2 3 8 3

( 5 6 1 )  -  6 5 9  -  5 5 4 6F A X :

EST. 1988

AA - 0002447
CORPORATION NUMBER

REG

Neighborhood Renaissance, Inc.
510 24th St., Suite A

West Palm Beach, FL 33407

Lake Worth CRA
29 South J Street, Unit 1

Lake Worth, FL 33460

A-0.1Ex

Site Plan Existing
Conditions

02-09-2016

DE

REG

SITE PLAN REVIEW

15035

110 North "F" Street
Lake Worth, FL 33460

West Village
Art Lofts

---

 1" = 10'-0"1 Site Plan - Existing / Demolition
N

NO. DATE DESCRIPTION



EXISTING
FIRE
HYDRANT

EXISTING FIRE
HYDRANT

EXISTING EASEMENT

EXISTING STREET
TREE & PLANTER

EXISTING UTILITY
POLE

EXISTING UTILITY
POLE

EXISTING UTILITY
POLEEXISTING UTILITY

POLE

EXISTING UTILITY
POLE

EXISTING CURB
CUT & APRON,
REMOVE AND

REPLACE WITH
SIDEWALK

EXISTING CURB CUT &
APRON, REMOVE AND
REPLACE WITH SIDEWALK

EXISTING STREET
TREE & PLANTER

EXISTING EASEMENT

EXISTING RESIDENTIAL
BUILDING

E
X

IS
T

IN
G

C
O

M
M

E
R

C
IA

L
 /
 R

E
T

A
IL

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

EXISTING ARMORY
ARTS BUILDING

MIN.

10'-0"

M
IN

.

1
0

'-
0

"

2
'-
1

"

M
A

X
.

2
2

'-
0

"

REAR SETBACK
COMMERCIAL

FRONT
SETBACK
"F" ST. T.H.

STREET
SETBACK
COMMERCIAL

FRONT
SETBACK
LUCERNE T.H.

FRONT SETBACK
COMMERCIAL

0'
-0

"
IN

T
E

R
IO

R
 S

E
T

B
A

C
K

C
O

M
M

E
R

C
IA

L

2 BD

BLDG. A
(3) 3-Story

Townhouses
2,031 GSF

2 BD

2 BD

BLDG. B
1-STORY
RETAIL

1,993 GSF

2 BD 2 BD 2 BD 2 BD 2 BD

MAIL

A/C GROUND
UNIT, TYP.

J TR E/M

8'-0"14'-0 1/4"8'-0"

SURVEYOR VFY.

30'-0 1/4"

3
8

'-
2

"

PROPOSED
BALCONIES O.H., TYP.

PROPOSED
BALCONIES O.H.,

TYP.

123456

7

8

9

10

11

EXISTING
CURB EDGE

T
Y

P
.

2
0

'-
0

"

TYP.

20'-0"

T
Y

P
.

8
'-
0

"

EXISTING ASPHALT
ALLEY

BLDG. C
(5) 3-Story
Townhouse
3,361 GSF

SHARED
PARK /

GARDEN

1
3

'-6
"

FENCING

1
0

'-
0

"

5'-0"

5
'-
0

"

PROPOSED TREE
ISLAND

ADDITIONAL
SETBACK TO
CLEAR TREE

61'-10"

LUCERNE AVENUE  S.R. 802 F.D.O.T. R.O.W.

N
."

F
" 

ST
R

E
E

T ALLEY
ALLEY

PROPOSED
T.H. P.L., TYP.

3
9

'-
4

"
1

0
'-
8

"
5

0
'-
8

"
1

0
'-
0

"

10'-0"

50'-8"
10'-3" 84'-0"

4
0

'-
0

"
1

0
'-
0

"

2
0

'-
0

"
1

8
'-
0

"
4

7
'-
0

"

3'-3"
2'-6"

3'-3"

TYP.

9'-0"

8'-0"

40'-0"

10'-0"

18'-0" 20'-0" 5'-0"

BIKE RACKS (3)
RACKS, 2 BIKES EA. 6

BIKES TOTAL

LUNA PARK

4" 16'-8" 16'-8" 16'-8" 16'-8" 16'-8" 4"

4
"

1
6

'-
8

"
1

6
'-
8

"
1

6
'-
8

"
4

"

B
IK

E
 R

A
C

K
S 

(3
)

R
A

C
K

S,
 2

 B
IK

E
S 

E
A

. 6
B

IK
E

S 
T

O
T

A
L

TRASH/RECYCLING
CART HOLDING PAD

20
5'

 F
R

O
M

 E
X
IS

T
IN

G
 H

Y
D

R
A
N

T
 T

O
 P

R
O

P
E
R

TY
 C

O
R

N
E
R

204' FROM EXISTING HYDRANT TO PROPERTY CORNER

TOWNHOUSE SIDE SETBACK

7
1

'-
6

"

8
5

'-
0

"

ASPHALT PAVED

EXISTING TREES

SITE PLAN LEGEND
EXISTING BUILDING

EASEMENT

BROAD LEAF TREE AND/OR LARGE SHRUB

PALM TREE

OVERHEAD LINES

ZONING SETBACK (TOWNHOUSE EXCLUDED)

PROPOSED FENCING

PROPOSED BUILDING - TOWNHOUSE

PROPOSED BUILDING - RETAIL

MECHANICAL

MAILBOX

ZONING SETBACK FOR TOWNHOUSES

PROPERTY LINE - TOWNHOUSE / RETAIL

VERIFY ALL CONDITIONS WITH SURVEY
AND EXISTING SITE, ARCHITECTURAL SITE
PLAN IS FOR REFERENCE ONLY - SEE CIVIL
DRAWINGS FOR PROPOSED WORK

NOTE:

T.H.

PROPERTY LINE

TOWNHOUSE

P.L.

PROPERTY LINE - OVERALL

EXISTING PROPOSED

ZONING

LW P&Z PROJECT NUMBER ----

NAME OF PROJECT WEST VILLAGE ART LOFTS

PROPOSED USE MIXED - RETAIL AND TOWNHOUSE

APPLICABLE PLANNING AREA(S): CORE AREA PARKING DISTRICT
PROPERTY CONTROL NUMBERS: 38-43-44-21-15-012-0260

APPLICABLE OVERLAY(S): MAJOR THOROUGHFARE

TOTAL SITE ACRES: .4649 ACRES
SQUARE FEET SITE AREA: 20,933 SF

 ADJACENT TO:
MU-E: Mixed-Use-East (South West, East & West)
MDR:  Medium Density Residential (North)
AMU: Artisan Mixed-Use (North  East)
PROS: Public Recreation & Open Space (South)

ADJACENT
ZONING
DESIGNATIONS

FIRE DEPARTMENT (AHJ - FIRE ONLY): PALM BEACH COUNTY

SITE DATA

MUNICIPALITY (AHJ - ALL BUT FIRE): CITY OF LAKE WORTH

SUSTAINABILITY CERT. PROG.: FLORIDA GREEN BUILDING COUNCIL (FGBC)

FUTURE LAND USE DESIGNATION

LOT AREA
LOT WIDTH

MIN. REQ. PROPOSED

BUILDING HEIGHT - T.H. - FEET
MAX. HGT./STORIES PROP. HGT./STORIES

BUILDING HEIGHT - RETAIL - FEET

BUILDING HEIGHT - ACCESSORY N/AN/A

BUILDING SETBACKS:
FRONT - LUCERNE*

SIDE STREET - N. "F" St.*
SIDE - EAST P.L.*
REAR - ALLEY*

*Building setbacks are applied after variance to change primary street to Lucerne Ave.

MIN./MAX.

**Additional setback requested to allow for existing tree in Luna Park

FRONT - TOWN HOUSE*

***10'-0" setback requested to utilize 10' side setback requirement for Town Houses

REAR - AT F ST. TOWN HOUSES***

PROPOSED
10'/22' 24'-1"**

10' 10'
10' 10'

ZERO LOT LINE 0'
10% (13.5')*** 71.5' Rtl./85' T.H.

10' 10'***

RESIDENTIAL UNIT DENSITY/ACRE 30/14 8
MAX. AC./SITE PROPOSED

PROP. LIVING AREA/UNIT - PRIM.
PROP. LIVING AREA/UNIT - ACCESS. N/AN/A

MIN. PROPOSED
1450 S.F./UNIT 1630 GSF/UNIT

IMPERMEABLE SURFACE MAX. PROPOSED

65%

5544 S.F.

LOT COVERAGE BUILDING
MAX. PROPOSED

MIN. PROPOSED

F.A.R.

WALL HGT. @ PROP. SIDE SETBACK

MAX. PROPOSED
.9 (1.4 w/Sust.Bon.) .87

WALKWAYS/PAVING
BUILDING

COMBINED TOTAL

7385 S.F.
BALCONIES 457 S.F.

13,386 S.F.
AS A % 64%

PARKING DATA - SHARED PARKING IS AVAILABLE BUT NOT REQUESTED

PROPOSED

RETAIL 1 SP / 500 SF
Gross Floor Area

6 SP. LUCERNE

RESIDENTIAL - T.H. (2 BDRM.) MIN. 1.75 SP / UNIT 16 SPACES

PROPOSED PARKING
ON STREET SPACES: 11 SPACES
OFF STREET PARKING:   8 SPACES
GARAGE:  8 SPACES

TOWNHOUSES, DEDICATED

FOR RETAIL USE

BIKE STORAGE ----- 12 SPACES

REQUIRED

4 SPACES

14 SPACES

0 SPACES

30' (35' w/Sust.Bon.) 35'

55% 35%

30' (35' w/Sust.Bon.) 35'
BUILDING HEIGHT - T.H. - STORIES 2 (3 w/Sust.Bonus) 3

BUILDING HEIGHT - RTL. - STORIES

30' (35' w/Sust.Bon.) 22'
2 (3 w/Sust.Bonus) 1

P (PUBLIC) MU-E (MIXED USE)
P (PUBLIC) MU-E (MIXED USE)

6500 S.F. 20,933 S.F.
25' 155'

TOTAL GROSS BUILDING AREA
 RETAIL         1,993 S.F.
 TOWNHOUSE       16,176 S.F.
 TOTAL        18,169 S.F. (18,169 SF/ 20,933 SF= .87)

*Lot widths are applied after variance to change primary street to Lucerne Ave.

HEIGHT

LOT

ZONING & FLU
HISTORIC - DESIGNATION TYPE N/A N/A

DENSITY

UNIT LIVING AREA - UNDER AIR

BUILT COVERAGE

WALL HEIGHT

F.A.R.

RESIDENTIAL TOWN HOUSES
PROPOSED USES (AFTER REZONING)

LOW INTENSITY RETAIL

ALLOWED
AS COND. USE (AFTER REZONING)
BY RIGHT (AFTER REZONING)

5 SP. "F" ST.

REG #

DATE

DRAWN

CHECKED

© 2016

DESIGNER

OWNERSHIP AND USE OF THESE DOCUMENTS &
SPECIFICATIONS AS INSTRUMENTS OF SERVICE
ARE AND SHALL REMAIN THE PROPERTY OF THE
ARCHITECT WHETHER THE PROJECT THEY ARE
MADE FOR IS EXECUTED OR NOT.  THEY SHALL
NOT BE USED BY THE OWNER OR OTHERS ON
OTHER PROJECTS OR FOR ADDITIONS TO THIS
PROJECT BY OTHERS, EXCEPT BY AGREEMENT IN
WRITING AND WITH APPROPRIATE
COMPENSATION TO THE ARCHITECT.

www.regarchitects.com

W E S T B E A C HP A L M
3 0 0 C L E M A T I S S T R E E T

A R - 0 0 1 4 1 7 2P R E S I D E N T
RICK GONZALEZ, A.I.A

F L O R I D A 33401
P H : ( 5 6 1 )  -  6 5 9  -  2 3 8 3

( 5 6 1 )  -  6 5 9  -  5 5 4 6F A X :

EST. 1988

AA - 0002447
CORPORATION NUMBER

REG

Neighborhood Renaissance, Inc.
510 24th St., Suite A

West Palm Beach, FL 33407

Lake Worth CRA
29 South J Street, Unit 1

Lake Worth, FL 33460

A-0.01

Site Plan

02-09-2016

DE/RM

DE/REG

SITE PLAN REVIEW

15035

110 North "F" Street
Lake Worth, FL 33460

West Village
Art Lofts

DE/REG

 3/32" = 1'-0"1 00 - Site Plan

NO. DATE DESCRIPTION

Impervious/Pervious Schedule (Automatic Generation from Model)

Count Name Projected Area Comments
1 Impervious Concrete 3703 SF Concrete Parking & Vehicle Circulation
1 Impervious Concrete 1841 SF Concrete Walkways
1 Pervious Landscape Under Balconies 457 SF Pervious Landscaped Obscured by Impervious Balconies
1 Pervious Landscape Exposed 7080 SF Pervious Landscaping Open to Sky Above
1 Pervious Stone 441 SF Pervious Stone Paving



W
D

UP

W
D

UP

W
D

UP

W
D

UP

W
D

UP

W D

UP

W D

UP

W D

UP

LINE OF CANOPY
ABOVE.

T.H.-D

16'-8"

T.H.-E

16'-8"

T.H.-F

16'-8"

T.H.-G

16'-8"

T.H.-H

16'-8" 4 1/2"

STUDIO

GARAGE /
LAUNDRY

4"

FUTURE JANITOR
CLOSET COORDINATE
LOCATION WITH
TENANT

FUTURE TOILET
ROOM. COORDINATE
LOCATION WITH
TENANT

FUTURE ELECTRICAL/
MECHANICAL ROOM

WALL MOUNTED
MAILBOX

5
0

'-
8

"

1
0

'-
8

"
4

"

T
.H

.-
C

1
6

'-
8

"

T
.H

.-
B

1
6

'-
8

"

T
.H

.-
A

1
6

'-
8

"
4

"

PARKING
4

PARKING
5

PARKING
6

PARKING
7

PARKING
8

PARKING
3

PARKING
2

PARKING
1

PERVIOUS
PAVING CENTER
STRIP, TYP.

1,630 GSF

GARAGE /
LAUNDRY

GARAGE /
LAUNDRY

GARAGE /
LAUNDRY

GARAGE /
LAUNDRY

STUDIO STUDIO STUDIO STUDIO

GARAGE /
LAUNDRY

STUDIO

STUDIO

STUDIO
GARAGE /
LAUNDRY

GARAGE /
LAUNDRY

40'-0"

50'-8"

3
9

'-
4

"

4
0

'-
0

"

RETAIL
1,993 SF

T.H.

1,630 GSF
T.H.

1,630 GSF
T.H.

1,630 GSF
T.H.

1,630 GSF
T.H.

1,630 GSF
T.H.

1,630 GSF
T.H.

1,630 GSF
T.H.

10'-3" 84'-0"

(3) BIKE RACKS,
6 BIKES

(3) BIKE
RACKS,
6 BIKES

10'-3"

J TR E/M

FLOOR PLAN LEGEND

EASEMENT

BROAD LEAF TREE AND/OR LARGE SHRUB

PROPERTY LINE

T.H. TOWNHOUSE

P.L. PROPERTY LINE

MECHANICAL

MAILBOX

WALL ASSEMBLY

WOOD FLOORING

TILE FLOORING

RAIN CONDUCTOR

SLOPE
1/4" / 12"

REQUIRED ADA
ACCESS FLOOR
SPACE

REG #

DATE

DRAWN

CHECKED

© 2016

DESIGNER

OWNERSHIP AND USE OF THESE DOCUMENTS &
SPECIFICATIONS AS INSTRUMENTS OF SERVICE
ARE AND SHALL REMAIN THE PROPERTY OF THE
ARCHITECT WHETHER THE PROJECT THEY ARE
MADE FOR IS EXECUTED OR NOT.  THEY SHALL
NOT BE USED BY THE OWNER OR OTHERS ON
OTHER PROJECTS OR FOR ADDITIONS TO THIS
PROJECT BY OTHERS, EXCEPT BY AGREEMENT IN
WRITING AND WITH APPROPRIATE
COMPENSATION TO THE ARCHITECT.

www.regarchitects.com

W E S T B E A C HP A L M
3 0 0 C L E M A T I S S T R E E T

A R - 0 0 1 4 1 7 2P R E S I D E N T
RICK GONZALEZ, A.I.A

F L O R I D A 33401
P H : ( 5 6 1 )  -  6 5 9  -  2 3 8 3

( 5 6 1 )  -  6 5 9  -  5 5 4 6F A X :

EST. 1988

AA - 0002447
CORPORATION NUMBER

REG

Neighborhood Renaissance, Inc.
510 24th St., Suite A

West Palm Beach, FL 33407

Lake Worth CRA
29 South J Street, Unit 1

Lake Worth, FL 33460

A-0.10

Overall Plan -
Retail & Studio

Level

02-09-2016

RM/DE

REG

SITE PLAN REVIEW

15035

110 North "F" Street
Lake Worth, FL 33460

West Village
Art Lofts

DE/REG

NO. DATE DESCRIPTION

 1/8" = 1'-0"1 10 - Overall Plan - Retail & Studio Level



DN

UP

D
W

DN

UP

D
W

DN

UP

D
W

DN

UP

D
W

DN

UP

D
W

DNUP

DW

DNUP

DW

DNUP

DW

DINING ROOM /
OFFICE

LIVING ROOM

KITCHEN

DINING ROOM /
OFFICE

DINING ROOM /
OFFICE

DINING ROOM /
OFFICE

DINING ROOM /
OFFICE

KITCHEN KITCHEN KITCHEN KITCHEN

LIVING ROOMLIVING ROOMLIVING ROOMLIVING ROOM

DINING ROOM /
OFFICE

KITCHENLIVING ROOM

LIVING ROOM KITCHEN DINING ROOM /
OFFICE

DINING ROOM /
OFFICE

KITCHENLIVING ROOM

ROOF BELOW

BALCONY BALCONY BALCONY BALCONY BALCONY

BALCONY

BALCONY

BALCONY

4"

T.H.-D

16'-8"

T.H.-E

16'-8"

T.H.-F

16'-8"

T.H.-G

16'-8"

T.H.-H

16'-8" 4"

5'-0" 40'-0"

4
"

T
.H

.-
A

1
6

'-
8

"

T
.H

.-
B

1
6

'-
8

"

T
.H

.-
C

1
6

'-
8

"
4

"

5
0

'-
8

"
1

0
'-
8

"

4
0

'-
0

"
5

'-
0

"

10'-3" 84'-0"

FLOOR PLAN LEGEND

EASEMENT

BROAD LEAF TREE AND/OR LARGE SHRUB

PROPERTY LINE

T.H. TOWNHOUSE

P.L. PROPERTY LINE

MECHANICAL

MAILBOX

WALL ASSEMBLY

WOOD FLOORING

TILE FLOORING

RAIN CONDUCTOR

SLOPE
1/4" / 12"

REQUIRED ADA
ACCESS FLOOR
SPACE

REG #

DATE

DRAWN

CHECKED

© 2016

DESIGNER

OWNERSHIP AND USE OF THESE DOCUMENTS &
SPECIFICATIONS AS INSTRUMENTS OF SERVICE
ARE AND SHALL REMAIN THE PROPERTY OF THE
ARCHITECT WHETHER THE PROJECT THEY ARE
MADE FOR IS EXECUTED OR NOT.  THEY SHALL
NOT BE USED BY THE OWNER OR OTHERS ON
OTHER PROJECTS OR FOR ADDITIONS TO THIS
PROJECT BY OTHERS, EXCEPT BY AGREEMENT IN
WRITING AND WITH APPROPRIATE
COMPENSATION TO THE ARCHITECT.

www.regarchitects.com

W E S T B E A C HP A L M
3 0 0 C L E M A T I S S T R E E T

A R - 0 0 1 4 1 7 2P R E S I D E N T
RICK GONZALEZ, A.I.A

F L O R I D A 33401
P H : ( 5 6 1 )  -  6 5 9  -  2 3 8 3

( 5 6 1 )  -  6 5 9  -  5 5 4 6F A X :

EST. 1988

AA - 0002447
CORPORATION NUMBER

REG

Neighborhood Renaissance, Inc.
510 24th St., Suite A

West Palm Beach, FL 33407

Lake Worth CRA
29 South J Street, Unit 1

Lake Worth, FL 33460

A-0.20

Overall Plan -
Living Level

02-09-2016

DE/RM

REG

SITE PLAN REVIEW

15035

110 North "F" Street
Lake Worth, FL 33460

West Village
Art Lofts

DE/REG

NO. DATE DESCRIPTION

 1/8" = 1'-0"1 20 - Overall Plan - Living Level



DN

D
W

DN

D
W

DN

D
W

DN

D
W

DN

DN

DW

DN

DW

DN

BEDROOM 2

MASTER
BEDROOM

MASTER
BEDROOM

BEDROOM 2BEDROOM 2BEDROOM 2
BEDROOM 2

MASTER
BEDROOM

MASTER
BEDROOM

MASTER
BEDROOM

BEDROOM 2
MASTER

BEDROOM

BEDROOM 2

BEDROOM 2

MASTER
BEDROOM

MASTER
BEDROOM

ROOF BELOW

4"

T.H.-D

16'-8"

T.H.-E

16'-8"

T.H.-F

16'-8"

T.H.-G

16'-8"

T.H.-H

16'-8" 4"

40'-0"

4
"

T
.H

.-
C

1
6

'-
8

"

T
.H

.-
B

1
6

'-
8

"

T
.H

.-
A

1
6

'-
8

"
4

"

4
0

'-
0

"

84'-0"

5
0

'-
8

"
1

0
'-
8

"

CANOPIES AND
BALCONIES
BELOW, TYP.

FLOOR PLAN LEGEND

EASEMENT

BROAD LEAF TREE AND/OR LARGE SHRUB

PROPERTY LINE

T.H. TOWNHOUSE

P.L. PROPERTY LINE

MECHANICAL

MAILBOX

WALL ASSEMBLY

WOOD FLOORING

TILE FLOORING

RAIN CONDUCTOR

SLOPE
1/4" / 12"

REQUIRED ADA
ACCESS FLOOR
SPACE

REG #

DATE

DRAWN

CHECKED

© 2016

DESIGNER

OWNERSHIP AND USE OF THESE DOCUMENTS &
SPECIFICATIONS AS INSTRUMENTS OF SERVICE
ARE AND SHALL REMAIN THE PROPERTY OF THE
ARCHITECT WHETHER THE PROJECT THEY ARE
MADE FOR IS EXECUTED OR NOT.  THEY SHALL
NOT BE USED BY THE OWNER OR OTHERS ON
OTHER PROJECTS OR FOR ADDITIONS TO THIS
PROJECT BY OTHERS, EXCEPT BY AGREEMENT IN
WRITING AND WITH APPROPRIATE
COMPENSATION TO THE ARCHITECT.

www.regarchitects.com

W E S T B E A C HP A L M
3 0 0 C L E M A T I S S T R E E T

A R - 0 0 1 4 1 7 2P R E S I D E N T
RICK GONZALEZ, A.I.A

F L O R I D A 33401
P H : ( 5 6 1 )  -  6 5 9  -  2 3 8 3

( 5 6 1 )  -  6 5 9  -  5 5 4 6F A X :

EST. 1988

AA - 0002447
CORPORATION NUMBER

REG

Neighborhood Renaissance, Inc.
510 24th St., Suite A

West Palm Beach, FL 33407

Lake Worth CRA
29 South J Street, Unit 1

Lake Worth, FL 33460

A-0.30

Overall Plan -
Sleeping Level

02-09-2016

DE/RM

REG

SITE PLAN REVIEW

15035

110 North "F" Street
Lake Worth, FL 33460

West Village
Art Lofts

DE/REG

NO. DATE DESCRIPTION

 1/8" = 1'-0"1 30 - Overall Plan - Sleeping Level



CANOPY
BELOW

2ND LEVEL
BALCONY BELOW

ROOFTOP
MECHANICAL
UNIT

T
H

-A
T

H
-B

T
H

-C

TH-D TH-E TH-F TH-G TH-H

CANOPIES
BELOW, TYP.

COLLECTOR BOX AND RAIN CONDUCTOR

1

A-4.00

2

A-4.00

5

A-4.00

FLOOR PLAN LEGEND

EASEMENT

BROAD LEAF TREE AND/OR LARGE SHRUB

PROPERTY LINE

T.H. TOWNHOUSE

P.L. PROPERTY LINE

MECHANICAL

MAILBOX

WALL ASSEMBLY

WOOD FLOORING

TILE FLOORING

RAIN CONDUCTOR

SLOPE
1/4" / 12"

REQUIRED ADA
ACCESS FLOOR
SPACE

REG #

DATE

DRAWN

CHECKED

© 2016

DESIGNER

OWNERSHIP AND USE OF THESE DOCUMENTS &
SPECIFICATIONS AS INSTRUMENTS OF SERVICE
ARE AND SHALL REMAIN THE PROPERTY OF THE
ARCHITECT WHETHER THE PROJECT THEY ARE
MADE FOR IS EXECUTED OR NOT.  THEY SHALL
NOT BE USED BY THE OWNER OR OTHERS ON
OTHER PROJECTS OR FOR ADDITIONS TO THIS
PROJECT BY OTHERS, EXCEPT BY AGREEMENT IN
WRITING AND WITH APPROPRIATE
COMPENSATION TO THE ARCHITECT.

www.regarchitects.com

W E S T B E A C HP A L M
3 0 0 C L E M A T I S S T R E E T

A R - 0 0 1 4 1 7 2P R E S I D E N T
RICK GONZALEZ, A.I.A

F L O R I D A 33401
P H : ( 5 6 1 )  -  6 5 9  -  2 3 8 3

( 5 6 1 )  -  6 5 9  -  5 5 4 6F A X :

EST. 1988

AA - 0002447
CORPORATION NUMBER

REG

Neighborhood Renaissance, Inc.
510 24th St., Suite A

West Palm Beach, FL 33407

Lake Worth CRA
29 South J Street, Unit 1

Lake Worth, FL 33460

A-0.40

Overall Plan -
Roof Plan

02-09-2016

DE/RM

REG

SITE PLAN REVIEW

15035

110 North "F" Street
Lake Worth, FL 33460

West Village
Art Lofts

DE/REG

NO. DATE DESCRIPTION

 1/8" = 1'-0"1 40 - Overall Plan - Roof



WING WALL WITH
ALUMINUM SUPPORTS
FOR FASTENING. ART
BY OTHERS

ALUMINUM GLAZED DOORS

ALUMINUM WRAPPED VERTICAL
AND HORIZONTAL MULLIONS,
TYP.

ALUMINUM STOREFRONT
SYSTEM, TYP.

METAL SUNSHADE AND
SUPPORTS. WEST SIDE ONLY

ALUMINUM CHANNEL LETTER
SIGNAGE BY OTHERS,
INTERNALLY LIT; TYP.;  12 S.F.
EACH; 3 SIGNS TOTAL 36 S.F.

VERTICAL CONTROL
JOINT, TYP.

FIXED SSG ALUMINUM CORNER WINDOW, TYP.

ALUMINUM AWNING WINDOW, TYP.

ALUMINUM COPING, TYP.

SMOOTH STUCCO FINISH, TYP.

VERTICAL CONTROL JOINT, TYP.

HORIZONTAL STUCCO REVEAL, TYP.

PORCELAIN TILE -
WOODGRAIN

METAL SUNSHADE, 8" TO 10"
DEEP, TYP. TOP LEVEL

ALUMINUM ROLLER WINDOW,
TYP.

METAL SUNSHADE AND
SUPPORTS, VARYING DEPTH,
TYP. LIVING LEVEL

ALUMINUM WRAPPED MULLIONS, TYP.

ALUMINUM  / GLAZED DOORS, TYP.

AWNING ALUMINUM TRANSOM, TYP.

FIXED ALUMINUM WINDOW

WALL-
MOUNTED
BIKE RACK,
TYP.

1

A-4.00

2

A-4.00

5

A-4.00

ALUMINUM RAINWATER
CONDUCTOR, TYP.

ALUMINUM RAINWATER
COLLECTOR BOX, TYP.

1
3

'-
4

"
1

0
'-
0

"
9

'-
0

"
4

'-
0

"

F
L

O
O

R
 T

O
 H

IG
H

 S
ID

E
 O

F
 R

O
O

F
3

4
'-
7

" 
 B

L
D

G
. 
"A

"
1

'-
9

"

6
"G

A
R

A
G

E
 O

F
F

S
E

T

STUDIO
LEVEL

LIVING
LEVEL

SLEEPING
LEVEL

ROOF
BEARING

WING WALL WITH
ALUMINUM SUPPORTS
FOR FASTENING. ART BY
OTHERS

METAL SUNSHADE
AND SUPPORTS

STUCCO FINISH
WING WALL FOR
VISIBILITY AND
SIGNAGE

SIGNAGE BY
OTHERS, LIGHTED;
17 S.F.; CONTEXT &
LOCATION T.B.D.

ARTIST SIGNAGE /
LOGO BY OTHERS,
NOT LIGHTED

WOOD RAFTER,
TYP.

CEDAR 2X4
SUNSHADE SLATS,
TYP.

CEDAR FASCIA
(OBSCURED), TYP.

ALUMINUM DRIP
EDGE
(OBSCURED), TYP.

REPEATING (8' PATTERN) WAVE
PATTERN BALCONY GUARD,
SHOP CUT CLEAR ANODIZED
ALUMINUM INSTALLED OVER
STEEL TUBE, COATED, TOP
AND BOTTOM HORIZONTAL
TUBES W/ POSTS 48" O.C., TYP.

ALUMINUM STOREFRONT
SYSTEM, TYP.9'-0"

1
'-
1
1

"

EXISTING COMMERCIAL
BUILDING IN
FOREGROUND

ALUMINUM O.H. SECTIONAL DOOR,
STANDARD COLOR  TBD

FIBERGLASS DOOR

SIGNAGE BY OTHERS, 24 S.F.;
CONTEXT & LOCATION T.B.D.

STUDIO
LEVEL

LIVING
LEVEL

SLEEPING
LEVEL

ROOF
BEARING

T
O

 H
IG

H
 S

ID
E

 O
F

 R
O

O
F

3
4

'-
7

"B
L

D
G

. 
"B

"
1

'-
9

"

4
'-
0

"
9

'-
0

"
1

0
'-
0

"
1

3
'-
4

"

3
6

'-
4

"

REG #

DATE

DRAWN

CHECKED

© 2016

DESIGNER

OWNERSHIP AND USE OF THESE DOCUMENTS &
SPECIFICATIONS AS INSTRUMENTS OF SERVICE
ARE AND SHALL REMAIN THE PROPERTY OF THE
ARCHITECT WHETHER THE PROJECT THEY ARE
MADE FOR IS EXECUTED OR NOT.  THEY SHALL
NOT BE USED BY THE OWNER OR OTHERS ON
OTHER PROJECTS OR FOR ADDITIONS TO THIS
PROJECT BY OTHERS, EXCEPT BY AGREEMENT IN
WRITING AND WITH APPROPRIATE
COMPENSATION TO THE ARCHITECT.

www.regarchitects.com

W E S T B E A C HP A L M
3 0 0 C L E M A T I S S T R E E T

A R - 0 0 1 4 1 7 2P R E S I D E N T
RICK GONZALEZ, A.I.A

F L O R I D A 33401
P H : ( 5 6 1 )  -  6 5 9  -  2 3 8 3

( 5 6 1 )  -  6 5 9  -  5 5 4 6F A X :

EST. 1988

AA - 0002447
CORPORATION NUMBER

REG

Neighborhood Renaissance, Inc.
510 24th St., Suite A

West Palm Beach, FL 33407

Lake Worth CRA
29 South J Street, Unit 1

Lake Worth, FL 33460

A-3.00

Building
Elevations

02-09-2016

RM/DE

REG

SITE PLAN REVIEW

15035

110 North "F" Street
Lake Worth, FL 33460

West Village
Art Lofts

DE/REG

 1/8" = 1'-0"1 Lucerne Ave (South) Elevation

 1/8" = 1'-0"2 Alley (North) Elevation

 1/8" = 1'-0"3 North "F" Street (West) Elevation

 1/8" = 1'-0"4 East (Side/Rear) Elevation

NO. DATE DESCRIPTION

INCLUDES TYPICAL ELEVATION NOTES FOR ALL THREE BUILDINGS

FOR TYPICAL ELEVATION NOTES SEE DRAWING 1/A-3.00

FOR TYPICAL ELEVATION NOTES SEE DRAWING 1/A-3.00

FOR TYPICAL ELEVATION NOTES SEE DRAWING 1/A-3.00



01 - STUDIO
LEVEL

02 - LIVING
LEVEL

03 - SLEEPING
LEVEL

04 - ROOF
BEARING

1
'-
9

"

T
O

 H
IG

H
 S

ID
E

 O
F

 R
O

O
F

3
4

'-
7

"B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 "
C

"

1
3

'-
4

"
1

0
'-
0

"
9

'-
0

"
4

'-
0

"

6
"D

R
O

P
 A

T
 G

A
R

A
G

E

01 - RETAIL
LEVEL

02R - ROOF AVG.
LEVEL

 L
O

W
 P

O
IN

T
 O

F
 R

O
O

F

1
3

'-
1

0
"B

L
D

G
 "

B
"

8
'-
2

"

2
2

'-
0

"

HIGH SIDE OF ROOF BEYOND

LOW SIDE OF ROOF AT WALL

WALL MOUNTED BIKE RACK,
(3) UNITS, (6) BIKES

1
6

'-
6

"
5

'-
6

"

01 - STUDIO
LEVEL

02 - LIVING
LEVEL

03 - SLEEPING
LEVEL

04 - ROOF
BEARING

4
'-
0

"
9

'-
0

"
1

0
'-
0

"
1

3
'-
4

"

1
'-
9

"

H
IG

H
 S

ID
E

 O
F

 R
O

O
F

3
4

'-
7

"B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 "
A

"

6
"D

R
O

P
 A

T
 G

A
R

A
G

E

5

A-4.00

01 - RETAIL
LEVEL

02R - ROOF AVG.
LEVEL

HIGH SIDE OF ROOF BEYOND

LOW SIDE OF ROOF AT WALL

WALL MOUNTED BIKE RACK,
(3) UNITS, (6) BIKES

1
6

'-
6

"
5

'-
6

"

2
2

'-
0

"

H
IG

H
 S

P
O

T
 O

F
 R

O
O

F

1
8

'-
1

0
" 

B
L

D
G

. 
"B

"
3

'-
2

"

REG #

DATE

DRAWN

CHECKED

© 2016

DESIGNER

OWNERSHIP AND USE OF THESE DOCUMENTS &
SPECIFICATIONS AS INSTRUMENTS OF SERVICE
ARE AND SHALL REMAIN THE PROPERTY OF THE
ARCHITECT WHETHER THE PROJECT THEY ARE
MADE FOR IS EXECUTED OR NOT.  THEY SHALL
NOT BE USED BY THE OWNER OR OTHERS ON
OTHER PROJECTS OR FOR ADDITIONS TO THIS
PROJECT BY OTHERS, EXCEPT BY AGREEMENT IN
WRITING AND WITH APPROPRIATE
COMPENSATION TO THE ARCHITECT.

www.regarchitects.com

W E S T B E A C HP A L M
3 0 0 C L E M A T I S S T R E E T

A R - 0 0 1 4 1 7 2P R E S I D E N T
RICK GONZALEZ, A.I.A

F L O R I D A 33401
P H : ( 5 6 1 )  -  6 5 9  -  2 3 8 3

( 5 6 1 )  -  6 5 9  -  5 5 4 6F A X :

EST. 1988

AA - 0002447
CORPORATION NUMBER

REG

Neighborhood Renaissance, Inc.
510 24th St., Suite A

West Palm Beach, FL 33407

Lake Worth CRA
29 South J Street, Unit 1

Lake Worth, FL 33460

A-3.01

Building
Elevations

02-09-2016

DE/RM

DE/REG

SITE PLAN REVIEW

15035

110 North "F" Street
Lake Worth, FL 33460

West Village
Art Lofts

DE/REG

NO. DATE DESCRIPTION

 1/8" = 1'-0"3 Building "C" West Elevation

 1/8" = 1'-0"2 Building "B" East Elevation

 1/8" = 1'-0"4 Building "A" South Elevation

 1/8" = 1'-0"1 Building "B" North Elevation

FOR TYPICAL ELEVATION NOTES SEE DRAWING 1/A-3.00 FOR TYPICAL ELEVATION NOTES SEE DRAWING 1/A-3.00

FOR TYPICAL ELEVATION NOTES SEE DRAWING 1/A-3.00FOR TYPICAL ELEVATION NOTES SEE DRAWING 1/A-3.00



REG #

DATE

DRAWN

CHECKED

© 2016

DESIGNER

OWNERSHIP AND USE OF THESE DOCUMENTS &
SPECIFICATIONS AS INSTRUMENTS OF SERVICE
ARE AND SHALL REMAIN THE PROPERTY OF THE
ARCHITECT WHETHER THE PROJECT THEY ARE
MADE FOR IS EXECUTED OR NOT.  THEY SHALL
NOT BE USED BY THE OWNER OR OTHERS ON
OTHER PROJECTS OR FOR ADDITIONS TO THIS
PROJECT BY OTHERS, EXCEPT BY AGREEMENT IN
WRITING AND WITH APPROPRIATE
COMPENSATION TO THE ARCHITECT.

www.regarchitects.com

W E S T B E A C HP A L M
3 0 0 C L E M A T I S S T R E E T

A R - 0 0 1 4 1 7 2P R E S I D E N T
RICK GONZALEZ, A.I.A

F L O R I D A 33401
P H : ( 5 6 1 )  -  6 5 9  -  2 3 8 3

( 5 6 1 )  -  6 5 9  -  5 5 4 6F A X :

EST. 1988

AA - 0002447
CORPORATION NUMBER

REG

Neighborhood Renaissance, Inc.
510 24th St., Suite A

West Palm Beach, FL 33407

Lake Worth CRA
29 South J Street, Unit 1

Lake Worth, FL 33460

A-3.02

Elevations - Color
and Shade

02-09-2016

DE/RM

REG

SITE PLAN REVIEW

15035

110 North "F" Street
Lake Worth, FL 33460

West Village
Art Lofts

DE/REG

NO. DATE DESCRIPTION

PROGRESS

Shadow Study: June 1st at 4:00 p.m.

Shadow Study: June 21st at 1:00 p.m.

Shadow Study: June 21st at 8:00 a.m.

Shadow Study: June 21st at 8:00 a.m.

 1/8" = 1'-0"1 Lucerne Ave (South) Elevation - Shade & Shadow

 1/8" = 1'-0"2 Alley (North) Elevation - Shade & Shadow

 1/8" = 1'-0"3 North "F" Street (West) Elev. - Shade & Shadow

 1/8" = 1'-0"4 East (Side/Rear) Elevation - Shade & Shadow



REG #

DATE

DRAWN

CHECKED

© 2016

DESIGNER

OWNERSHIP AND USE OF THESE DOCUMENTS &
SPECIFICATIONS AS INSTRUMENTS OF SERVICE
ARE AND SHALL REMAIN THE PROPERTY OF THE
ARCHITECT WHETHER THE PROJECT THEY ARE
MADE FOR IS EXECUTED OR NOT.  THEY SHALL
NOT BE USED BY THE OWNER OR OTHERS ON
OTHER PROJECTS OR FOR ADDITIONS TO THIS
PROJECT BY OTHERS, EXCEPT BY AGREEMENT IN
WRITING AND WITH APPROPRIATE
COMPENSATION TO THE ARCHITECT.

www.regarchitects.com

W E S T B E A C HP A L M
3 0 0 C L E M A T I S S T R E E T

A R - 0 0 1 4 1 7 2P R E S I D E N T
RICK GONZALEZ, A.I.A

F L O R I D A 33401
P H : ( 5 6 1 )  -  6 5 9  -  2 3 8 3

( 5 6 1 )  -  6 5 9  -  5 5 4 6F A X :

EST. 1988

AA - 0002447
CORPORATION NUMBER

REG

Neighborhood Renaissance, Inc.
510 24th St., Suite A

West Palm Beach, FL 33407

Lake Worth CRA
29 South J Street, Unit 1

Lake Worth, FL 33460

A-3.03

Building
Materials &

Colors

02-09-2016

Author

Checker

SITE PLAN REVIEW

15035

110 North "F" Street
Lake Worth, FL 33460

West Village
Art Lofts

Designer

NO. DATE DESCRIPTION

ACCENT: SW6627 EMBERGLOW

WINDOWS, DOORS RAILING:
CLEAR ANODIZED ALUMINUM

ACCENT: SW6499 STREAM

ACCENT:
SW6502 LOCH
BLUE

BODY: SW357 CHOICE CREAM ACCENT TILE: DALTILE "SEASON WOOD - WEATHERED"

WINDOW & DOOR FRAMES: CLEAR ANODIZED ALUMINUM

WINDOW & DOOR GLASS - LOW-E: CLEAR (STUDIO LEVEL), AZURIA BLUE (UPPER LEVELS)



SCALE: 1/8" = 1'-0"

PROPOSED SITE LIGHTING PLAN

N

ELECTRICAL

CONCEPTUAL

SITE LIGHTING

PLAN

REG #

DATE: 2016-02-09

DRAWN

CHECKED

© 2016

DESIGNER

OWNERSHIP AND USE OF THESE DOCUMENTS &
SPECIFICATIONS AS INSTRUMENTS OF SERVICE
ARE AND SHALL REMAIN THE PROPERTY OF THE
ARCHITECT WHETHER THE PROJECT THEY ARE
MADE FOR IS EXECUTED OR NOT.  THEY SHALL
NOT BE USED BY THE OWNER OR OTHERS ON
OTHER PROJECTS OR FOR ADDITIONS TO THIS
PROJECT BY OTHERS, EXCEPT BY AGREEMENT IN
WRITING AND WITH APPROPRIATE
COMPENSATION TO THE ARCHITECT.

www.regarchitects.com

W E S T B E A C HP A L M
3 0 0 C L E M A T I S S T R E E T

A R - 0 0 1 4 1 7 2P R E S I D E N T
RICK GONZALEZ, A.I.A

F L O R I D A 33401
P H : ( 5 6 1 )  -  6 5 9  -  2 3 8 3

( 5 6 1 )  -  6 5 9  -  5 5 4 6F A X :

EST. 1988

AA - 0002447
CORPORATION NUMBER

REG

Neighborhood Renaissance, Inc.

510 24th St., Suite A

West Palm Beach, FL 33407

Lake Worth CRA

29 South J Street, Unit 1

Lake Worth, FL 33460

BEN ELLIS, PE
LICENSED ENGINEER #67568

STATE OF FLORIDA
CERT. OF AUTH. #30408

DATE
PROJECT NUMBER-16004

ENGINEERING FOR TODAY'S
BUILT ENVIRONMENT

1106B NORTH G STREET
LAKE WORTH, FL 33460

(561) 370-3300 phone
www.ellisgritter.com

 SITE PLAN REVIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIGHT TYPE "B"

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIGHT TYPE "A"

AutoCAD SHX Text
POLE MOUNTED AREA LIGHTS FOR DRIVE AND GREEN SPACE PARKING; CONTROL VIA PHOTOCELL (TYP.	OF 2 POLES, 4 HEADS)OF 2 POLES, 4 HEADS)

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIXTURE TYPE: 	SURFACE MTD SURFACE MTD LAMP TYPE:	13W LED, 4000K COLOR 13W LED, 4000K COLOR MOUNTING HT:	10'-0" A.F.G.10'-0" A.F.G.

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIXTURE TYPE: 	POLE MTD. AREA LIGHT POLE MTD. AREA LIGHT LAMP TYPE:	68W 40 LED, 4000K COLOR 68W 40 LED, 4000K COLOR MOUNTING HT:	20'-0" A.F.G.20'-0" A.F.G.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SURFACE MOUNTED LED LIGHT, ONE EACH FRONT AND REAR CENTER OF EACH TOWNHOUSE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SURFACE MOUNTED LED LIGHT, TWO EACH SIDE OF RETAIL BUILDING  (8 TOTAL)

AutoCAD SHX Text
ES-1


	1.) ARCHECTURAL PLANS.pdf
	SP1.pdf
	SP2.pdf
	SPE.pdf
	A1.pdf
	A2.pdf
	A3.pdf

	3.) LANDSCAPE PLANS.pdf
	LP-1 3-31-16.pdf
	LP-2 3-31-16.pdf
	LP-3 3-31-16.pdf

	4.) CIVIL PLANS.pdf
	C-151077_C-Base-C-01.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	C-01


	C-151077_C-Base-C-02.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	C-02


	C-151077_C-Base-C-03.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	C-03



	01 Survey S14090792-110 NORTH F STREET - REV 1-16-16-11X17.pdf
	11X17

	02 2016-02-09 15035 LW Artist Residences - Site Plan Review.pdf
	16004 Electrical Site-ES-1 2016-02-09.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	ES-1
	JOE'S VIEW
	BEN'S VIEW



	WVAL L1-L2-L3 90% WVLA20160215.pdf
	WVAL L1 90% WVLA20160215
	Sheets and Views
	L1
	PLOT



	WVAL L2 90% WVLA20160215
	Sheets and Views
	L2
	PLOT



	WVAL L3 90% WVLA20160215
	Sheets and Views
	L3
	PLOT








